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DATE:

£ REFEREMCE:

YOUR REFERTNGCE:

MARKETS AND SECURITIES

REGULATION DEPARTMENT
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION (the “SEC™)
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenbhills,
Mandaluyong City
Attention : Mr. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.
Director
Re : Undertaking to Submit SEC Form 17-Q for

period ending September 30, 2016

Gentlement:

We write in connection with the Preliminary Information Statement (the
“PIS”) that our client, Cirtek Holdings Philippines Corporation (the
“Corporation™), is required to submit to your office today, 7 November 2016, for
the Corporation’s Special Stockholders” Meeting to be held on 7 December 2016.

We understand that the Corporation is required to file its Quarterly Report
for the period ending September 30, 2016, SEC Form 17-Q, together with the PIS.
However, please note that the deadline for filing such report to the Commission is
on September 15, 2016 or 45 days from the end of the quarter. As such, for the
purpose of filing its Preliminary Information Statements, the Corporation hereby
undertakes to submit the said quarterly report on or before September 15, 2016.
The Corporation undertakes to make copies of the same available to each and
every stockholder at the time of the distribution of the Definitive Information
Statement to them on November 18, 2016.

DPAYAD BRANCH

Thank you for your kind consideration and understanding.
Very truly yours,

ANGARA ABELLO CONCEPCION REGALA & CRUZ
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

i
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INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIO(I{F
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE .

1. Check the appropriate box: By Mg
[ v ] Preliminary Information Statement
[} Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: Cirtek Holdinas Philippines gg;gggg;ig;

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Philippines

4, SEC Identification Number CS2011102137

5. BIR Tax Identification Code 007-979-726

6. Address of principal office116 East Main Avenue, Phase V- Postal Code: 4024
SEZ Laguna Tec rk, Bifian La

7. Registrant’s telephane number, inciuding area code +632 729 6205 +63 49 541 2317
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of securily holders: December 7, 2016, 10:30 am at

thePaseo Premiere Hotel, Sta. Rosa Business Park, Laguna

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: November 18,2016

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations;

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: N/A
Address and Telephone No.:NJ/A

i1 Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the
RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Comman Stock
Qutstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Shares 419.063,353/n/a
i2. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?
Yes v No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) —~ Common Shares
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PART I.

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A
PROXY.

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders,

a, DATE OF MEETING . December 7, 2016
TIME OF MEETING :10:30 AM
PLACE OF MEETING . Paseo Premiere Hotel, Sta, Rosa Business Park, Laguna
PRINCIPAL OFFICE : 116 East Main Avenue, Phase V-SEZ, Laguna

Technopark, Bifian, Laguna

b.  Approximate date on : November 18, 2016
which the Information
statement is first to be
sent or given to security
holders

Iten 2. Dissenters’' Right of Appraisal
Any stockhotder of the Corporation who exercises his right of appraisal must vote against the
proposed corporate action in order to avail himself of the appraisal right.As provided in Title X
of the Corporation Code, a stockholder may exercise his right of appraisal in the following
instances:
a. In case an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of:

i. Changing or restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares;

ii. Authorizing preferences in any aspects superior to thase of outstanding
shares of any class; ’

iil. Extending or shortening the corporate existence;

b. The sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all
or substantially all of the corperate property or assets;

c. A merger or cansolidation.

In the exercise of the appraisal right, Title X provides the procedure on how it may be
exercised:

a. A dissenting stockholder files a written demand for payment of the fair value of
the shares within thirty (30) days after the date an which the vote was taken.
Failure to file a written demand within the thirty (30} day period shall constitute
a waiver of the right. Within ten {10) days from demand, the dissenting
stockholder shall submit the stock certificates te the carparation for notation that
such shares are dissenting shares. From the time of demand for payment until
either abandonment of the corporate action or purchase of the shares of the
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corporation, all rights accruing to the shares shall be suspended, except the
stockholder's right to receive payment for the fair value of his shares.

b, If the corporate action is implemented, the corporation pays the stockholder the
fair value of his shares upon surrender of the certificate/s of stock. Fair value is
determined by the value of the shares on the day prior to the date on which the
vote was taken, excluding appreciation/depreciation in anticipation of such
corporate action,

¢, If the fair value is not determined within sixty (60) days from the date of action,
it will be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons {one
chosen by the corporation, ancther chosen by both). The findings of the said
appraisers will be final, and their award will be paid by the corporation within
thirty (30) days after such award is made. Upon such payment, the stockholder
shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation. No payment shall be made
to the dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained
earnings in its books to cover such payment.

d. If the stockholder is not paid within thirty (30) days from such award, his voting
and dividend rights shall be immediately restored.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon
a. As of the date hereof, none of the directars of the Company has informed the Company
of his intention to oppose any of the corporate actions to be acted upon &t the
specialmeeting of the stockholders.

. CONTROL AND COMPEN ION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof
(a) Number of shares outstanding 419,063,353 common shares
400,000,000 preferred shares

Number of votes to which each one {1) vote per one (1) common share or
class is entitled preferred share

Both common and preferred shares are entitled to one (1) vote per one (1) share, However,
while the common shares are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC™ and listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange ("PSE"), the preferred shares are not
registered with the SEC and not listed with the PSE.

{b) Cut-off date / record date November 9,2016

The corporation’s capital stock consists of common shares and preferred shares. The
stockhoiders have the same voting rights. Each share is entitled to one vote.

(c) Cumulative Voting for Directors — At the election of directors, each stockholder may vote
the shares registered in his name, either in person or by proxy, for as many perscns as
there are diractors, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many
votes as the number of directors to be elected multipied by the number of his shares
shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates
as he shall see fit; provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed
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the number of shares owned by him muitiplied by the whole number of directors to be
elected.

(d) Security ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

Owners of record of more than 5% of the corporation’s voting securities as of October

31, 2016:
Title of Name, Name of Citizenship = Number of % of
Ciass Address of Beneficial Shares Held Class
Record Owner and
Owner, and | Relationship
Relationship | with Record
with Issuer Owner
Commen Camlerton, Camerton, Inc. Filipino 208,888,558 | 49.85
Inc.
Common PCD Nominee | PCD Nominee Filipino 198,431,175 | 47.35
Corporation Corporation
Total 407,319,733 | 97.20%
Preferred Camerton, Camerton, Inc. Filipino 400,000,000 | 100
Inc.?
Total 400,000,000 | 100%

Under PCD account, the following participants hold shares representing more than 5% of
Company’s cutstanding shares

Participant Number of Shares | Percentage :
Guild Securities 64,560,754 15.40%
First Metro Securlties 63,523,627 15.18%
Meridian Securities 36,195,469 8.64%

the

Except as stated above, the corporation has ne knowledge of any person or any group who,
directly or indirectly, is the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the corporation’s outstanding
shares or who has a voting power, veting trust, or any similar agreement with respect to
shares comprising more than 5% of the corporation’s outstanding common stock.

The number of common shares beneficially owned by directors and executive officers as of
October 31, 2016 are as follows:

Title of Class Name of Beneficial No. of Citizenship Percent
Owner Shares Held
Common Jerry Liu 1 Chinese 0.0000
Common Rafael G. Fstrada 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Nicanor Lizares 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Anthony Buyawe 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Roberto 1 Filipino 0.0000
JuanchitoDispo

Common Martin Lorenzo 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Ernest Fritz Server 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Michael Stephen Liu 1 Filiping 0.0000
Comman Brian Gregory Liu 1 Filipino 0.0000

t The Corporation has appointed Jerry Liu who shall vote the shares on its behalf.
? The Corporaticn has appointed Jerry Liu who shall vote the shares on its behalf,
SEC Form 17-15 4
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Item 5.

Voting Trust Hoider of 5% or More

The corporation s not aware of any person holding more than 5% of the common shares of
the corporation under a voting trust or similar agreement as there has been no voting trust
agreement which has been filed with the corporation and the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

(e) Description of any arrangement which may result in a change in control of the corparation

No change in controt of the corporation has occurred since the beginning of the last fiscal
year.

Directors and Exacutive Officers

All of the Directors and officers named herein have served in their respective positions since
May 27, 2016, The Directors of the Corporation were elected at the annual meeting of the
stockhalders of the Corporation to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting of the
stockholders and until the respective successors have been elected and qualified.

The Officers were elected by the Board of Directors at the organizational meeting of the
Board on May 27 2016, The Board also elected during the said meeting the chairman and
members of the Audit Committee, the Nominations Committee, and the Compensation
Committee.

The following is ¢ briel profile of the Corporation’s Directors and Officers for the year 2016~
2017.

Jerry Liu, 68 years old was elected as the Company’s Chairman and President on May 25,
2012. He is concurrently President/CEO of CEC, Director of Cirtek Land and Cayon Holdings,
Inc. and Chairman of Silicon Link, Inc., Mr, Liu holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics
from Chung Yuan University of Taiwan and an MBA from the University of the East,

Roberto Juanchitoe T. Dispo, 51 years old was elected Vice Chairman and Director of the
Company an January 4, 2016. Mr. Dispo is aiso Vice Chairman of Cosco Capital, and sits on
the Board of PB Com Bank and Axa Philippines. Priar to joining the Company, Mr. Dispo was
President and Director of First Metro Investment Corporation. Mr. Dispe holds BSC Ecenomics
and Business Management from San Sebastian College and Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng
Maynila, respectively. He also completed Masters in Business Administration and Masters in
Business Economics from Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Mayniia and the University of Asia &
the Pacific, respectively.

Nicanor Lizares, 52 vears old was elected as a director of the Company on February 17,
2011. He is aiso a director of Pancake House, Inc., and Cirtek Holdings, Inc. He is & partner
of Auregs Philippine Advisers, Inc., Mr. Lizares has a Master of Science in Industrial
Economics from the Center for Research and Communications and an M.A. in International
Relations from Boston University.

Anthony Buyawae, 48 yaars old was elected as the Company’s Treasurer and Chief Financial
Officer on February 17, 2011, He is concurrently the CFO of CEC, CEIC and the Figaro Coffee
Company. Pricr to joining the Company, Mr. Buyawe was CFO of ITP Technologies (2003 -
2005) and SMEDC (2008-2009) and Senior Director of Emnst and Young (2005-2008). Mr.
Buyawe obtained his BA degree from the University of the Phitippines and his MBA from the
Asian Institute of Management.

Rafael G. Estrada, 63, is Chairman and President of First National Holdings Corporation and
Chairman of Delta Agrivet Commercial, Inc. and WaterforCalasiao, In¢. Previously, Mr.
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Estrada served as Vice Chairman of the Social Security System, and served as director for
Land Bank of the Philippines, Unicn Bank of the Philippines, Manila Doctors Hospital and
Medical Center Manila, He obtained is BS Management degree from the University of Sto.
Toemas and his MEBA (candidate) from the University of Virginia.

Martin Ignacio P. Lorenzo, 50 vears old was elected as an Independent Director of the
Company on February 17, 2611 and shall serve as such for one year or until his successor is
elected and qualified. Mr. Lorenzo is the Chairman and President of Pancake House, Inc and
Chairman as well as partner of Macondray& Co., Inc,, Mr. Lorenzo graduated from the Ateneo
de Manila University with a Bachelor of Science in Management Engineering and earned his
MBA from the Wharton Graduate School, University of Pennsylvania in 1990,

Ernest Fritz Server, 72 years old, was elected as an Independent Director of the Cempany
on February 17, 2011 and shall serve ag such for one year or until his successor is elected
and qualified. Mr. Server serves as the President of Muitimedia Telephony Inc., Vice Chairman
of RFM Corporation and a director of Philippine Township, Inc. Previously, Mr. Server served
as Vice Chairman of the Commercial Bank of Mania, Consumer Bank and Cosmos Bottling
Company and President of Philippine Home Cabie Holdings, Inc. and Philam Fund. Mr. Server
graduated from the Atenec de Manila University in 1963 with degree in Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics and holds an MBA Major in Banking and Finance from the University of
Pennsylvania, Wharton Graduate School.

Michael Stephen Liu, Filipino, 31 years old, is currently the General Manager of Cirtek
Advanced Technology and Solutions (CATSI) a Cirtek company catering to the telecom and
wireless broadband space. He was first elected as Director on May 11, 2015. Mr. Liu
obtained his degree in Electronics and Communications Engineering from De La Salle
University in 2007 and is a licensed Electrical Engineer.

Brian Gregory T. Liu,29 years old, has been the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Company since March 2011, He is concurrently a stockholder in Cirtek Electronics
Corporation, Cirtek Land Corporation, and Turborg Trading. Mr. Liu trained as an Operations
Trainee in Deminos Pizza from 2001 to 2002, then as an Analyst in Evergreen Stockbrokerage
& Securities Inc. from 2003 to 2005. He obtained his degree in Management in Financial
Institutions from De La Salle University in 2009,

Nomination Committee

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company is Martin Lorenzo, an
Independent Director, and the members are Jerry Liu and Nicanor Lizares.

Independent Diractors

The nominees for Independent Directors of the Company for the year 2016-2017 are:

1. Martin Ignacio P. Lorenzo, and
2. Ernast Fritz Server

They have been nominated by Jerry Liu, ane of the current directors of the Company. Both of
them have been the Independent Directors of the Company since February 17, 2011, In
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Memorandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2011,
bath Independent Directors may serve until 2017 as such of the Company.
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Key Officers

Tadeo Hiladwo, 54 years old, Filipino, was elected as the Company’s Corporate Secretary on
February 17, 2011, Atty. Tadeo is a senior partner at the Angara Abello Concepcion Regata &
Cruz law offices. He alsc serves as director and corporate secretary of several companies
inctuding Cocoa  Specialbes, Inc., UnivationMetor Philippines, Inc.,, Nissan Autoparts
Manufacturing Corporation, Sumisetsu Philippines, Inc., and Samscnite Philippines, Inc.,
amaong cthers. Atty. Tadeo hoids a Bachelor of Arts degree from the De La Salle University,
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines and a Master of Laws degree
from the University of Michigan.

Significant Employees

The business of the Company is not highly dependent on the services of personnel outside of
senior management.

Family Relaticnships

The Company's Chairman and President, Mr. Jerry Liu, is the father of Mr. Brian Liu, the
Company’s Assistant Corporate Secretary and Director, and Mr. Michael Stephen Liu, the
Company’s Director.

SEC Form 17-15 7
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Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of the occurrence, during the past five years up to the date hereof
of any of the following events that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of
any director or executive officer:

1. Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any director, or any business of a director,
nominee for election as director, or executive officer who was a director, general partner
or executive officer of said business either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two
years prior to that time;

2. Any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officer being convicted by final
judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject te a pending
criminal proceading, domestic or foreign, excluding fraffic violations and other minor
offenses;

3. Any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officer being subject to any
order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise lmiting his involvement in any type of
business, securities, commadities or banking activities; and

4, Any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officer being found by a
domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading
market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commaodities law or
regulation, and the judgment has not heen reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Item 6. Compensaticn of Directors and Executive Officers

a. Total Annual Compensation
The total annual compensation of the President and the top four highly compensated
executed and to its officers and directors as a group unnamed is as follows:

| Name & Position Year Salary Estimated Bonus

Jerry Liu (President) 2015 £ 25.0 miflion P 4.0 million
Anthony Buyawe (CFO)
Domingo Bonifacio {President
CATS)

Rolandc Enriquez {Vice .
President CATS) f
Jorge Aguilar (President CEC

Aggregate compensation paid | 2015 £ 30.0 million £ 6.0 million
to all officers and directors as
a Cirtek Group unnamed

SEC Form 1718 g
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Name & Position Year Estimated Salary | Estimated Bonus

Jerry Liu (Chairman} 2016 £ 40.0 million £8.0 million
Roberto JuanchutoDispo
(President)

Anthony Buyawe ((FG)
Rofando Enriquez (Yice
President CATS}

Jorge Aguilar {President CEC)

_-I\—g—t-j;éaéféE:Bmpensation pa‘{d”"iaia‘ S £ 45 million £ 10.0 million
to all officers and directors as
a Cirtek Group unnamed

Item 7.

b. Compensation of Directors

Under the By-Laws of the Company, by resoiution of the Board, each director, shall receive a
reasonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As
compensation, the Board shall receive and allecate an amount of not more than ten percent
{10%) of the ner income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year,
Such compensation shali be determined and apportioned among directors in such manner as
the Board may deem proper, subject to the approval of stockholders represerting at least
majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders.

As of date, the directors have yet to pass a resolution fixing their per diem.
c. Standard Arrangements and Other Arrangements

There are no other arrangements for compensation either by way of payments for committee
participation or special assignments,

There are nc other arrangements for compensation either by way of payments for committee
participation or special assignments other than reasonable per diem. There are also no
outstanding warrants or options held by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, other officers
and/or directors.

d. Employmeni Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-Control
Arrangemeants

The Cirtek Group has executed employment contract with some of its key officers. Such
contracts provide the customary provision on job description, benefits, confidentiality, non-
compete, and nor-solicitation clauses. There are no special retirement plans for executives.
There is also no existing arrangement for compensation to be received by any executive
officer frem the Company in the event of change in control of the Company.

Independent Public Accountants
The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of three {3) members, one (1) of whom is an independent
director. I is composed of the following members:

1. Ernest Fritz Server (Chairman)
2. Anthony Buyawe (Member)
3. Jerry Liu (Member)

SEC Form 17-18 U
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b.

The Public Accountant

The Company’s public accauntant is the accounting firm Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co ("SGV").
They are being recommended once again for election, approval, and ratification for the
current fiscal year. As of December 31, 2015, SGV has been the Company’s external auditor
for fiveyears with Mr. Ladislao Z. Avila, Jr. as the Partner-in-Charge for the audit years 2011
to 2015 The Company, in compliance with SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3 (b) (iv) re: compliance
with the five (5} year rotation requirement for external auditors, has requested for a new
Partner-in-Charge from SGV to handle its accounts. Mr. Martin C. Guantes has been assigned
by 5GV as Part-in-Charge effective 2015 Audit.

Representatives from SGV attend the Annual Meeting of the Stockhotders of the Company
and are given the opportunity to make a statement if they so desire. They are also expected
to respond to appropriate questions.

c. External Audit Fees and Services
Audit and Audit-Related Fees 2015 2014
Regular audit B £ 1,100,000 £ 950,000
Special audit P 9,100,000 £ 700,000
Other fees (out-of-pockel expenses) R R -
Total Audit and Audit-related Fees £10,200,000 £1,650,000
The Audit Committee approves the policies and procedures for the above services by
observing the independence of parties and by carrying out transaction at arms-length basis.
Jtem 8. Compensation Plans

There are no actions to be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

There are no outstanding warrants and options held by any of the Company’s directors and
executive officers.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

The Board of Directors of the Corporation, in its meeting held on 24 October 2016 approved
the following resolutions:

a. declaration of stock dividends of Ten Percent (10%) for each of the Four Hundred
Nineteen Million Sixty Three Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Three (419,063,353) fully
paid and issued common sharas of the Corporation, and Four Hundred Million
(400,000,000) fully paid and issued preferred shares, subject to regulatory approvals.
The Ten Percent (10%) stock dividend to the common stockholders shall be distributed to
alt common stockholders of record as of 21 December 2016, and distributed to them on
26 December 2016. The stock dividends shall come from the authorized, unissued shares
of common stock of the Corporation. On the other hand, the Ten Percent (10%) stock
dividend to the preferred stockholder/s shalt be taken from the increase in the authorized
capital stock of the Corporation, and shall be distributed to the preferred stockhalder/s on
the next trading day from the record date to be determined by the SEC.Any fractional
shares arising from such declaration of stock dividends shall be paid in cash to the
stockholders concerned at BSP exchange rate one day before payment date.
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Description of Cornoration’s Securities

1. As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of the Corporation is Five Hundred
Sixty Million Pesos (P5&0,000,000.00) consisting of five hundred twenty million
(520,600,00¢) common shares at One Peso (P1.00) per commeon share and four hundred
million (400,000,000 preferred shares at Ten centavos (P0.10) per preferred share, out of
which four hundred nineteen million sixty three thousand and three hundred fifty three
(419,063,353) common shares and four hundred million (400,000,000) preferred shares
are fully paid and issued.

2. The preposai is to increase the authorized capital stock by One Billien Four Hundred
Forty Million Pesos {P1,440,000,000.00) in lawful money of the Philippines, or from Five
Hundred Sixty Million Pescs (P560,000,000.00), divided into five hundred twenty million
(520,000,000 Common Shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00} per share and four
hundred mitlion preferred shares {400,000,000) Preferred Shares with a par value of Ten
Centavos (P0.10) per share (“Preferred A Shares”), to Two Billion Pesos
(P2,000,000,000.00), consisting of One Billion Four Hundred Million Pesos
(P1,400,000,000.00) worth of Common Shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per
share and, % Hundred Million Pesos (P600,000,000.00) worth of Preferred Shares
classified into One Hundred Forty Million Pesos (P140,000,000.00) Preferred A Shares
with a par vaiue of Ten Centavos (P0.10} per share, and Four Hundred Sixty Million Pesos
(P460,000,000.00) worth of New Preferred Shares, the par values, series, classes,
preferences, convertibility, voting rights and other features of which shali be determined
by the Board of Directors.

3. There are no otiver material rights of common or preferred shareholders.

4. There is no orovision in the charter or by-laws that would delay, defer or prevent a
change in the control of the Corporation,

Item 10, Modification or Exchange of Securities
There is nc action ta be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the
registrant, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
registrant in exchanae for outstanding securities of another class.

Item 11, Financial andg SGther Information
There is no actinn 1o he faken with respect to any matter specified in Items 9 or 10 above.

Item 12. Mergers, Consciidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

There are no actions or transactions with respect to any mergers, consclidations, acquisitions
or similar matters that will be taken up by the registrant.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There is no action to be laken up with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any
property.

Item 14. Restatement of Accounts
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There is no ac‘t'on *f) be {aken up with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital, or
surplus account of the registrant,

D. OTHER MATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a.

SEC Form 178
December 2003

The Board v ils speaal meeting last 24 October 2016 has approved {c increase the
authorized capital stock of the Corporationby One Billion Four Hundred Forty Million
Pesos (F1,440,000,000.00) in lawful money of the Philippines, or from Five Hundred
Sixty Milliony Pesos  (P560,000,000.00), divided into five hundred twenty million
(520, OO; 100) Common Shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share and
four hundrad miflion preferred shares (400,000,000) Preferred Shares with a par
vaiue of Ten Centavos (P0.10) per share (“Preferred A Shares™), to Two Billion Pesos
{P2,000,0G0,000.00), consisting of One Billion Four Hundred Milion  Pesos
{P1,400,000,000.00) worth of Common Shares with a par value of One Peso (P1.00)
per share and, Six Hundred Million Pesos (P600,000,000.00) worth of Preferred
Shares ctassified into One Hundred Forty Million Pesos (P140,000,000.00) Preferred
A Shares with a par value of Ten Centavos (P0.10) per share, and Four Hundred Sixty
Miflion Pesos (P460,000,000.00) worth of New Preferred Shares, the par values,
series, classes, preferences, convertibifity, voting rights and other features of which
shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

In view thereof, the Following matters shall be presented to the stockholders for their
approval during theSpecial Stockholders” Meeting on 7 Becember 2016:

increase in the amount of the authorized capital stock from Five
Hundred Sixty Million Pesos (P560,000,000.00), divided into five
hundred twenty million (520,000,000) Commeon Shares with a par
value of One Peso (P1.00) per share and four hundred million
preforred shares (400,000,000) Preferred Shares with a par value of
Ten Centavos (P0.10) per share (“Preferred A Shares™), to Two Billion
psos (P2,000,000,000.00), consisting of One Billion Four Hundred
didfion  Pesos (P1,400,000,000.00) worth of Common Shares
with a par value of One Peso {P1.00) per share and, Six Hundred
Million Pesos {P600,000,000.00) worth of Preferred Shares classified
into One Hundred Forty Million Pesos (P140,000,000.00) Preferred A
Shares with a par value of Ten Centavos (P0.10) per share, and Four
Hundred Sixty Million Pesos (P460,000,000.00) worth of New
Preferred Shares, the par values, series, classes, preferences,
convertibility, voting rights and other features of which shall be
determined by the Beard of Directors;

cragtion New Preferred Shares, the par values, series, classes,
preferances, convertibility, voting rights and other features of which
shall be determined by the Board of Directors;

i delegation to the Board of the the power and authority to: (i)
determine the manner (either in one or more tranches) by which the
proposed increase in the Authorized Capital Stock of the Corporation
'wl! he implemented; and (ii) the manner by which the increase in the
Authorized Capital Stock will be subscribed and paid for, such as, but
Aot lmted to, & private placement transaction or public offering;

re. delegation to the Board of Directors of the power and authotity to
issue from time to tme in one or more series the New Preferred
Shares mentioned above, and to determine the par value of each
particular series of the New Preferred Shares, to fix the number of
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shares to be included in each of such series, and to determine the
preferences, convertibility, voting rights, features and other terms and
conditions for each such series of the New Preferred Shares;

v, delegation to the Board of Directors of the power and authority to file
such apptications and documents as may be necessary to amend the
articles of incorporation of the Corporation that will give effect to the
foregoing resolutions.

Item 16. Matters Kot Raquired to be Submitted

There is no action to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be
submitted to & vote of security holders,

Item 17. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

There is no action to be taken with respect to amendment of charter, by-laws and other
documents,

Item 18. Other Proposed &ction

a. With respect o the proposed increase in the authorized capital stock of the Corparation,
the Board will obtain the consent of the Stockholders to delegate to the Beard of
Directors the authority to: (i} detarmina the manner (either in one or more tranches) by
which the proposed increase in the authorized capital stock of the Corporation will be
implemented; and (i) the manner by which the increase in the authorized capital stock
witl be financed and supported, such as, but not limited to a private placement
transaction {whether by a third party investor or a related-party investor), and for this
purpose, the approval of the majority of the minority shareholders of the Corporation to
waive the requirements o conduct a rights or public offering of the shares to be
subscribed by the related party will be obtained; and

b, With respect Lo the delogated authority to amend the articles of incorporation of the
Corporation to effect the implementation of the increase in the Authorized Capital Stock,
the Board wilt obtain the consent of the Stockholders to delegate to the Board of
Directors the authority to file such applications and documents as may be necessary to
amend the aticles of incorporation of the Corporation that will give effect to the
foregoing resolutions.

Item 19. Voting Proceduros

The vote required for the olection of Directors and Independent Directors

At all elections of Directers and Independent Directors, there must be present, either in
person or by representative authorized to act by written proxy, the owners of a majority of
the outstanding capital stock. The election must be by ballot if requested by any veting
stockholder or member. Every stockholder entitled to vote shall have the right to vote in
person or by proxy the number of shares of stock standing, at the time fixed in the by-laws,
in his own name on the stock books of the carporation, and said stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as mang persons as there are directors to be elected or he may
cumulate said s wve cne candidate 2s many votes as the number of directors to be
elected muitipdiend Ly 4 : <,f his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the
same principle ar .fwg as many candidates as he shall see fit: Provided, That the total number
of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the
books of the corporation muitiplied by the whole number of directors to be etected.

The vote required for the declaration of stock dividends

SEC Form 178 13
December 2003



Under the Cor:
stockholders rep

ton Code, no stock dividend shall be issued without the approval of
enting not less than two-thirds {2/3) of the Corporation’s capital stock.

The vote reguired for b cresse n the authorized capital stock

Under the Corpor i Code, no corporation shall increase its authorized capital stock unless
approved bystockhnlders representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital
stock of the corporation at @ meeting duly called for the purpose.

The voie required for theamendment of the articles of incorporation of the Corporation

Under the Corpor

inn Cnde, any provision or matter stated in the articles of incorporation
v the vote of the stockholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the
outstanding cap;ic: stock of the corporation,

The method by which votes will be counted

Each shareholder may vois in parson or by proxy by the number of shares of stock standing
in his name of the books of the Corporation. Each share represents one vote. Voting shall
be by balioting. The Corperate Secretary, Atty. Tadec F. Hilado, shall assist the Corporation’s
Stock and Transfzr Agentiy counting the votes to be cast.,

2 Corporation of any intention to oppose the matters to be taken

Na director nas i i
kiholdars” Mesting.

up in the Annual Six

Vote entitlement of the Comman and Preferred Shares of the Company

Both common and preferred shares are entited to one (1) vote per ane (1) share. However,
while the Common shares are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC™) and listec with tha Philippine Stock Exchange ("PSE™), the preferred shares are not
registered with the SEC and not listed with the PSE.

SEC Form 1715 i
Decemper 2003



_ _PART L

SIGNATURE PAGE

I undertake to provide without charge (o each person, upon written request, a copy of the
registrant’s annual report on SEC Form 17-A and shall indicate the name and address of thepersonto
whom such a written reguest is to be directed. At the discretion of management, a charge may be

made for exhibits, provided such charge is imited to reasonable expenses incurred by the registrant

in furnishing such exhitres,

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set
forth in this report is truz, compiete and correct.  This report is signed in the City of Bifian on
7November2016.

CIRTEX HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION
By

1z

ANTHONY S. BUYAWE
Compliance Officer/Corporate Information Officer

Cirtek Holdings Philippings (ornoration
Preliminary InformationSiatement 2015

SEC Form 17-1S 13
Decamber 2003
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PART I BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1 BUSINESS

Cirtek Holdings Philippines Corporation (CHCP or the Company) through its subsidiaries, Cirtek Electronics
Corporation (CEC) and Cirtek Electronics International Corporation (CEIC), (collectively the Cirtek Group),
is primarily engaged in two major activities: (1) the manufacture and sales of semiconductor packages as
an independent subcontractor for outsourced semiconductor assembly, test and packaging services, and
(2) the manufacture of value-added, highly integrated technology products. CEC provides turnkey
solutions that include package design and development, wafer probing, wafer back grinding, assembly
and packaging, final testing of semiconductor devices, and delivery and shipment to its customers’ end
users, CEC has over 64 regular customers spread out in Europe, the US and Asia. CEIC sells integrated
circuits principally in the US and assigns the production of the same to CEC. CEIC recently acquired
Remec Broadband Wireless Inc. (RBWI), recently renamed Cirtek Advanced Technologies and Solutions,
Inc, (CATS), a proven Philippine-based manufacturer of value added, highly integrated technology
products. CATS offers complete "box build" turnkey manufacturing solutions to RF, microwave, and
millimeterwave products used in the wireless industry such as telecommunication, satellite, aerospace
and defense, and automotive wireless devices.

The Cirtek Group has earned a strong reputation from its customers for its high-quality products,
production flexibility, competitive costing and capability to work with customers to develop application
and customer specific packages. The Cirtek Group has been accredited and certified by several
international quality institutions, namely TUD SUD Management Service GmbH, TUV Product Service Asia
Ltd., Taiwan Branch, Defense Supply Center & British Approval Board Telecom, for the latest quality
system standards, which include 1S09001, IS014001, and QS9000/TS16949.

The Company’s principal office is located at 116 East Main Avenue, Phase V-SEZ, Laguna Technopark,
Binan, Laguna.

The Company was registered with the SEC on February 10, 2011, with an initial authorized capital stock
of R400,000,000 divided into 400,000,000 common shares with a par value of One Peso (R1.00) per
share. Of the authorized capital stock, 30% equivalent to 120,000,000 shares or £120,000,000.00 was
subscribed and fully paid-up.

On February 17, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors and Stockholders approved the acquisition from
CHI of 155,511,952 common shares (representing 99.99% of the outstanding capital stock) of CEC and
50,000 shares (representing 100% of the outstanding capital) of CEIC, On March 1, 2011, the two (2}
deeds of sale were executed by the Company and CHI in order to implement the transfers.

Corporate Name Date of Incorporation
Cirtek Electronics Corporation May 31, 1984
Cirtek Blectronics International Corporation April 4, 1995

In 2015, the Cirtek Group had total revenues of US$ 59.5 million, and net income of US$ 5.3 million. As
of December 31, 2015, the Cirtek Group had total assets of US$ 131.1 million and total liabilities of US$
57.3 million.

-



CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Corporate Structure

Liu Family {100%) Liu Family {100%)
Carmetheus Holdings, Inc. CharmviewEnterprises, Ltd.
(60%) (40%)
Camerton Inc. {50%)* Public Shareholders {50%)

/

Cirtek Holdings Philippines
Corporation

100% | 1 100%
Cirtek Electronics Cirtek Electronics
Corporation International Corporation

Cirtek Advanced Technologies
and Solutions, Inc. (BVI)

CirtekAdvanced Technologies
and Solutions, Inc.
{Philippine branch)

RBW Realty and Property, Inc.

* Camerton has 50% economic interest and 74.4% voting rights

Cirtek Electronics Corporation

CEC was incorporated with the SEC on May 31, 1984, primarily to engage as an independent
subcontractor for semiconductor assembly, test and packaging services.

Prior to the Company’s acquisition of CEC in 2011, CEC was majority-owned by Charmview, a holding
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on November 1, 1994 and is owned by the Liu family,
wherein the US$50,000 authorized capital stock is divided equally among Jerry Liu, Nelia Liu, Michael Liu,
Justin Liu and Brian Gregory Liu.

In March 24, 2008, Charmview and Cametheus Holdings, Inc. (CHI) entered into a Share Swap
Agreement whereby Charmview transferred all of its interest in CEC, constituting 155,511,959 common
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shares, to CHI in exchange for 50,000 commen shares of stock of CHI. As a result of the share swap,
CEC became a subsidiary of CHI.

On March 1, 2011, CHI and the Company executed the Deed of Absolute Sale of Shares wherein CHI
transferred all of its 155,511,959 shares in CEC in favor of the Company for and in consideration of
130,000,000, making CEC a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

CEC owns the manufacturing plants in Technopark as well as machinery such as bonder, auto test
handler, optical inspection system, wafer back grinder, mold set, and other machinery necessary for the
manufacture, assembly and testing of semiconductors.

CEC was previously registered with the Board of Investments (BOI) under Presidential Decree No. 1789,
as amended by Batas Pambansa Blg. 391, as a preferred pioneer enterprise for the manufacture and
export of integrated circuits. As a registered enterprise, CEC was entitled to certain tax and nontax
incentives provided for in PD 1789G.

On March 24, 1998, the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA) approved CEC's registration as an
ecozone export enterprise at the Laguna Technopark for the manufacture of standard integrated circuits,
discrete, hybrid and potential new packages. Beginning October 30, 2002, the manufacture and export
of integrated circuits, discrete and hybrid transferred to PEZA from BOI. Since its income tax holiday
incentive expired in 2003, CEC is subject to tax at the preferential rate of 5% of its gross income in
accordance with Republic Act No. 7916, the law creating the PEZA. In prder to maximize the incentives
granted under Republic Act No. 7916, CEC applied for the registration of its new products and was
granted income tax holiday therefor from 2003 to 2005.

On April 27, 2011, PEZA approved CEC's application for the registration of a new project involving the
manufacture of devices which will be used as components for smart phones, automotive sensor
applications, battery chargers, and industrial applications.

Cirtek Electronics International Corporation

CEIC was incorporated under the International Business Companies Act of the British Virgin Islands on
April 4, 1995. CEIC was incorporated with primarily purpose of selling integrated circuits principally in the
United States of America and subcontracts the production of the same to CEC.

Beginning June 8, 1995, CEIC after securing the sales from its customers abroad, would subcontract the
assembly, test and/or packaging of the devices to CEC pursuant to a Master Subcontractor Agreement.
Under said agreement, CEIC issued purchase orders to CEC stating therein the type of product it will
require, the quantity, delivery date and destination together with such other instructions the former may
have. In consideration for its services, CEC was paid a service fee depending on the services contracted
for a particular purchase order.

Prigr to the Company’s acquisition of CEIC in 2011, CEIC was majority-owned by Charmview. In March
24, 2008, Charmview and CHI entered into a Share Swap Agreement whereby Charmview transferred all
of its interest in CEIC, constituting 50,000 common shares, to CHI in exchange for 50,000 common
shares of stock of CHI. As a result of the share swap, CEIC became a subsidiary of CHI.

On March 1, 2011, CHI and the Company executed the Deed of Absolute Sale of Shares wherein CHI
transferred all of its 50,000,000 shares in CEIC in favor of the Company for and in consideration of
£130,000,000, making CEIC a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.



After the reorganization, the Company became the parent company of both CEC and CEIC while CHI
remains a holding company of the Liu family, which no longer forms part of the post-reorganization
structure of the Company.

CEC PRODUCTS

CEC offers a broad range of products that go into various applications. The end application covers
practically everything from consumer products to high reliability industrial and military products.

The following are CEC's product lines:

1. Protection products

These products are designed to protect electronic devices from damaging voltage or current spikes.
These are in multi-chip SOIC packages, with up to 32 diodes in a single unit.

2. Light sensors

These optical devices sense the intensity of light and trigger the automatic switching on and off of
headlights and the automatic adjustment of air conditioning settings in cars. The package is a
transparent custom-body QFN.

3. Real time clock

These are precision time keeping devices which contain features like calendars, time of day, trickle
charger and memory functions. These devices come with tuning fork cylindrical crystals and are
packaged in 16/20L SOIC 300mil body version.

4, Voltage control oscillators (VCO)

This is an electronic oscillator that is designed to be controlled in oscillation frequency by a DC voltage
input. Signals may also be fed into the VCO to cause frequency modulation or phase modulation.

5. Electronic Relays

These are opto relays that are used in controlling high voltage and high power equipment. The control is
achieved through the physical isolation of high voltage output and the low voltage input side of the
device protecting the circuit components and the users, These are packaged in PDIP with an LED and a
driver IC coupled together, without electrical connection between them.

6. Power management devices
These devices are used in a wide range of power management applications from telecommunications,

industrial equipment, portable devices, computers, and networks. These are packaged in SOIC with the
die pad exposed.



CEC MANUFACTURING PROCESS FLOW

The Company, through its subsidiary CEC, assembles and tests semiconductor devices at its
manufacturing complex located on a 12,740 square meter property in Bifian, Laguna. CEC currently
leases the property from Cirtek Land, Inc. and Cayon Holdings, Inc., both of which are majority owned by
one of the Company’s directors, Nelia T. Liu. CEC's manufacturing facility is composed of two buildings,
with a total floor area of 152,000 square feet.



Process Flow

The figure below #Hlustrates the typical manufacturing process for the back-end production of
semiconductor products:
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The hack end semiconductor operation starfs with package design and development. The design phase
pertains to a.) the determination of the type of package to be used that conforms to industry standards,
b.) the substrates that will match the intended package, and c.) the material set that will be used to meet
customer specifications. This is followed by tooling selection and ordering.



The development process follows a systematic approach which takes into account the standards required
by the end user product. Advanced quality planning is made part of the process to ensure that the critical
quality characteristics are fully understood, characterized and tested. Customers are involved as they
have to approve the design and any changes that will happen later in the development stage.

The development is only deemed complete once critical processes are proven capable and qualification
units and iots are produced and tested for reliability internally and or by the customers.

The fundamental package assembly process starts after the Company receives the wafer silicon from
customers. Pre-assembly, the wafers are back grinded to the desired thickness, probed for electrical
performance and then sawn to dice the wafers to its individual chip size following customer requirements.
The individually sawn dies are then mounted on a copper substrate typically using epoxy adhesives.
Other packages made by the Company however, may require other mounting adhesives for enhanced
functional performance. Examples of these include, E0201 DFN (used in smart phones) which requires a
gold eutectic process or the PQFN (used in charges) which requires solder paste.

The interconnection between die to leads is normally done using gold fine wire. Power packages
however use copper clips for higher electrical conductivity. The parts are then encapsulated by an epoxy
moulding compound, which are usually opaqgue.

The parts are then electroplated for protection of the metal leads, trimmed and formed into its final
shape or sawn into its final dimensions in the case of 0201DFN, ODFN and PQFN.

These assembled units are electrically tested for functional screening. The good parts are then packed
per customer specifications and shipped to its intended destination.

Customers may opt to contract for the entire process flow or for portions thereof, as weil require
changes, subject to mutual consent to suit the customers’ product needs.

CATS PRODUCTS
CATS offers a broad range of microwave products that go into various applications. The end application

covers microwave/wireless solutions for carrier and private data networks catering mobile backhaul,
service provider, education, enterprise, government/municipalities and healthcare.

The following are CATS' microwave products:

1. CTT ODU

The CTTH ODU is available in 6L, 6U, 7GHz, 8GHz, 11GHz, 13GHz, 15GHz, 18GHz, 23GHz, 26GHz,
28GHz, 32GHz and 38GHz. The CTTH ODU supports QPSK to 256QAM modulation and 7MHz to 56MHz
channel bandwidth.

2. IRFU
The Indoor RFU is available in L6, U6, 7GHz, 8GHz, and 11GHz frequency bands. The channel spacing

supported for North American ANSI rates is between 3.75 MHz and 60 MHz. The channel spacing
supported for ETSI rates is between 7 MHz and 56 MHz.



3. OIPR

The QOIPR is available in 6L, 6U, 7GHz, 8GHz, 11GHz, 13GHz, 15GHz, 18GHz, 23GHz, 26GHz, 28GHz,
32GHz and 38GHz. The supported modulation is QPSK to 256QAM. The channel spacings supported for
North American ANSI rates is between 10MHz and 50 MHz. The channel spacings supported for ETSI
rates are 7MHz, 14MHz, 28-30MHz, 40MHz and 56MHz.

4. FLEX4G-UHA

Flex4G-UHA-UHA operates in the 71-76/81-86 GHz frequency range in compliance to ECC/REC 05/07
Recommendations and is subject to use based on each EU member country’s individual regulations for
operation in this band. The FLEX4G-UHA uses BPSK modulation and supports a maximum data rate of
1,000 Mbps in a 1,250 MHz channel.

CATS MANUFACTURING PROCESS FLOW

The Company assembles and tests microwave products at its manufacturing complex located on a 12,740
square meters property in Bifian, Laguna. CATSI currently leases the property from Cirtek Land, Inc. and
Cayon Holdings, Inc., both of which are majority owned by one of the Company’s directors, Nelia T. Liu,
The manufacturing facility is composed of two buildings, with a total floor area of 152,000 square feet.



Brocess Flow

The figure below illustrates the typical manufacturing process for the production of microwave products:
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The manufacturing process starts with business and product development. The business development
pertains to a} RFQ (Request for Quote) from customer and b) customer approval. Once the customer
approves the guote, product development proceeds. The product development pertains to a) NPI (New
Product Introduction) and b) bill of materials selection. During NPI, the factory will qualify the product
and the process (to manufacture the product). The NPI process is considered completed once critical
processes are proven capable and qualification units are produced and tested for reliability internally and
or by the customers. If NPI is successful, the bill of materials is finalized. This includes the product BOM,
fixtures and packaging. Mass production follows.

The fundamentat assembly process starts with PCBA (Printed Circuit Board Assembly). Solder paste is
applied to the PCB, followed by placement of components during SMT pick and place. The populated
board is then loaded to the reflow oven for solder paste curing. After the oven reflow, the board
undergoes AOI (Automatic Optical Inspection). All boards with reject (assembly rejects, i.e. missing
components, wrong part mounted, tombstone, insufficient solder, mis-oriented, tilted,etc.) during ACI are
reworked. All boards without rejects proceed to 2™ operation or manual soldering (if required).

Some modules/sub-assembly boards from PCBA undergo MIC process (Microwave Integrated Circuit).
During this process, a component (MMIC) is attached or mounted to the board with epoxy, either
manually or automated. The board is then cured to the required temperature depending on the type of
epoxy used. Wirebond/gapweld is performed depending on the required assembly drawing. Inspection
follows to ensure conformance to the assembly drawing.

The modules/sub-assembly boards will then undergo test and tune (if required). All passing modules are
then integrated to form the ODU (final product) during Top level assembly. System level testing follows
(Calibration and Parametric test, Bit Error Rate (BER) Test, etc.). The ODUs should conform to the
specifications set by the customer.

Finished products are then packed per custormer specifications and shipped to the intended destination.

CUSTOMERS

Beginning in 1984 with 3 customers, the Cirtek Group has significantly grown its customer base to over
45 major and regular customers as of present date. The Cirtek Group’s Company’s customers are iocated
in various countries, with the bulk of revenues contributed by customers located in Europe and the United
States of America. The figure below illustrates the geographic distribution of customers by revenue
contribution, over the past 3 years.

CEC
9% Contribution to Revenue Per Region
2013-2015
2013 2014 2015
Asia 23% 25% 24%
Europe 40% 43% 40%

USA 37% 32% 36%

11



CATS

% Contribution to Revenue Per Region
Aug-Dec 2014, 2015

2014 2015
Asia 4% -
Europe 1% I
USA 95% g9

The Company is not dependent upon a single customer or a few customers or industry, the loss of any of
which would have a material adverse effect on the Company. The Company has no single customer
contributing more than 20% of the Company's total revenues in the last three years of operation.
Neither is the Company reliant on any specific industry since its products have varied applications in
different industries.

MARKETING

The Company appoints non-exclusive sales agents around the globe to promote its products and services.
These agents help promote and maintain strong relationships by working closely with customers to
address and resolve quality issues and communicate timely responses to specific requirements and
delivery issues. The Company through its subsidiaries currently maintains a sales director in the USA and
sales agents in the USA, Europe and Asia.

Cirtek also performs marketing research for technology development by working closely with its
customers through collaboration, conducting surveys and gathering market trends to keep the Company
abreast of new packaging techniques and product introductions.

SUPPLIERS

Direct materials used by the Company in the manufacturing process are leadframes, molding compound,
wires (goid and copper) and epoxy adhesives. Silicon wafers are provided by Cirtek’s customers,

These direct materials are sourced abroad, mainly from Hongkong, Singapore, Malaysia and Korea.
Shipment is mostly by air, except for the molding compound, which is by sea because of its weight. In
order to mitigate the risk of shortage of these direct materials, the Company has at least two suppliers
for each material.

COMPETITORS IN THE INDUSTRY
CEC

The assembly and testing segment of the semiconductor industry is highly competitive. The Company’s
competitors in the semiconductor space include IDM's with their own in-house assembly and testing
capabilities, and similar independent semiconductor assembly and test subcontractors, located in the
Philippines and in the Asia-Pacific region. Among the Company’s competitors are Amkor Technology in
Korea and in the Philippines; ASE, Orient Semiconductor Electronics, Ltd., Siliconware Precision Industries
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Co., Ltd in Taiwan; Unisem and Carsem Semiconductor in Malaysia; Hana Microelectronics in Thailand;
STATS ChipPac Ltd. in Singapcre, and other Chinese subcontractors such as Diodes Inc. and JCET.

The principal areas of competition are pricing and product quality. The Company believes however, that
it has an advantage over its competitors not only in the above-mentioned areas but also because of the
following reasons: advanced packaging technology in multiple component products; focus on jointly
developed application-specific packages; dedicated line services; and quick turnaround time on customer
reguirements,

CATS

The Company's competitors in the RF/Satcom EMS space include large OEMs with international presence
such as Benchmark Electronics, Plexus, Flextronics, and MTI Electronics. Among the Company's local
competitors for certain product lines are Ionics and IMI.

The Company believes is competitive strength lies in its ability to provide complete turnkey solutions for
complex, box build electronic and microwave products. The Company also believes it has unique

RF/microwave expertise to deliver vertically integrated products from components to modules and
system levels.

EMPLOYEES

As of October 31, 2016, the Cirtek Group has 1,483 regular employees.

Position Total
Managers and Executives 31
Engineers 32
Administration 35
Other support Cirtek 455
Groups
Rank and File 930
Total 1,483

The Cirtek Group is not unionized. However, to foster better employee-management relations, the Cirtek
Group has a labor management council ("LMC") composed of committees with representatives from both
labor and management. These committees include the committee on employee welfare and benefit,
employees cooperative committee, employee discipline committee and sports and recreation committee,
among others,

LMCs are established to enable the workers to participate in policy and decision-making processes in
establishment, in so far as said processes will directly affect their rights, benefits and welfare, except
those which are covered by collective bargaining agreement or are traditional areas of bargaining. The
scope of the council/committee’s functions consists of information sharing, discussion, consultation,
formulation, or establishment of programs or projects affecting the employees in general or the
management,
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Company does not believe that its operations are dependent on any patent, trademark, copyright,
license, franchise, concession or royalty agreement.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development work is performed by a team of over 57 experienced engineers with skills
developed internally and learned from previous work experiences. Skills are brought in through hiring
when necessary while training is a continuing concern to hone the skilis of the technical staff.

The Company, through CEC and CATS, has successfully cooperated with customers on many projects, co-
developing with them new technology that are customer specific that will ensure continuing engagement
by the customers. This approach ties up customer with the Company over a long period of time
generating revenues from a captive market.

The Company's technology roadmap covers material development and process improvement to improve
on cost and to help maintain the margins. The latest materials are identified to meet ever increasing
demand for higher quality and lower cost. These are product-application specific that are jointly co-
deveioped with the customers bringing benefits to both parties.

The same technology roadmap resulted in bringing down the material and labor cost. For 2012, there
was a reduction of 0.5% in cost of sales from new material developed.

Although the Company engages in research and development activities, the expenses incurred by the
Company in connection with these activities are not material,

GOVERNMENT APPROVAL AND PERMITS

All government approvals and permits issued by the appropriate government agencies or bodies which
are material and necessary to conduct the business and operations of the Company, were obtained by
the Company and are in full force and effect. As a holding company, the Company is only required to
obtain a mayor's permit, which was issued to the Company on March 4, 2012 by the City of Bifian,
Laguna. Such mayor's permit is required to be renewed within the first twenty (20) days from the
beginning of January of the foliowing year.

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

As a PEZA-registered entity, CEC and CATS are required to submit periodic financial and other reports.
CEC is also required to submit quarterly, semi-annual and annual reports to the Department of
Environment and Natural Resources as part of its Environmental Compliance Certificate requirements.
The failure to comply with these reports and with any other requirements or regulations of these
government agencies could expose CEC and CATS to penalties and the revocation of the registrations.

CEC and CATS ensures compliance with these requirements by assigning dedicated personnel to monitor,
prepare the necessary filings and liaise with the relevant government agencies.
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ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

The Company, through its subsidiary, owns the manufacturing plants in the Laguna Technopark as well
as machinery such as bonder, auto test handler, optical inspection system, wafer back grinder, mold set,
and other machinery necessary for the manufacture, assembly and testing of semiconductors. All of these
properties are free and clear of liens, encumbrances and other charges, and are not subject of any
mortgage or other security arrangement.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending legal cases against the Company and its management that will have immediate
material effect on the financial position and operating results of the Company.

ITEM 4 SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No stockholders’ meeting was held between the period June to November, 2016.



PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS

The registrant’s common equity is principally traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The high
and low sales prices for every quarter ended are indicated in the table below:

2015 . 2016
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
Q1 31.00 18.00 19.70 17.20
Q2 35.00 23.90 20.60 16.00
Q3 28.50 25.75 24.95 19.80
Q4 B 26.00 17.78

The price of the Corporation’s common shares as of October 28, 2016 trading date was PhP23.00 per
share.

The number of Shareholders of record as of October 31 2016 was 25.

Recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuance of securities constituting an
exempt transaction

The Corporation has not sold any unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuances of
securities constituting an exempt transaction.

Top 20 Stockholders of Record of Common Shares as of October 31, 2016

Number of Common Percentage of
Stockholder Name Shares Held Shareholding

Camerton, Inc. 208,888,558 49.85
PCD Nominee Filiping 198,431,175 47.35
PCD Nominee Nen-Filipino 11,580,351 2.76
Ambrosio 1. Makalintal or Maripi A.

Makalintal 94,089 02
Beant Singh Grewal 37,000 .01
Pio Ma. Victor H. Garayblas 15,000 0
Stephen G. Soliven 146 0
Julius Victor Emmanuel D, Sanvictores 145 0
Owen Nathaniel S, Au ITF Li Marcus Au 106 0
Joselite C. Herrera 100 0
Jesus San Luis Valencia 62 0
Dondi Ron R, Limgence 1l 0
Robert Juanchito T. Dispo 1 0
Anthony 5. Buyawe 1 0
Brian Gregory Liu 1 0
Jerry Liu 1 0
Justin T. Liu 1 0
Michael Stephen Liu 1 0
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Nicanor P. Lizares 1 0
Martin Lorenzo 1 0
Ernest Fritz Server 1 0
Total 419,063,353 100

Top 20 Stockholders of Record of Preferred Shares as of October 31, 2016 (not registered with the SEC)

Number of Preferred Percentage of
Stockholder Name Shares Held Shareholding
Camerton, Inc. 400,000,000 100
Total 400,000,000 100

Dividends Declaration

On February 23, 2015, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend amounting to US Dollar One
Million Two Hundred Thousand (U$$1,200,000) or US Dollar 0.00389 (US$ 0.00389) per share, paid to
stockholders March 27, 2015 to stockholders of record as of March 10, 2015. The cash dividend was paid
in Philippine Peso at BSP exchange rate one day before payment date.

During a Special Meeting of the BOD on March 24, 2015, the BOD approved the declaration of 10%
stock dividends equivalent to 30,823,942 common shares, During the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held
on May 11, 2015, the shareholders approved and ratified the declaration of 10% Stock Dividends to
stockholders of record as of May 26, 2015 payable on June 18, 2015,

During a Special Meeting of the BOD on August 10, 2015, the BOD approved the declaration of cash
dividends amounting to US Dollar Nine Hundred Thousand (US$900,000), US Dollar 0.002628 (US$
0.002628) per common share and US Dollar 0.000022 (US$ 0.000022) per preferred share, paid on
August 28, 2015 to stockholders of record as of August 25, 2015. The cash dividend was paid in
Philippine Peso at BSP exchange rate one day before payment date,

During a Special Meeting of the BOD on January 27, 2016, the BOD approved the declaration of cash
dividend of US Dollar 0.0050 (US$ 0.0050) per share, for each of the Four Hundred Nineteen Million
Sixty-Three Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Three (419,063,353} fully paid and issued common shares,
and US Dollars 0.000021 {US$ 0,000021) per share for each of the Four Hundred Million (400,000,000)
outstanding preferred shares, amounting to an aggregate sum of US Dollars Two Million One Hundred
Thousand (US$ 2,100,000.00), for payment and distribution on 26 February 2016 to shareholders of
record as of 11 February 2016. The cash dividend was paid in Philippine Peso at BSP exchange rate one -
day before payment date.

During a special meeting of the BOD held on June 9 2016, the BOD approved the declaration of cash
dividend of US Dollars 0.00362 (US$ 0.00362) per share for each of the Four Hundred Nineteen Million
Sixty-Three Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Three (419,063,353) fully paid and issued common shares,
amounting to US Dollars One Million Five Hundred Twenty Thousand (US$ 1,520,000.00), for payment
and distribution on 7 July 2016 to shareholders of record as of 23 June 2016. The cash dividend shall be
paid in Philippine Pesos at the BSP exchange rate one day prior to payment date.

There are presently no restrictions that fimit the payment of dividend on common shares of the
Corporation.
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Owners of record of more than 5% of the Corporation’s voting securities as of March 31, 2016:

Title of Name, Name of Citizenship Number of Shares 9% of Class
Class Address of Beneficial Held
Record Owner and

Owner, and | Relationship

Relationship | with Record

with Issuer Owner
Common | Camerton, Camerton, Filipino

Inc. Inc. 208,888,558 49.85
Common | PCD Nominee | PCD Nominee Filipina

Corporation Corporation 198,431,175 47.35
Common | Total 407,318,733 97.20%

Under PCD account, the following participants hold shares representing more than 5% of the company’s
outstanding shares

Participant Number of Shares | Percentage
Guild Securities 64,560,754 15.40%
First Metro Securlties 63,523,627 15.18%
Meridian Securities 36,195,469 8.64%

ITEM 6 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

Overview

Cirtek Holdings Philippines Corp. (CHPC), through its subsidiaries Cirtek Electronics Corp. (CEC) and
Cirtek Electronics International Corp. (CEIC), provides a broad range of assembly and testing services for
various semiconductor devices and complex RF, microwave, millimeterwave, and advance antenna

systems.
CHPC through its subsidiaries harnesses more than 50 years of combined operating track record. The

Company’s products cover a wide range of applications and industries, including communications,
consumer electronics, power devices, computing, automotive and industrial,

Factors Affecting the Company’s Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

Cyclical Nature of the Electronics Industry

The worldwide electronics industry has experienced peaks and troughs over the years. From 2011 to
2013, the market has experience single-digit growth.

Market Conditions for End-User Application of Electronics

Market conditions in the electronics industry, to a large degree, track those for their end-user
applications. Any deterioration in the market conditions for the end-user applications of semiconductors
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that the Company assembles and tests may reduce demand for our services and, in turn, materially
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

The Company has a diversified customer base that operates in different industry spaces. Because of this,
the Company’s products are likewise used in different industries; this mitigates the effect of downturn in
certain industries to the Company’s operating results and financial outcomes. Customers are also
geographically diverse among Europe, U.S. and Asia; thus, the Company is not dependent on a single
geographical market.

Competitive Selfing Prices of Semiconductor and RF/Microwave Products

The semiconductor industry is characterized by a general decrease in prices for products and services
over time as a result of product and technology life cycles.

The Company constantly reviews and makes innovations in its product and assembly techniques to
improve yield and optimize productivity. The Company also prepares cost-reduction roadmaps which it
eventually pres Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on a historical cost basis except for
derivative liability and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) which is carried at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States (US) dollars ($), which is
also the Group’s functional and presentation currency. Fach entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items inciuded in the consolidated financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest US dollar except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on a historical cost basis except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and derivative liability which are carried at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States (US) dollars ($), which isthe
Group's functional and presentation currency. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest US dollar except
when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (see Notes 1 and 4):

Percentage of Ownership
Country of 2015 2014
Incorporation Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
CEC  Philippines 100 - 100 -
CEIC  British Virgin
Islands (BVI) 100 - 100 -
CATS (formerly known
as RBWI) BVI - 100 - 100
CATS - Philippine
Branch Philippines - 100 - 100
RemecBroadband
Wireless Real
Property
(RBWRP) Philippines - 100 - 100
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Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

. The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
. The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income {OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
contralling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as anequity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it;

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or foss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities

* & ® & s

Common control business combinations

Where there are group reorganizations and business combinations in which all the combining entities
within the Group are ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent (i.e., controlling shareholders)
before and after the business combination and the control is not transitory (business combinations under
common control), the Group accounts for such group reorganizations and business combinations similar
to a pooling-of-interests method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entities and that of the
Company are reflected at their carrying values at the stand-alone financial statements of the investee
companies. The difference in the amount recognized and the fair value of the consideration given is
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accounted for as an equity transaction, i.e., as either a contribution or distribution of equity. Further,
when a subsidiary is disposed in a common control transaction without loss of control, the
difference in the amount recognized and the fair value of consideration received is also accounted for as
an equity transaction.

The Group records the difference as equity reserve and is presented as a separate component of equity
in the consolidated balance sheet. Comparatives shall be restated to include balances and transactions
as if the entities have been acquired at the beginning of the earliest period presented in the consolidated
financial statements, regardless of the actual date of the combination.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
The nature and impact of each new standard and amendment is described below:

New and Amended Standards and Interpretations and Improved PFRS Adopted in Calendar Year 2015
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements of the previous
financial year, except for the adoption of the following new and amended standards and Philippine
Interpretations from IFRIC and improved PFRS which the Group has adopted starting January 1, 2015.
Uniess otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any significant impact on theconsoclidated financial
statements of the Group.

» Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions (Amendments)
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans.Where the contributions are linked to service, they should be
attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit.These amendments clarify that, if the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is
permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which
the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service, This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. It is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group, since none of the entities within
the Group has defined benefit plans with contributions from employees or third parties.

. Improvements to PFRSs
The Group has applied these Improvements to PFRSs for the first time in these consolidated
financial statements. They include:

2010-2012 Cycle

. PFRS 2, Share-based Payment Definition of Vesting Condition
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of
performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

0 A performance condition must contain a service condition

0 A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service

0 A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group

o) A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition

0 If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the

vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.

. PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination
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The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after July 1, 2014.It clarifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified as
equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within
the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (or PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, if early adopted). The Group shall consider this amendment for future business
combinations.

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of

the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

o} An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used
to assess whether the segments are “similar’.

0 The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosure for segment liabilities.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method
- Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset may
be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount.
In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between the gross
and carrying amounts of the asset.

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the related
party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose
the expenses incurred for management services.

2011-2013 cycle

PFRS 3 - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope

exceptions within PFRS 3.

o} Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.

o] This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in

PFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other
contracts within the scope of PAS 39,

PAS 40, Investment Property

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description of
ancillary services In PAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or
business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates between
investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment).

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Effective Subsequent to
December 31, 2015
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Effective January 1, 2016

.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement (2010 version)

PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39.

PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt
financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVQ) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Al other
debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity
financial assets are measured at fair value either through OCI or profit or loss. Equity financial
assets held for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities,
the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward into PFRS 9,
including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the FVO. The
adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. This
mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of

PFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC. Such adoption, however, is still for approval by the Board of
Accountancy (BOA).

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The Philippine SEC
and FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the
requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate
industry is completed. Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PAS 16 and PAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Amortization (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group given
that the Group has not used a revenue-based method to deprecfate its noncurrent assets.

PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants(Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biclogical assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
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maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to seil. For government grants related to bearer plants,
PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disctosure of Government Assistance, will apply.
The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periocds beginning on or after January 1,
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to
the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments)

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities already
applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements
will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS electing to use the
equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to apply this method
from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have any
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS
10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not).
A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are effective from
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
(Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting.  The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained.
In addition, scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group. :

PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to
rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial
position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures
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on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that
rate-regulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016. Since the Group is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard would not
apply.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Group. They include:

» PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through sale
to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that
changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

. PFRS 7, Financial Instruments; Disclosures - Servicing Contracts

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a setvicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess
the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether
the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which
servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively.
However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning
before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

. PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report
unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent annual
report.

. PAS 19 - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate
bonds is assessed based an the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the
country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate
bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

» PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by
cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within
the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective January 1, 2018

. PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39(2013 version)
PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting
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model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-
based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect of credit risk
on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item,
not only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the risk component is
separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of an option, the
forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be excluded from
the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as costs
of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 {2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. This
mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of

PFRS 9 was adopted by the Philippine FRSC. Such adoption, however, is still for approval by the
BOA.

PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandbtory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC.
The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.

The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements,

’ PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)

In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial
instruments project and replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is
permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015,

The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

The following new standards and amendments by the TASB has not yet been adopted by the Philippine
FRSC and SEC:

. IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising fram contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities
and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or
modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018 with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and
plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date once adopted locally.

. IFRS 16, Leases
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and
lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions.
This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases
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have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the entity, IFRS 16 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is
permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

. Amendments to International Accounting Standards (IAS) 12, Income Taxes - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
In January 2016, the IASB issued the amendments to IAS 12 which clarify how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The amendments also
address the diversity in practice regarding the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized
losses. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017,
with early application permitted.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seliing it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit
rates. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at FVPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, or available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at FVPL, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way purchases) are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling in the near term.

This category includes held for trading, designated at FVPL and derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by PAS 39. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at FVPL are carried in theconsolidated
balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not carried
at fair value. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Reassessment
only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required.

Financial assets designated as FVPL are designated by management on initial recognition when any of
the following criteria are met:

. The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on
a different basis; or

. The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

» The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group designated its investments in Unit Investment Trust Fund
(UITF) and RCBC Senior Notes as financial assets at FVPL.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, Such financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization
process.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has designated as loans and receivables its cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, amounts owed by related parties, and refundable deposits
(reported as part of ‘Other noncurrent assets’ in the consolidated balance sheet).

HTM investments .

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as
HTM when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial
measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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This method uses an effective interest rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Gains and losses
are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the investments are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has HTM investments in Philippine government securities.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not classified in
any of the three preceding categories. After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are measured at
fair value with unrealized gains or losses recognized directly in equity until the investment is
derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss recorded in equity is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative loss recorded in equity is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2015and 2014, the Group’s AFS financial asset pertains to unguoted equity shares of
Cloud Mondo Lkd.

Financial Liabilities

Inittal recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL, other financial
liabilities, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every financial reporting date.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at FVPL,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, short-term loan, long-term debt,
amounts owed to related parties and derivative liability.

Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these are not held for trading or not designated at
FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL.

Einancial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that do not
meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by PAS 39.

Gains and losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s derivative liability is classified as a financial liability at FVPL. The
Group does not have a financial liability at FVPL as of December 31, 2015.
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Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statementof comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through
the amortization process.

As of December 31, 2015and 2014, the Group has no other financial liabilities.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not
contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless
it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where use is made of data which is not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference amount.

Amortized cost of financial instruments -

Amortized cost is computed using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment
and principal repayment or reduction. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on
acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Ciassification of financial instruments between debt and equity
A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

. deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

. exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentiaily unfavorable to the Group; or

. satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial

asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset to
settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial Ifability, The compenents
of issued financial instruments that contain both lability and equity elements are accounted for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the
instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on
the date of issue.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
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to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
where cbservable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate {i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that
the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is
linked to and must be settied by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset.

AFS financial assets

For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss is removed
from equity and recognized in the consoclidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;
increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income Is based on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘interest income’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases
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and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and

. either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into pass
through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement in the asset,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be reguired to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the
case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar provision} on an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred in bringing
each inventory to its present location and conditionareaccounted for as follows:

Raw materials, spare parts, - purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis (FIFO);
supplies and others

Finished goods and work-in-

process inventories - cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing
overhead costs based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs.
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NRV of finished goods, work-in-process inventories and raw materials is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. NRV of supplies and spare parts is the current replacement costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred and if the recognition
criteria are met. Repairs and maintenance are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment as follows:

Category
Number of Years

Machinery and equipment 10-15
Buildings and improvements 5-25
Facitity and production tools 5-8
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5
Transportation equipment 5-7

The property, plant and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Constructioninprogress represents property under construction and is stated at cost. This includes costs
of construction and other direct costs. Constructioninprogress is not depreciated untif such time that the
relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use. When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, both the cost and related accumulated depreciation and any allowance
for impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited or
charged to current operations,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Noncurrent Asset Held for Sale

Property, plant and equipment are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction expected to be completed within one year from the date of
classification, rather than through continuing use. Property, plant and equipment held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale or distribution is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions
required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be
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made or that the sale will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within
one year from the date of the classification.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.Foreign currency exchange differences are included in the determination of
borrowing costs to be capitalized, but only to the extent that they are an adjustment to the interest cost
on the borrowing. No further guidance is given within the standard itself about how this is determined.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and expenditure is charged against income in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over seven years, useful economic life, and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each
balance sheet date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied In the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in theconsolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at
the cash-generating unit (CGU) level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the assessment can be supported,
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlfing interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as ofthe acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair

35



value with changes in fair value recognised either in either profit or loss or as a change to OCI, If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
profit or loss as “excess of the fair value of net assets over the aggregate consideration transferred.”

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGU retained.

Research and Development Costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale

its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

how the asset will generate future economic benefits

the availability of resources to complete the asset

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of
expected future benefit, which is estimated to be seven (7) years. Amortization is recorded in cost of
sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial asset may
be impaired. The Group has designated as nonfinancial assets its prepaid expenses and other current
assets, property and equipment and other noncurrent assets. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for a nonfinancial asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the
nonfinancial asset's recoverable amount. A nonfinancial asset’s estimated recoverable amount is the
higher of a nonfinancial asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
(VIU) and is determined for an individual asset, unless the nonfinancial asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other nonfinanciat assets or groups of nonfinancial
assets. Where the carrying amount of a nonfinancial asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,
the nonfinancial asset is considered impaired and is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.
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In assessing VIU, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the nonfinancial asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

For nonfinancial assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the nonfinancial asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If
that is the case the carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset is increased to its recoverabie amount.
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the nonfinancial asset in prior years, Such
reversal is recognized in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income,

Capital Stock

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Subscriptions receivable are accounted for as
a deduction from equity. Proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received in excess of par value, if
any, are recognized as additional paid-in capital (APIC).

Retained Earnings

The amount included in retained earnings includes profit or loss attributable to the Group’s equity holders
and reduced by dividends on capital stock. Retained earnings may also include effect of changes in
accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions.

Cash dividends

Cash dividends on capital stock are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the BOD. Dividends for the year that are approved after the financial reporting date are
dealt with as an event after the financial reporting date.

Stock dividends

Stock dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
shareholders representing not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Parent
Company. A stock dividend of at least 20% of the outstanding capital stock is considered as large stock
dividend and is measured at par value. A stock dividend of less than 20% is considered small stock
dividend and is measured at fair value.

Equity Reserve
Equity Reserve represents the effect of the application of the pooling-of-interests method.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding discounts, returns, rebates and other sales taxes or duties. The
Group assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
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Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest rate method. (i.e., the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Deferred Revenues
Deferred revenues pertain to the unearned income arising from the sale of goods wherein no actual
shipment or transfer of risks and rewards to customers has occurred yet. No amortization is done to
recognize the earned revenue since the Branch will make subsequent reversals upon shipment of the
goods to customers.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to equity participants. Operating expenses are recognized when incurred.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangements is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset. A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease only if one of the following
applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised and extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

C, There is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as a lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement Benefit Costs

The Group is covered by a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan. The net defined benefit
liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets, adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined
benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cast of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.
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Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

. Service cost
. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
. Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine
settiements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount
rate based on high quality corporate bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest on
the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income,

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods, These are retained in other comprehensive income until full
settlement of the obligation.

Foreign Currency Denominated Transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars, which is the functional and
presentation currency of all companies in the Group. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded at the functional currency spot rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date.

Al differences are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as ofthe dates of the initial transactions.

Taxes

Current tax

Current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the taxation authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the financial reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the financial
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or |
iability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future,
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits from excess minimum corporate Income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover
(NOLCO) to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be
utilized, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences ¢an be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow alt or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in the statement of
changes in equity and not in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends and
stock split.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net income and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares.

Segrment Reporting

For management purposes, the Group has determined that it is operating as one operating segment.
Sales are reported internally per division, however, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are reported on an
entity-wide basis. These information are measured using the same accounting policies and estimates as
the Group's consolidated financial statements (see Note 25).

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the
Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income, net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at apre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes toconsclidated financial statements
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. Contingent
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assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of econemic benefit is probable,

Events After the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the financial
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the interim financial statements. Post year-end events

that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes toconsolidated financial statements when
material,



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions
Results of Operations

For the six-month period ending June 30, 2016 compared to the six-month period ending
June 30, 2015

Revenue

The Company recorded consolidated revenues of US$32.5 million for the six months ending June 30,
2016 compared with US$28.3 million for the same period in 2015, an increase of 15%. The growth was
mainly accounted for by the sales contribution of the Antenna Systems and Cougar Businesses of Cirtek
ATS, and sales growth of CEC's Discrete, IC, and QFN Divisions. The other business lines and divisions
registered either flat growth or lower sales in the six months ending June 30, 2016 compared to the
same period in 2015.

Sales per division

In Us$ 000 For the Six Months ended June 30
2016 2015 % Inc/
{Dec)

CEC
Discrete 6,283 5331 18
Muiltichip 4,464 5,190 (14)
IC 3,970 3,781 5
QFN 2,351 2,240 5
New Products 2,754 2,730 1
Hermetics 760 896 {15)
CATS
Cougar 179 154 16
CGutdoor Unit 4,301 4,337 (1)
Indoor Unit 980 1,910 (49)
Bridgewave 943 897 5
Antenna Systems 4,570 - -
RMS 926 846 9

Total 32,481 28,312 15%

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

The Company’s cost of sales (COS) is composed of: raw materials, spare parts, supplies; direct salaries,
wages and employees’ benefits; depreciation and amortization; utility expenses directly attributable to
production, freight and duties; and changes in finished goods and work in process inventories. The
Company’s cost of sales increased by 15% to US$26.5 million in the six months ending June 30, 2016
from US$23 million for the same period in 2015. The increase was mainly due to rise in raw materials
expenses, salaries and wages, and inward freight and duties.

- Raw materials, spare parts, supplies and other inventories grew by 28% to U5$17.9
million for the six months ending June 30, 2016, from US$14 million for the same
period in 2015,
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- Salaries, wages and employees’ benefits increased by 7% to US$4.7 million for the
six months ending June 30, 2016, from US$4.4 million for the same period in 2015.

- Depreciation and amortization decreased by 28% to US$1.2 million for the six
months ending June 30, 2016, from US$1.1 million for the same period in 2015,

- Utility expenses amounted to US$1.7 million for the six months ending June 30,
2016, from US$1.9 million for the same period in 2015, an 8% decrease.

- Freight and duties increased by 19% to US$535 thousand for the six months ending
June 30, 2016 from US$450 thousand for the same period in 2015.

- Other cost of sales increased by 5% to US$367 thousand for the six months ending
June 30, 2016, from US$349 thousand for the same period in 2015.

The Company’s gross margin was 18% for the six months ending June 30, 2016, one
percentage point lower than the gross margin recorded for the same period in 2015

QOperating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$2.1 million,
16% higher compared to the US$1.8 million recorded during the same period in 2015.

Net Income (Loss) Before Income Tax

For the six months ending June 30, 2016, the Company recorded a net income before income
tax of US$3.7 million, an increase of 4% compared with the US$3.3 million recorded for the
same period in 2014. The increase can be attributed to higher sales in 2016.

Provision for Income Tax

Provision for income tax for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$125 thousand
compared with US$273 thousand for the same period in 2015, a decline of 54%.

Net Income After Tax

The Company’s net income after tax for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to Uss$3.5
million, an increase of 8% compared with US$3.3 million for the same period in 2015.

Financial Condition

For the six-month period ending June 30, 2016 compared to the period ending December 31,
2015

Assels

The Company’s cash and cash equivalent for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$30.6
million, compared with US$29.8 million for the period ending December 31, 2015, an increase of 3%

Trade and other receivables for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$14.2 million,
compared with US$13.8 million for the period ending December 31, 2015, a 4% decrease.

Inventory levels for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$5.9 million, 3% higher
compared with US$5.7 million for the period ending December 31, 2015.
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Finan_cial assets at fair value through profit and loss refer to short-term investments of the Company. For
the six months ending June 30 2016, short term investments amounted to US$18.2 million compared
with US$19.5 million for the period ending December 31, 2015, & 7% decrease.

For the six months ending June 30, 2016, amounts owed by related parties amounted to US$11.5 million,
compared to US$10.6 million for the period ending December 31, 2015.

Other current assets for the six months ending June 30, 2016 totaled US$3.3 million, compared with
US$2.5 million for the period ending December 31, 2015, an increase of 29%. The change was mainly
due to the increase in product development costs and advances to suppliers.

Non-current assets, comprised of Property, plant and equipment (PPE), available for sale investment,
deferred income taxes and other noncurrent assets for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to
1US$29.9 million compared with US$26.9 million for the period ending December 31, 2015.

Liabilities

The Company’s current liabilities is comprised of trade and other payables, short-term loan, long-term
debt — current portion and net of deferred financing costs, amounts owed to related parties deferred
revenue, dividends payable, and income tax payable. For the six months ending June 30, 2016, current
liabilities were at US$35.8 million compared with US$30.1 million for the period ending December 31,
2015, a 19% increase. This can be mainly attributed to increase in trade and other payables and short-
term loans.

For the six months ending June 30, 2016, the Company’s non-current liabilities, comprised of long-term
debt — net of current portion and deferred financing costs, deferred tax liability, and retirement henefit
obligation, amounted to US$18.4 million, a 5% decrease compared to US$19.3 million for the period
ending December 31, 2015.

Equity

The Company's shareholders’ equity as of the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$71.2
million, almost unchanged compared with the US$71.3 million for the period ending December 31, 2015.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the six months ending June 30, 2015, the Company’s principal sources of liquidity were cash from
sales of its products, bank credit facilities, proceeds from its 5-year corporate notes issuance and
proceeds from its follow-on offering. The Company expects to meet its working capital, capital
expenditure, dividend payment and investment requirements for the next 12 months primarily from the
proceeds of the Company’s proceeds of the Company’s corporate notes issuance, proceeds from its
follow-on offering, short-term credit facilities and cash flows from operations. It may also from time to
time seek other sources of funding, which may include debt or equity financings, including cdollar and
peso-denominated loans from Philippine banks, depending on its financing needs and market conditions.

For the next 12 months, the Company plans to expand the business by increasing volume deliveries to
existing customers, entering into new production agreements, expanding its customer base by
intensifying its sales and marketing activities and manufacturing new products, strengthening its R&D
capabilities to develop its own brand and products, and making strategic acquisitions to move up the
value chain.
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The following table sets out the Company’s cash flows for the six months ending June 30, 2016
and the same period in 2015:

For the six months

In US$ Thousands ending June 30
2016 2015

Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) operating

activities 7,750 6,124

Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) investing

activities (2,794) (11,960)

Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) financing

activities (5,639) (1,936)

Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents (6,997) (4,976) |

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash flow provided by operating activities was US$7.8 miliion for the six months ending June 30,
2016, compared with US$6.1 million for the same period in 2015.

For the six months ending June 30, 2016, net income before tax was US$3.7 million. After adjustments
for depreciation, unrealized foreign exchange gain/losses, interest income/expense, and excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, operating income before
change in working capital was US$5.2 million. Working capital decreased by US4$2.5 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to US$3 million for the six months ending June 30, 2016,
Investing activities mainly involved purchase of production-related machinery and equipment. For the
same period in 2015, cash used in investing activities totaled US$12 million, the bulk of which was in
investment in financial assets at FVPL and on production-related machinery and equipment and facility
and production tools.

Financing Activities

Net cash flow used for financing activities for the six months ending June 30, 2016 amounted to US$4.1
million. Major financing activities involved payment of cash dividends, payment of short-term and long-
term loans, interest and proceeds from short-term loans. For the same period in 2015 financing activities
amounted to US$122 thousand and mainly involved payment of cash dividends, interest payments and
proceeds from short-term bank facilities.

Material Changes to the Company’'s Unaudited Income Statement as of June 30,2016
compared to the Unaudited Income Statement as of June 30, 2015 (increase/decrease of
5% or more)

s« 15% increase in net sales
Net sales contribution of CATS

s 15% increase in cost of sales
Increase in net sales
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e 16% increase in operating expenses
Increase in manpower to support sales growth

s 45% decrease in Provision for Income Tax
Greater sales contribution from CEIC; new products Cirtek granted ITH

» 8% increase in Net Income After Tax
Increase in sales, lower income tax

Material Changes to the Company’s Unaudited Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2016 compared
to the Audited Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)

¢ 7% decrease in Financial Asset at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Partial redemption of financial asset

s 79% decrease in Held to Maturity Investments
Partial maturity of investments

s 199% increase in Other Current Assets
Increase in advances to suppliers

« 13% increase in Property, Plant and Equipment
New capital expenditure

e 29% increase in Trade Payables
Increase in production volume

s 12% increase in Short-term Loan
Increase in working capital requirements

» 18% decrease in Long-term Debt -- current portion
Reduction in long-term debt

» 5% reduction in Long-term Debt -- net of current portion
Reduction in long-term debt

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s top five (5) key performance indicators are listed below:

Amounts in thousand 2013 2014 2015 Six months
US$, except ratios, and ended June
where indicated 30 2016

EBITDA 7,492 9,558 | 8,767 5,127
EBITDA Margin 17% i8% | 15% 16%
Sales Growth B% 18% | 15% 15%*
Current Ratio {x) 5x 35x| 3.1x 2.7x
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Earnings per share** 0.014 0.017 | 0.013 0.008
(Us$)

Note:

*Compared with same period in 2015

**Earnings per Share was calculated using CHPC's average outstanding common shares from January 1
to June 30 2016 for 2016 and full year for the years 2013, 2014, and 2015

= EBITDA and EBITDA Margin

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) provides an indication of the
rate of earnings growth achieved.

The EBITDA margin shows earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization as a
percentage of revenue. It is a measure of how efficiently revenue is converted into EBITDA.

EBITDA and EBITDA Margin are not measures of performance under PFRS, and investors should not
consider EBITDA and EBITDA Margin in isolation or as alternatives to net income as an indicator of
our Company’s operating performance or to cash flow from operating, investing and financing
activities as a measure of liquidity, or any other measures of performance under PFRS. Because there
are various EBITDA and EBITDA Margin calculation methods, the Company’s presentation of these
measures may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies.
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The following table sets out the Company’s EBITDA after consolidation entries.

For the years ended Six months ended

December 31 June 30
In US$ 000 2013 2014 2015 2016
Net income 4,637 5,844 3,256 3,529
Add back:
Interest expense/income-
net 285 519 361 252
Provision for
income tax 260 79 273 125
Depreciation and
amortization 2,310 2,901 1,676 1,221
5,566
EBITDA 7,492 8,385 5,127
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The table sets forth a reconciliation of the Company's consolidated EBITDA to consolidated net

income.
Six months
For the years ended Ended June
December 31 30
In USs 000 2013 2014 2015 2016
EBITDA 7,492 8,385 5,566 5,127
Deduct:
Interest
expense/{income) (285) {519) (361) (252)
Provision for
income tax (260) (79) (273) (125)
Depreciation and
amortization (2,310) (2,901) (1,676) {1,221)
Net Income 4,637 5,844 3,256 3,529

= Sales growth
Sales growth is a key indicator of the Company’s ability to grow the business
v  Current ratio

Current ratio measures a company’s short-term liquidity, i.e. its ability to pay its debts that are due
within the next 12 months. It is expressed as the ratio between current assets and current liabilities.

o FEarnings per share

Earnings per share show the Company's attributable profit earned per share, At constant outstanding
number of shares, as the Company's earnings increase, the earnings per share correspondingly increase.

FINANCIAL RISK DISCLOSURE

The Company is not aware of any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will have a material impact on the Company’s liquidity.

The Company is not aware of any event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including default or acceleration of any obligation.

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period,

The Company has allocated up to US$3 Million for capital expenditure for full year 2015, from the
proceeds of the Company’s Initial Public Offering and cash flows from operations. It may also from time
to time seek other sources of funding, which may include debt or equity financings, including dollar and
peso-denominated ioans from Philippine banks, depending on its financing needs and market conditions.
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The Company is not aware of any trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from
continuing operations.

The Company does not have any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from its
continuing operations.

The Company does not have any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial conditions
or results of operations.
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Results of Operations

For the 12-month period ending December 31, 2015 compared to the 12-month period
ending December 31, 2014

Revenue
The Company recorded consolidated revenues of US$59.5 million for the 12 months ending December
31, 2015, an increase of 15% from US$51.8 million for the same period in 2014, The increase was

accounted for by the growth of both the Company’s semiconductor and RF/microwave/millimeterwave
businesess.

Sales per division

In US§ 000 For the 12 months ended December 31
2015 2014 % Inc /
{Dec)

CEC
Discrete 11,296 10,800 5
Multichip 10,163 9,629 6
1IC 8,119 8,556 {5)
QFN 5,143 3,848 34
New Products 5,415 5,221 4
Hermetics 2,083 2,008 4
CATS
Cougar 329 150 119
Qutdoor Unit 10,200 8,003 27
Indoor Unit 1,691 - -
Bridgewave 2,332 1,534 52
IRFU 2,493 1,009 147
RMS 285 _ 1,034 72

Total 59,549 51,792 15%

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

The Company’s cost of sales (COS) is composed of: raw materials, spare parts, supplies; direct salaries,
wages and employees’ benefits; depreciation and amortization; utility expenses directly attributable to
production, freight and duties; and changes in finished goods and work in process inventories. The
Company's cost of sales increased by 13% to US$50 million in the 12 months ending December 31, 2015
from US$44.3 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was mainly due to a rise in raw materials
expenses as a result of higher sales, higher salaries and wages, , and increase in inward freight and
duties.
Raw materials, spare parts, supplies and other inventories grew by8% to US$30.7 million for the
12 months ending December 31, 2015 from US$28.4 million for the same period in 2014,
- Salaries, wages and employees’ benefits increased by 5% to US$8.2 million for the 12months
~ ending December 31, 2015, from US$7.8 million for the same period in 2014.
Freight and duties increased by 30% to US$960 thousand for the 12 months ending
December 31, 2015 from US$739 thousand for the same period in 2014,
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- Other cost of sales increased by 65% to US$845 thousand for the 12 months ending
December 31, 2015 from US%$513 thousand for the same period in 2014,

The Company’s gross margin was 16% for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015, one percentage
point higher than the gross margin recorded for the same period in 2014,

Operating Expenses

The Company's operating expenses for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 amounted to US$3.8
million, 15% higher compared to the US$3.3 million recorded during the same period in 2014.

Net Income (Loss) Before Income Tax

For the 12 months ending December 31 2015, the Company recorded a net income before income tax of
US$5.6 million, a decrease of 7% compared with US$6.1 million recorded for the same period in 2014.
In 2014, the Company recognized a gain from the excess of the fair market value of net assets over the
acquisition cost (RBW acquisition) amounting to US$2.6 million. In terms of core income (i.e. excluding
negative goodwill) the Company registered a gain of 35%, with core income at US$5.1 million for the 12
months ending December 31, 2015, compared to US$3.8 million for the same period in 2014.

Provision for Income Tax

Provision for income tax for the 12 months ending December 31 2015 amounted to US$516 thousand
compared with US$207 thousand for the same period in 2014, an increase of 149%. This was mainly a
result of higher sales generated by CEC and CATS.

Net Income After Tax

The Company’s net income for the 12 months ending December 31 2015 amounted to US$5.1 million, a-
decrease of 12% compared with U$$5.8 million for the same period in 2014.

52



Financial Condition

For the 12-month period ending December 31, 2015 compared fo the period ending
December 31, 2014

Assets

The Company’s cash and cash equivalent for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 amounted to
US$29.8 million, compared with US$12.6 million for the period ending December 31, 2014, an increase of
US$17.2 million or 136%. The increase was mainly due to the proceeds from the follow-on offering
completed by the Company in November 2015.

Trade and other receivables for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 amounted to US$13.8 million,
compared with US$14.9 million for the period ending December 31, 2014, an 8% decline. The decrease,
despite an increase in the Company's consolidated sales, translates to more efficient collection of
receivables in 2015,

Inventory levels for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 amounted to US$5.7 million, 47% lower
compared with US$10.8 million for the period ending December 31, 2014, The decrease was mainly due
to reduction in work in process inventory..

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss refer to short-term investments of the Company. For
the 12 months ending December 31, 2015, short term investments amounted to US$19.4 million
compared with US$702 thousand for the period ending December 31 2014, an increase of 26.7x. The
increase was due to certain portion of proceeds from the Company's FOO placed in short-term
investments until the funds are utilized,

Other current assets for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 totaled US$2.5 million, compared with
US$1.8 million for the period ending December 31 2014, an increase of 4%. The change was mainly due
to security deposit and prepaid expenses.

Non-current assets, comprised of Property, plant and equipment (PPE), Available-for-sale (AFS) financial
asset, deferred income taxes and other noncurrent assets for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015
amounted to US$26.9 million compared with US$19.1 million for the period ending December 31, 2014,
an increase of 41% The increase was mainly due to increase in PPE and AFS financial asset.

Liabilities

The Company's current liabilities is comprised of trade and other payables, long-term debt — current
portion and net of deferred financing costs, short-term loan, amounts owed to related parties, income tax
payable, dividends payable and derivative liability. For the 12 months ending December 31, 2015,
current liabilities were at US$30.1 million compared with US$16.3 million for the period ending December
31, 2014, an 84% increase. This can be mainly attributed to increase in trade and other receivables,
short-term loan and current portion of long-term debt.

For the 12 months ending December 31, 2015, the Company’s non-current liabilities, comprised of long-
term debt — net of current portion and deferred financing costs and retirement benefit obligation,
amounted to US$20.9 million, a 24% decrease compared to US$25.3 million for the period ending
December 31, 2014. The increase was mainly due to decrease in long-term debt and retirement benefit
obligation.
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Equity

The Company’s shareholders’ equity as of the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 amounted to
US$71.2 million compared with US$35 million for the period ending December 31, 2014, a 100%
increase. The increase in equity was due to additional paid-in capital and profits recorded by the
Company in 2015, less cash dividends paid out during the year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the 12 months ending December 31, 2015, the Company’'s principal sources of liquidity was cash
from sales of its products, IPO proceeds, bank credit facilities,proceeds from its 5-year corporate notes
issuance, and proceeds from its follow-on offering. The Company expects to meet its working capital,
capital expenditure, dividend payment and investment requirements for the next 12 months primarily
from the proceeds of the Company’s Initial Public Offering, proceeds of the Company’s corporate notes
issuance, short-term credit facilities and cash flows from operations. It may also from time to time seek
other sources of funding, which may include debt or equity financings, including dollar and peso-
denominated loans from Philippine banks, depending on its financing needs and market conditions.

For the next 12 maonths, the Company plans to increase its production further by increasing volume
deliveries to existing customers, entering into new production agreements, and expanding its customer
base by intensifying its sales and marketing activities.

The following table sets out the Company’s cash flows for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 and
the same period 2014:

For the 12 months
In US$ Thousands ending December 31
2015 2014
Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) operating activities 16,973 3,851
Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) investing activities {28,900} (1,642)
Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) financing activities 29,041 3,320
Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents 17,174 5578

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash flow provided by operating activities was US$17 million for the 12 months ending December 31,
2015, compared with US$3.9 million for the same period in 2014,

For the 12 months ending December 31, 2015, net income before tax was US$5.6 million. After
adjustments for depreciation, unrealized foreign exchange gain/iosses, interest income/expense, and
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, operating
income before change in working capital was US$8.4 million. Changes in working capital increased
operating income to US$17.7 million. This was mainly due to decrease in inventories and recelvables,
and increase in trade and other payables.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to US$28.9 million for the 12 months ending December
31, 2015. Investing activities on 2015 mainly involved investment in financial assets at FVPL, AFS
financial asset, and acquisition of property, plant and equipment. For the same period in 2014, major
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investing activities involved investment in financial asset at FVPL, acquisition of property, pland and
equipment and net payment for acquisition of REMEC.

Financing Activities

Net cash flow from financing activities for the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 amounted to US$29
million. Major financing activities involved proceeds from availment of short-term loan, proceeds from
issuance of common stock and preferred stock, less payment of cash dividends, payment of short-term
and long-term loans, interest and stock issue cost, and net movement in amounts owed by and owed to
related parties. For the same period in 2014 financing activities amounted to US$3.3 million and mainty
involved proceed from short-term loan and long-term debt, less payment of cash dividends, interest
payments, payments of short term and ong term loan and net movement in amounts owed by and owed
to related parties.

Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Income Statement as of December 31, 2015
compared to the Audited Income Statement as of December 31, 2014 (increase/decrease of
5% or more)

s 159% increase in net sales
Sales growth for both CEC anf CATS

e 13% increase in cost of sales
Increase in net sales

e 15% increase in operating expenses
Full-year consolidation of CATS operating expenses

s 7% decrease in Net Income Before Tax
Net Income in 2014 was significantly boosted by negative goodwill (gain from the excess of the fair
market value of net assets over the acquisition cost [Remec acquisition]).

» 149% increase in Provision for Income Tax
Higher taxable income for CEC and CATS

» 12% decrease in Net Income After Tax
In 2014, Net Income was significantly boosted by negative goodwill (gain from the excess of the fair
market value of net assets over the acquisition cost (Remec acquisition)

Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015
compared to the Audited Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014 (increase/decrease of 5%
or more)

« 136% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent
Proceeds from the Company's follow-on offering

s 8% decrease in Trade and Other Receivables — Net
-Improved collection efficiency

»  47% decrease in inventories
Reduction in work in process inventory
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« 26.7x increase in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Certain portion of proceeds from the Company's FOO placed in short-term investments until the
funds are utilized

e 41% increase in Non-current Assets
Increase in PPE and AFS financial assets

s B4% increase in Current Liabilities
Increase in trade and other receivables, short-term loan and current portion of long-term debt

s 24% decrease in Non-current Liabilities
Decrease in long-term debt and retirement benefit obligation

+ 100% increase in Total Equity
Additional paid-in capital and profits recorded by the Company in 2015, less cash dividends paid out
during the year

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 COMPARED TO THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Revenue

The Company recorded consolidated revenues of US$51.8 million for the 12 months ended December 31,
2014, an increase of 18% from US$44 million for the same period in 2013. The growth was accounted
for by the growth of the Company’s Multichip and Hermetics Divisions and contribution from the CATS
business.

Sales per division

For the 12 months ended Dec o
In US$ 000 31 /EDIQE)/
2014 2013

CEC
Discrete 10,800 11,506 {6)
Multichip 9,629 8,878 8
IC 8,556 9,903 (14)
QFN 3,848 5,097 (25)
New Products 5,221 6,704 (22)
Hermetics 2,008 1,896 6

CATS '
Cougar 150 - -
QOutdoor Unit 8,003 - -
Indoor Unit - : - -
Bridgewave 1,534 - -
IRFU 1,009 - -
RMS 1,034

Total 51,792 43,984 18%
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Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

The Company's cost of sales (COS) is composed of: raw materials, spare parts, supplies; direct salaries,
wages, and empioyees’ benefits; depreciation and amortization; utility expenses directly attributable to
production, freight and duties; and changes in finished goods and work-in-process inventories. The
Company’s cost of sales increased by 25% to US$44.3 million in the 12 months ended December 31,
2014 from US$35.5 million for the same period in 2013. The increase was mainly due to a rise in raw
materials expenses as a result of higher sales, as well as higher salaries and wages, utilities and
depreciation due to the acquisition of a new operating company.

1. Raw materials, spare parts, supplies and other inventories grew by 24% to US$28.4 million for
the 12 months ended December 31, 2014 from US$23 million for the same period in 2013.

2. Salaries, wages and employees’ benefits increased by 10% to US$7.8 million for the 12months
ended December 31, 2014, from US$7.1 million for the same period in 2013.

3. Depreciation and amortization increased by 26% to US$2.8 million for the 12 months ended
December 31, 2014 from US$2.3 million for the same period in 2013.

4, Utility expenses amounted to US$3.6 million for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014, from
US$3.4 million for the same period in 2013, an increase of 4%.

5. Freight and duties increased by 4% to US$739 thousand for the 12 months ended December 31,

2014 from US$709 thousand for the same period in 2013. Other cost of sales increased by 35%
to US$513 thousand for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014 from US$378 thousand for the
same period in 2013,

The Company’s gross margin was 15% for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014, four percentage
points lower than the gross margin recorded for the same period in 2013.

Operating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014 amounted to US$3.3
million, 37% higher compared to the US$2.4 million recorded during the same period in 2013.

Net Income (Loss) Before Income Tax

For the 12 months ended December 31 2014, the Company recorded a net income before income tax of
US$6.1 million, an increase of 24% compared with US$4.9 million recorded for the same period in 2013,
The increase can be attributed to the gain from the excess of the fair market value of net assets over the
acquisition cost (RBW acquisition).

Provision for Income Tax

Provision for income tax for the 12 months ended December 31 2014 amounted to US$207 thousand
compared with US$260 thousand for the same period in 2013, a decrease of 20%. The decrease was
due to the lower taxable income of CEC in 2014,

Net Income After Tax

The Company’s net income for the 12 months ended December 31 2014 amounted to US$5.8 million, an
increase of 26% compared with US$4.6 million for the same period in 2013.
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Financial Condition
Assels

The Company’s cash and cash equivalent as of December 31, 2014 amounted to US$12.6 million,
compared with US$7 million as of December 31, 2013, an increase of US$5.6 million or 79%. The
increase was mainly due to proceeds from the corporate notes issued by the Company in December
2014,

Trade and cther receivables as of December 31, 2014 amounted to US$14.9 million, compared with US$4
million as of December 31, 2013, a 273% increase. The increase was mainly due to the effect of
consolidation of a subsidiary’s trade and other receivables.

Inventory levels as of December 31, 2014 amounted to US$10.8 million, 43% higher compared with
US$7.5 million as of December 31, 2013. This was mainly due to the effect of consolidation of a
subsidiary's inventory.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss refer to short-term investments of the Company. As
of December 31, 2014, short term investments amounted to US$702 thousand compared with US$8
million as of December 31 2013, a 91% decline. The proceeds from the short term investment were
used to fund the Company’s recent acquisition.

Other current assets as of December 31, 2014 totaled US$1.8 million, same with US$1.8 million as of
December 31 2013.

Non-current assets comprised of Property, plant and equipment (PPE), deferred income taxes and other
noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2014 amounted to US$19.1 million compared with US$16.6 million
as of December 31, 2013, an increase of 15%. The increase in was due to consolidation of a subsidiary’s

noncurrent assets.
Liabilities

The Company’s current liabilities are comprised of trade and other payables, long-term debt — current
portion and net of deferred financing costs, short-term loan, amounts owed to related parties, income tax
payable, dividends payable and derivative liability. As of December 31, 2014, current labilities were at
US$16.3 million compared with US$6.2 million as of December 31, 2013, a 165% increase. This can be
mainly attributed to increase in trade and other payables, short-term loan and current portion of long-
term debt.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s non-current liabilities, comprised of long-term debt — net of
current portion and deferred financing costs and retirement benefit obligation, amounted to US$25.3
million, a 139% increase compared to US$10.6 million as of December 31, 2013. The increase was mainly
due to increase in long-term debt.

Equity
The Company’s shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2014 amounted to US$35 million compared with

US$30.5 million as of December 31, 2013, a 15% increase. The increase in equity was due to profits
recorded by the Company in 2014, less cash dividends paid out during the year.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the 12 months ended December 31, 2014, the Company’s principal sources of liquidity were cash
from sales of its products, initial public offering (IPO) proceeds, bank credit facilities and proceeds from
its S5-year corporate notes issuance. The Company expects to meet its working capital, capital
expenditure, dividend payment and investment requirements for the next 12 months primarily from the
proceeds of the Company’s IPO, proceeds of the Company’s corporate notes issuance, short-term credit
facilities and cash flows from operations. It may also from time to time seek other sources of funding,
which may include debt or equity financings, including dollar and peso-denominated loans from Philippine
banks, depending on its financing needs and market conditions.

For the next 12 months, the Company plans to increase its production further by increasing volume
deliveries to existing customers, entering into new production agreements, and expanding its customer
base by intensifying its sales and marketing activities.

The following table sets out the Company’s cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and2013:

For the 12 months ended
In US$ Thousands December 31
2014 2013
Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) operating activities 3,851 8,605
Net cash flows provided by/ {used for) investing activities (1,642) (11,496)
Net cash flows provided by/ (used for) financing activities 3,320 (3,099)
Net increase {decrease) in cash equivalents 5,529 (5,990)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash flow provided by operating activities was US$3.9million for the 12 months ended December 31,
2014, compared with US$8.6 million for the same period in 2013.

For the 12 months ended December 31, 2014, net income before tax was US$6.1million. After
adjustments for depreciation and amortization, unrealized foreign exchange gain/losses, interest
income/expense, change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL, mark-to-market loss on forward
contracts, and excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, operating income before change in working capital was US$7.4 million. Changes in working
capital reduced operating income by US$3.6 million. This was mainly due to increase in trade and other
receivables.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to US$1.6 million for the 12 months ended December 31,
2014. Investing activities mainly involved payment of consideration for a company acquired,purchase of
production-related machinery and equipment, and proceeds from financial assets at FVPL. For the same
period in 2013, cash used in investing activities totaled US$11,5 million, the bulk of which was spent on
production-refated machinery and equipment and facility and production tools.

Financing Activities

Net cash flow used for financing activities for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014 amounted fo
US$3.3 million. Major financing activities involved payment of cash dividends, payment of short-term and
long-term loans, interest and proceeds from availment of short-term loan and long term debt. For the
same period in 2013 financing activities amounted to US$3.1 million and mainly involved payment of cash
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dividends, interest payments, payments of short term and long term loan and proceeds from short-term
bank facilities.

Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Income Statement as of December 31, 2014
compared to the Audited Income Statement as of December 31, 2013 (increase/decrease of
5% or more)

18% increase in net sales
Growth of Multichip and Hermetics Divisions, and net sales contribution of new subsidiary

25% increase in cost of sales
Increase in net sales

37% increase in operating expenses
Consolidation of a subsidiary’s operating expenses

24% increase in Net Income Before Tax
Gain from the excess of the fair market value of net assets over the acquisition cost (RBW
acquisition).

20% decrease in Provision for Income Tax
Lower taxable income of CEC

26% increase in Net Income After Tax
Gain from the excess of the fair market value of net assets over the acquisition cost (RBW
acquisition) and other comprehensive income

Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014
compared to the Audited Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2013 (increase/decrease of 5%
or more)

79% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent
Proceeds from corporate notes issued by the Company

273% increase in Trade and Other Receivables — Net
Consolidation of a subsidiary’s trade and other receivables

43% increase in inventories
Consolidation of a subsidiary’s inventories

91% decrease in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds used to fund acquisition of new company

15% increase in Other Non-current Assets
Consolidation of a subsidiary’s noncurrent assets

165% increase in Current Liabilities
Increase in trade and other receivables, short-term loan and current portion of long-term debt

139% increase in Non-current Liabilities
Increase in long-term debt
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s 15% increase in Total Equity
Increase in retained earnings

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s top five (5) key performance indicators are listed below:

Amounts in thousand US$, 2013 2014 2015
except ratios, and where

indicated

EBITDA 7,492 9,558 8,767
EBITDA Margin 17% 18% 15%
Sales Growth 8% 18% 15%
Current Ratio (x) 5 X 3.5 % 3.1x
Earnings per share (US$) 0.014 £.070 0.013

Note:
**Earnings per Share was calculated using CHPC's average outstanding common shares for the years
2013, 2014 and 2015

«  EBITDA and EBITDA Margin

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA} proVides an indication of the
rate of earnings growth achieved.

The EBITDA margin shows earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization as a
percentage of revenue. It is a measure of how efficiently revenue is converted into EBITDA.

EBITDA and EBITDAR Margin are not measures of performance under PFRS, and investors should not
consider EBITDA and EBITDA Margin in isolation or as alternatives to net income as an indicator of
our Company’s operating performance or to cash flow from operating, investing and financing
activities as a measure of liquidity, or any other measures of performance under PFRS. Because there
are various EBITDA and EBITDA Margin calculation methods, the Company’s presentation of these
measures may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies.
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The following table sets out the Company's EBITDA after consclidation entries.

For the years ended December 31

In US$ 000 2013 2014 2015
Net income 4,637 5,844 5,120
Add back:
Interest expense/income-
net 285 519 941
Provision for
income tax 260 79 516
Depreciation and
amortization 2,310 2,901 2,190
EBITDA 7,492 9,558 8,767

The table sets forth a reconciliation of the Company’s consolidated EBITDA to consolidated net income.

For the years ended December 31

In USs 000 2013 2014 2015
EBITDA 7,492 9,553 8,767
Deduct:
Interest
expense/{income) {285) {519) (941)
Provision for
income tax (260) (79) (516)
Depreciation and
amertization (2,310) (2,901) (2,190)
Net Income 4,637 5,844 5,120

= Sales growth

Sales growth is a key indicator of the Company’s ability to grow the business
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s Current ratio

Current ratio measures a company's short-term liquidity, i.e, its ability to pay its debts that are due
within the next 12 months. It is expressed as the ratio between current assets and current liabilities.

s Farnings per share

Earnings per share show the Company’s attributable profit earned per share. At constant outstanding
number of shares, as the Company's earnings increase, the earnings per share correspondingly
increase,
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FINANCIAL RISK DISCLOSURE

The Company is not aware of any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will have a material impact on the Company's liquidity.

The Company is not aware of any event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including default or acceleration of any obligation.

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obiigations (inciuding
contingent obligations), and other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period.

The Company has allocated up to US$8 Million for capital expenditure for full year 2016, from the
proceeds of the Company’s Initial Public Offering and cash flows from operations. It may also from time
to time seek other sources of funding, which may include debt or equity financings, including dollar and
peso-denominated loans from Philippine banks, depending on its financing needs and market conditions.

The Company is not aware of any trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from

continuing operations.

The Company does not have any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from its
continuing operations.

The Company does not have any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial conditions
or results of operations.
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ITEM 7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please see attached Audited Financial Statements ending 31 December 2015.

ITEM 8 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None,
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PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 9 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

Except for Mr. Roberto Juanchito T. Dispo, who was elected as Director, President and Vice Chairman of
the Corporation, the rest of the Directors and officers

named herein have served in their respective positions since May 11 2015. The Directors of the
Corporation were elected at the annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation to hold office unti
the next succeeding annual meeting of the stockholders and until the respective successors have been
elected and qualified.

The Officers were elected by the Board of Directors at the organizational meeting of the Board on May 11
2015. The Board also elected during the said meeting the chairman and members of the Audit
Committee, the Nominations Committee, and the Compensation Committee.

The following is a brief profile of the Corporation’s Directors and Officers for the year 2015-2016.

Jerry Liu, 68 years old was elected as the Company’s Chairman and President on May 25, 2012, He is
concurrently President/CEQ of CEC, Director of Cirtek Land and Cayon Holdings, Inc. and Chairman of
Silicon Link, Inc., Mr, Liu holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from Chung Yuan University of
Taiwan and an MBA from the University of the East.

Roberto Juanchito T. Dispo, 51 years old was elected Vice Chairman and Director of the Company on
January 4, 2016. Mr. Dispo is also Vice Chairman of Cosco Capital, and sits on the Board of PB Com Bank
and Axa Philippines. Prior to joining the Company, Mr, Dispo was President and Director of First Metro
Investment Corporation. Mr, Dispo holds BSC Economics and Business Management from San Sebastian
Coliege and Pamantasan ng Lungsed ng Maynila, respectively. He also completed Masters in Business
Administration and Masters in Business Economics from Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Maynila and the
University of Asia & the Pacific, respectively.

Nicanor Lizares, 52 vears old was elected as a director of the Company on February 17, 2011. He is
also a director of Pancake House, Inc., and Cirtek Holdings, Inc. He is a partner of Aureos Philippine
Advisers, Inc., Mr. Lizares has a Master of Science in Industrial Economics from the Center for Research
and Communications and an M.A. in International Relations from Boston University.

Anthony Buyawe, 48 years old was elected as the Company’s Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer on
February 17, 2011. He is concurrently the CFO of CEC, CEIC and the Figaro Coffee Company. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Buyawe was CFO of ITP Technologies (2003 - 2005) and SMEDC (2008-2009)
and Senior Director of Ernst and Young (2005-2008), Mr. Buyawe obtained his BA degree from the
University of the Philippines and his MBA from the Asian Institute of Management.

Rafael G. Estrada, 63, is Chairman and President of First National Holdings Corporation and Chairman
of Delta Agrivet Commercial, Inc. and Waterfor Catasiao, Inc. Previously, Mr. Estrada served as Vice
Chairman of the Social Security System, and served as director for Land Bank of the Philippines, Union
Bank of the Philippines, Manila Doctors Hospital and Medical Center Manila. He obtained is BS
Management degree from the University of Sto. Tomas and his MBA (candidate) from the University of
Virginia.

Michael Stephen Liu, 31 years old, is currently the General Manager of Cirtek Advanced Technology
and Solutions (CATSI) a Cirtek company catering to the telecom and wireless broadband space. He was
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first elected as Director on May 11, 2015. Mr. Liu obtained his degree in Electronics and Communications
Engineering from De La Salle University in 2007 and is a licensed Electrical Engineer.

Brian Gregory T. Liu, 29 years old, has been the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company since
March 2011, He is concurrently a stockholder in Cirtek Electronics Corporation, Cirtek Land Corporation,
and Turborg Trading. Mr. Liu trained as an Operations Trainee in Dominos Pizza from 2001 to 2002, then
as an Analyst in Evergreen Stockbrokerage & Securities Inc. from 2003 to 2005, He obtained his degree
in Management in Financial Institutions from De La Salle University in 2009.

Martin Ignacio P. Lorenzo, 50 years old was elected as an Independent Director of the Company on
February 17, 2011 and shall serve as such for one year or until his successor is elected and qualified. Mr.
Lorenzo is the Chairman and President of Pancake House, Inc and Chairman as well as partner of
Macondray & Co., Inc., Mr. Lorenzo graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of
Science in Management Engineering and earned his MBA from the Wharton Graduate School, University
of Pennsylvania in 1990,

Ernest Fritz Server, 72 years old, was elected as an Independent Director of the Company on February
17, 2011 and shall serve as such for one year or until his successor is elected and qualified. Mr. Server
serves as the President of Multimedia Telephony Inc., Vice Chairman of RFM Corporation and a director
of Philippine Township, Inc. Previously, Mr. Server served as Vice Chairman of the Commercial Bank of
Manila, Consumer Bank and Cosmos Bottling Company and President of Philippine Home Cable Holdings,
Inc. and Philam Fund. Mr. Server graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1963 with degree in
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and holds an MBA Major in Banking and Finance from the University
of Pennsylvania, Wharton Graduate School.

Key Officers

Tadeo Hilado, 63 years old, was elected as the Company’s Corporate Secretary on February 17, 2011,
Atty. Tadeo is a senior partner at the Angara Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz law offices. He also serves
as director and corporate secretary of several companies including Vitarich Corporation, Cocoa
Specialties, Inc., Univation Motor Philippines, Inc,, Nissan Autoparts Manufacturing Corporation,
Sumisetsu Philippines, Inc., and Samsonite Philippines, Inc., among others. Atty. Tadeo holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree from the De La Salle University, Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the
Philippines and a Master of Laws degree from the University of Michigan.
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ITEM 10 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

As a newly incorporated holding company, the Company has not paid or accrued any compensation prior
to 2011. The aggregate compensation during the last fiscal year and to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year
to the company’s 4 most highly compensated officers and to its officers and directors as a Cirtek Group
unnamed is as follows:

Name & Position Year Salary Bonus

Jerry Liu (President) 2015 -25.0 million £4.0 million
Anthony Buyawe {CFQO)
Domingo Bonifacio
(President CATS)

Rolando Enriquez (Vice
President CATS)

Jorge Aguilar {President CEC
Aggregate compensation paid | 2015 £ 30.0 million B 6.0 million
to all officers and directors as
a Cirtek Group unnamed

Name & Position Year Estimated Salary Estimated Bonus _
Jerry Liu (Chairman) 2016 $£-40.0 milfion £8.0 million
Roberto Juanchito Dispo

(President)

Anthony Buyawe (CFQ)
Rolando Enriquez (Vice
President CATS)

Jorge Aguilar (President CEC)

Aggregate compensation paid | 2016 R 45 million £ 10.0 million
to all officers and directors as
a Cirtek Group unnamed

Compensation of Directors

Under the By-Laws of the Company, by resolution of the Board, each director, shall receive a reasonable
per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As compensation, the Board shall
receive and allocate an amount of not more than ten percent (10%) of the net income before income tax
of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation shall be determined and apporticned
among directors in such manner as the Board may deem proper, subject to the approval of stockholders
representing at least majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the
stockholders.

Standard Arrangements and Other Arrangements

There are no other arrangements for compensation either by way of payments for committee
participation or special assignments.
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There are no other arrangements for compensation either by way of payments for committee
participation or special assignments other than reasonable per diem. There are also no outstanding
warrants or options held by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, other officers and/or directors.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-Control Arrangements

The Cirtek Cirtek Group has executed employment contract with some of its key officers. Such contracts
provide the customary provision on job description, benefits, confidentiality, non-compete, and non-
solicitation clauses. There are no special retirement plans for executives. There is also no existing

arrangement for compensation to be received by any executive officer from the Company in the event of
change in control of the Company.

Warrants and Options

There are no outstanding warrants and options held by any of the Company’s directors and executive
officers.

ITEM 11 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT :

Owners of record of more than 5% of the corporation’s voting securities as of 31 March 2016:

Title of Name, Name of Citizenship Number of Shares % of
Class Address of Beneficial Held Class
Record Owner and

Owner, and | Relationship

Relationship | with Record

with Issuer Owner
Common | Camerton, Camerton, Filipino 208,888,558

Inc. Inc. 49.85
Common | PCD Nominee : PCD Nominee Filipino

Corporation Corporation 196,930,023 46.99
Common | Total 405,818,581 96.84%

Under PCD account, the following participants hold shares representing more than 5% of the company’s
outstanding shares:

Number of Shares
66,603,226

Percentage
15.98

Participant
Guild Securities

Except as stated above, the corporation has no knowledge of any person or any Cirtek Group who,
directly or indirectly, is the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the corporation’s outstanding shares or
who has a voting power, voting trust, or any similar agreement with respect to shares comprising more
than 5% of the corporation’s outstanding common stock.
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The number of common shares beneficially owned by directors and executive officers as of 31 March
2016 are as follows:

Title of Class Name of No. of Shares Citizenship Percent
Beneficial Held
Owner
Common Jerry Liu 1 Chinese 0.0000
Common Rafael G. 1 Filipino 0.0000
Estrada
Common Nicanor Lizares 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Anthony Buyawe 1 Filipino 0.0000
Common Roberto 1 Filipino 0.0000
Juanchite Dispo
Common Martin Lorenzo 1 Filipino 3.0000
Common Ernest Fritz i Filipino 0.0000
Server _
Common Michael Stephen 1 Filipino 0.0000
Liu
Comman Brian Gregory 1 Filipino 0.0000
Liu

Voting Trust Holder of 5% or More

The corporation is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of the common shares of the
corporation under a voting trust or similar agreement as there has been no voting trust agreement which
has been filed with the corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Description of any arrangement which may result in a change in control of the carparation

No change in control of the corporation has occurred since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

Item 12 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

This discussion of related party transactions are found in Section 11 of the notes of CHPC parent
company audited financial statement for the period ending December 31 2015 and Section 17 of CHPC
consolidated audited financial statement for the period ending December 31 2015.

The Liu family, primarily through Camerton, Inc., is the largest shareholder in the Corporation, and as of
March 31 2016 owns 208,888,558 shares, or approximately 49.85% of the Corporation’s issued and
outstanding commeon shares.

Related party relationship exists when the party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly through
one or mare intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities which are under
common control with the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or stockholders.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationships. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or
indirectly, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
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operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

In the normal course of business, the Group has entered into transactions with affiliates. The significant
transactions consist of the following:

a. Advances for operating requirements of Cirtek Holdings, Inc. (CHI), former parent of CEC and
CEIC.

b. Rental of land and lease deposit with Cirtek Land Corporation (CLC), an affiliate, where the
manufacturing building 1 and administrative building is situated.

. Payments and /or reimbursements of expenses made or in behalf of the affiliates.

d. Rental of land with Cayon Holdings, Inc. (Cayon), an affiliate, where the building 2 of the Group
is situated.

The consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of comprehensive income include the
following significant account balances resulting from the above transactions with related parties:
a. Amounts owed to related parties

Transactions Balances as of
2015 2614 2015 2014 Terms Conditions
Other related parties
CLC Rental $13,515 $10,63C $434,194 $420,679 Due and Unsecured
demeandable;
ron-interest
bearing
Cayon Rental 12,025 12,095 61,492 49,468 Due and Uinsecured
demandable;
non-interest
bearing
$495,686 $470,147
b. Amounts owed by related parties
Transacticns Balances as of
2015 2014 2015 2014 Terms Conditions
COther related parties
CHI Advanges for $— $- %$1,809,256 $1,809,256 Dueand Unsecured; no
working capitat demandable; impairment
non-interest
bearing
Cayon Reimbursemen - - 206,284 206,284 Due and Unsecured; no
{ of expenses demandable; impairment
non-interest
bearing
Camerton, Inc. Reimbursemen - - 33,161 33,161 Dueand Unsecured; no
t of expenses demandable; impairment
non-interest
bearing
Jerry Liu Reimbursemen 5,483,674 2,800,663 8,558,051 3,074,377 Due and Unsecured; no
t of expenses demandable; impairment
non-irterast
bearing

$10,606,752 55,123,078
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¢. Rental deposit

Transactions Balances as of
2015 2014 2015 2014 Terms Conditions
Other related parties ‘
CLC $- 4~ $1,131.399 $1,131,359 Due and
demandable; Unsecured; no
non-interest impairment
bearing

The above related parties are under common ultimate ownership with the Group.
In 2011, the Group entered into the following assignments and set-off agreements with the related
parties as part of its corporate restructuring:

Transactions with CHI, Charmview Enterprises Ltd (CEL} and officer

The amount owed by an officer amounting to $7.7 million as of December 31, 2010 was transferred in
2011 to CEL, the former ultimate parent of CEC and CEIC. CEL now owns 40% interest in Camerton, Inc.
the parent of CHPC.

The amounts owed by and to CHI as of December 31, 2010 represent advances for working capital lines
in the normal course of husiness when CEC and CEIC were then still subsidiaries of CHI.

For purposes of settling outstanding balances with the Group and as part of corporate restructuring in
preparation for the planned Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the Parent Company, on

March 17, 2011:

. CHI, CEL and the officer, with the consent of the Group, entered into assignment agreements
whereby CHI absorbed the amounts owed by CEL and by the officer as of March 17, 2011 amounting to

$7.7 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

The Group, with the consent of the related parties, entered into assignment agreements whereby the
Parent Company absorbed the amount owed by CEIC to CHI totaling $3.6 million representing unpaid
advances of $2.3 million and dividends of $1.3 million (see Note 27) as of March 17, 2011,

Thereafter, on March 18, 2011, the Parent Company and CHI, in view of being creditors and debtors to
each other as a result of the assignment agreements above, entered into a set-off agreement for the
value of the Group's liability aggregating $6.8 million. The amount represents the above mentioned total
liability of $3.6 million and the balance outstanding from the Parent Company’s purchase of CEC and
CEIC amounting to $3.2 million, as revalued from the effect of foreign exchange rate.

The amount owed by CHI as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 pertains to the remaining balance of
receivable as a result of the assignments and set-off agreements as discussed above.

Transactions with Camerton

Camerton is the majority shareholder of the Parent Company holding 70.6% interest. Amounts owed by
Camerton as of December 31, 2015 and 2014pertain mainly to advances for incorporation expenses of
Camerton.

Transactions with CLC and Cayon

CLC is an entity under common ownership with the ultimate parent. CEC had a lease agreement on the
land where its manufacturing plant (Building 1) is located with CLC for a period of 50 years starting
January 1, 1999. The lease was renewable for another 25 years at the option of CEC. The iease
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agreement provided for an annual rental of $151,682, subject to periodic adjustments upon mutual
agreement of both parties.

On January 1, 2005, CEC terminated the lease agreement with CLC but has continued to occupy the said
land for no consideration with CLC's consent. With the termination of the lease agreement, the Group
has classified the rental deposit amounting to $1.1 million as current asset as the deposit has become
due and demandable anytime from CLC (see Note 9).

On January 1, 2011, CEC entered into an agreement with CLC to lease the land where CEC's Building 1 is
located. The agreement calls for a P=640,704 rent per annum for a period of ten (10) years and
renewable thereafter by mutual agreement of the parties subject to such new terms and conditions as
they may then be mutually agreed-upon. Total rent expense charged to operations amounted to
$13,515, $14,434 and $16,314in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

CEC also entered into an agreement with Cayon starting January 1, 2011 to lease the land where CEC's
Building 2 is located. The agreement calls for an annual rental of P=582,144 for a pericd of 10 years and
renewable thereafter. Total rent expense charged to operations amounted to $12,025, $13,114 and
$14,823 in2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITEM 13 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Please refer to attached ACGR.

The Corporation is committed to the ideals of good corporate governance. In compliance with the SEC
requirement, The Corporation is studying best practices in good corporate governance to further improve
the current corporate governance practices of the Corporation and to develop an efficient and effective
evaluation system to measure or determine the level of compliance of the Board of Directors and top
level management with its Manual of Corporate Governance.

The measures being undertaken by the Company to fully comply with the adopted leading practices on
good corporate governance include establishment of rules/principles to ensure that the interest of
stakeholders are always taken into account; that directors, officers and employees are conducting
business in a safe and sound manner; and that transactions entered into between the Corporation and
related interests are conducted at arm’s length basis and in the regutar course of business.

There are no incidences of deviation from the Corporation’s Manual of Corporate Governance. The
Company shall continue to keep itself abreast of best corporate governance practices in order to improve
what it has.

The Corporation has sufficient number of independent directors that gives the assurance of independent
views and perspective.
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ITEM 14 EXHIBITS
Schedule Contents

I Map Showing the Relationships Between and Among the Companies in the
Group, its Ultimate Parent Company and Co-subsidiaries

I Schedule of All Effective Standards and Interpretations Under Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards

I Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

v Financial Soundness Indicators

Supplementary Schedules
A Financial Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related parties}

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties and Amounts Payable to Related Parties

¢ which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
D Intangible Assets - Other Assets

E Long-Term Debt

F Indebtedness to Related Parties

G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

H Capital Stock

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following disctosures were filed during the period June to December 2013:

July 4, 2014 Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2012
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CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $30,649,730 $29,776,866
Trade and other receivables 14,240,250 13,749,783
Inventories 5,931,298 5,737,068
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 18,157,593 19,447,248
Amounts owed by related parties 11,464,198 10,606,752
Held-to-maturity investments 371,520 521,215
Oth_er curreni assets 3,269,766 2,534,181
84,084,355 82,373,113
Noncurrent assets-held-for-sale 11,408,611 11,408,611
Total Current Assets 95,492,966 93,781,724
Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment 26,877,249 23,841,532
Held-to-maturity investments - 368,574
Available for Sale Investment 1,667,000 1,667,000
Deferred income tax asset 135,317 135,555
Other noncurrent assets 1,241,365 893,853
_Total Noncurrent Assets 20,620,931 26,906,514
TOTAL ASSETS $125,413,897 $120,688,238
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables $17,099,928 $13,221,915
Short-term loan 12,083,088 10,835,088
Long-term debl - current portion and net of deferred
financing costs 4,330,704 5,303,642
Amounts owed 1o related parties 508,082 495,686
Deferred revenues 186,732 163,727
Dividends Payable 1,520,000 -
Income tax payable 112,213 123,794
Total Current Linbilities 35,840,747 30,143,852
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion and deferred
financing costs 16,984,206 17,912,779
Deferred Tax Liability 1,820 -
Retirement benefit obligation 1,404,774 1,357,811
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 18,390,800 19,270,590
Total Liabilities 54,231,547 49,414,442
Equity
Capital stock 9,594,321 9,594,321
Preferred stock 221,239 221,239
Additional paid-in capital 35,896,893 35,896,893
Equity reserve 4,138,375 4,138,375
Other comprehensive income 526,420 526,420
Relained earnings 20,805,102 20,896,548
Total Equity 71,182,350 71,273,796
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $125,413,897 $120,688.238

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Six Months Ended For the Three Months Ended

June 30 June 30
2016 2015 2016 2013
NET SALES $32,480,987 $28,311,837 $17,499,167 $14,187,013
COST OF SALES (26,479,919) (23,030,586) (14,215,366} (I 1,374,809
GROSS PROFIT 6,001,068 5,281,251 3,283,801 2,812,204
OPERATING EXPENSES (2,121,066)  (1,826,109) (1,135,979) (976,181)
FINANCIAL INCOME
(EXPENSES)
interest income 226,511 215,876 115,599 154,019
Interest expense (520,109) (576,820} (288,103) {338,503)
_ {293,598) (360,944) (172,504) (184,484)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) 67,603 435,846 151,162 437,865
INCOME BEFORE INCOME
TAX 3,654,007 3,530,044 2,126,480 2,089,404
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX
Current 125,453 178,491 83,549 140,233
Deferred - 95,305 - 95,305
125,453 273,796 83,549 235,538
NET INCOME 3,528,554 3,256,248 2,042,931 1,853,866
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME - — - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME $3,528,554  $3,256,248 _ §2 ,042,931 $1,853,866
Basic/Diluted Baming_s Per Share $0.008 £0.010 $0.005 $0.005

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Finencial Statements.
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CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Six Months Ended June 30

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax $3,654,008 $3,530,044
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 1,220,525 1,676,475
Interest expense 478,476 576,820
Change in fair value of financial asset at FVPL {344,710)
Net unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - (14,648)
Retirement benefit obligation 46,963 79,153
Interesl income {226,511) (215,876)
Operating income before working capital changes 5,173,461 5,287,258
Decrease (increase) in:
Inventories (194,230) (1,947,953)
Trade and other receivables (490,467) 2,682,129
Qther current assels (738,585} (349,454}
Increase (decrease} in trade and other payables 3,907,539 345,448
Net cash generated from operations 7,660,718 6,017,428
Interest received 226,511 194,968
Income taxes paid (137,034) (88,151)
Net cash flows from gperating activities 7,750,198 6,124,245
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in financial asset at FVPL 1,289,655 (8,838,943)
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (4,236,242) (3,301,932)
Proceeds from maturity to held-to-maturity investments 518,269 115478
Decrease {increase) in:
Held-to-maturity investments 30,486
Other noncurrent assets {345,454) 34,091
Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,793,712) {11,959,920)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from availment of:
Short=term loan 2,438,000 8,392,670
Payments oft
Cash dividends (2,100,000) (1,200,000)
Interest (484,998) (505,728)
Long-term loan (1,901,511) (2,010,989)
Short-term loan {1,1590,000) (4,099,749}
Net movement_in amounts owed by and owed to refated patiies (845,050) {697,828}
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (4,083,559} {121,624)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 872,864 (5,957,299)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (1,360)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF FIRST QUARTER 19,776,866 12,602,322
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF SECOND QUARTER $30,649,730 $6,643,663

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financtal Statements.



CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Cirtek Holdings Philippines Corporation (CHPC or the Parent Company) was incorporated under
the laws of the Republic of the Philippines on February 10, 2011 to invest in, purchase or acquire
personal property of every kind, including shares of stocks, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of
indebtedness, and other securities.

The Parent Company was listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange on November 18, 201 1.

Prior to the listing, the Parent Company had undergone a corporate re-organization on

March 1, 2011 which includes an acquisition from Cirtek Holdings, Inc. (CHI) 155,511,952
common shares of Cirtek Electronics Corporation (CEC), and 50,000 shares of Cirtek Electronics
International Corporation (CELC), representing 100% of the outstanding capital stock of both
companies. The above transaction was treated as a business combination of entities under
common control and was accounted for similar to pooling-of-interests method.

Camerton Inc. (Camerton) is the immediate parent of CHPC, while Carmetheus Holdings, Inc. is
the ultimate parent company of the Group.

CHPC and its subsidiaries (the Group) is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale of
semiconductor packages as an independent subcontractor for outsourced semiconductor assembly,
test and packaging services. CEC manufactures standard integrated circuits, discrete, hybrid and
potential new packages and provides complete turnkey solutions that include wafer probing, wafer
back grinding, assembly and packaging and final testing of semiconductor devices with majority
of its client base located in United States of America (USA). CEIC sells integrated circuits
principally in the USA and assigns the production of the same to CEC. The Parent Company’s
registered address is | 16 East Main Avenue Phase V-SEZ, Laguna Technopark, Bifian, Laguna,
Philippines.

Business Acquisition

On July 30, 2014, CEIC entered into a sale and purchase agreement with REMEC Broadband
Wireless Holdings (“REMEC”), for the purchase of 100% shares of REMEC’s manufacturing
division, REMEC Broadband Wireless International, inc. (“RBWI”), a Philippine-based
manufacturer of value added, highly integrated technology products. Based on the terms of the
sale, REMEC and its remaining subsidiaries will continue to design and market its top-of-class
telecommunications products globally under its “REMEC” brand, and, REMEC will enter into a
manufacturing agreement with RBW! to manufacture REMEC's products umder a long-term
contract manufacturing relationship. CEIC acquired RBWI for a consideration of $7.5 million.
CHPC funded the acquisition through a combination of available cash on hand and proceeds from
a corporate hotes issuance.

The closing date of the transaction is effective July 30, 2014 (see Note 4}

RBWI is primarily engaged in the manufacture, fabrication and design of microwave components
and subsystems primarily for export. RBWI was renamed to Cirtek Advanced Technology
Solutions, In¢. (“CATS”) on November 21, 2014 at the British Virgin Islands and on

February 18, 2015 at the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™),



2. Basis of Presentation, Statement of Compliance, Basis of Consolidation and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on a historical cost basis except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and derivative liability which are
carried at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States (Us)
dollars (8), which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts are
rounded off to the nearest US dollar except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards {PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company

and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 (see Notes 1 and 4):

Percentage of Ownership
Country of June 30,2016 December 31,2015
Incorporation Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
CEC Philippines 100 - 100 -
CEIC British Virgin
Islands (BVT) 100 - 100 -
CATS (formerly known as
RBWI) BVI - 100 - 100
CATS - Philippine
Branch Philippines - 100 - 100
Remec Broadband
Wireless Real Property
(RBWRP) Philippines - 100 - 100

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
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subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are inciuded in the statement of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controtling interests;

Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCl to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

Common control business combinations

Where there are group reorganizations and business combinations in which all the combining
entities within the Group are ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent (i.e., controlling
shareholders) before and after the business combination and the control is not transitory {business
combinations under common control), the Group accounts for such group reorganizations and
business combinations similar to a pooling-of-interests method. The assets and liabilities of the
acquired entities and that of the Company are reflected at their carrying values at the stand-alone
financial statements of the investee companies. The difference in the amount recognized and the
fair value of the consideration given is accounted for as an equity transaction, i.e., as either &
contribution or distribution of equity. Further, when a subsidiary is disposed in a common control

transaction without loss of control, the difference in the amount recognized and the fair value of
consideration received is also accounted for as an equity transaction.

The Group records the difference as equity reserve and is presented as a separate component of
equity in the consolidated balance sheet. Comparatives shall be restated to include balances and
transactions as if the entities have been acquired at the beginning of the earliest period presented in
the consolidated financial statements, regardless of the actual date of the combination.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosurgs
The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
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The nature and impact of each new standard and amendment is described below:

New and Amended Standards and [nterpretations and Improved PFRS Adopted in Calendar Year
2015

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of the following new and amended
standards and Philippine Interpretations from [FRIC and improved PFRS which the Group has
adopted starting January 1, 2015, Unless otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

« Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 19, Employee Bengfits - Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions (Amendments)
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they
should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify
that, if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an
entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions 1o the periods of
service. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2015. It is not expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group, since
none of the entities within the Group has defined benefit plans with contributions from
employees or third parties.

o Improvements to PFRSs
The Group has applied these improvements to PFRSs for the first time in these consolidated

financial statements, They include:

2010-2012 Cycle
o PFRS 2, Share-based Payment Definition of Vesting Condition
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:
o A performance condition must contain a service condition
o A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service
o A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
of another entity in the same group
o A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition
o If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the
vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.

o PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination

The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the
acquisition date Is on or after July 1, 2014. 1t clarifies that a contingent consideration that
is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
whether or not it falls within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recagnition
and Measurement (or PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, if early adopted). The Group shall
consider this amendment for future business combinations.
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» PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segmenis and Reconciliation of
the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

o An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and
gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’.

o The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if
the recongiliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the
required disclosure for segment liabilities.

e PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the
asset may be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net
carrying amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the
difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

e PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Managemeni Personnel
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies thata management entity, which is
an entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required
to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.

2011-2013 cycle
¢ PFRS 3 - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRS 3:
o Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
o This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself.

o PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in
PFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to
other contracts within the scope of PAS 39.

o PAS 40, Investment Property
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description
of ancillary services in PAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of
an asset or business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only
differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property,
plant and equipment).

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and endments Effective Subsequent to

December 3], 2017
Effective January 1, 2016
o PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement (2010 version)

PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39.
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PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition, A debt
financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All
other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or foss. All
equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through OCl or profit or loss. Equity
financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For
FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to
changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability"s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have
been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the
criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no
impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 201 8 when the final version of

PFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC, Such adoption, however, is still for approval by the Board
of Accountancy (BOA).

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The Philippine
SEC and FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue
standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation
of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real
estate industry is completed. Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not
have any impact on the consclidated financial statements of the Group.

PAS 16 and PAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Amortization (Amendments)
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. Asa result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group
given that the Group has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its noncurrent assets.

PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Planis (Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply.
After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost
(before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
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will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to
have any impact to the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Fi inancial Statemenis
{Amendments)
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective far
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss
is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are
effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
{Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the

amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.

PERS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to
rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14
must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of
financial position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires
disclosures on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the

effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual
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periods beginning on or after January I, 2016. Since the Group is an existing PFRS preparer,
this standard would not apply.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Group. They
include:

e PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal
through sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The
amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.

e PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in &
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a
servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in
PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be
applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing
involvement will need to be done retrospectively, However, comparative disclosures are
not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the
entity first applies the amendments.

¢ PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendmenis to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report.

o PAS 19 - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used,

o PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the
Interim Financial Report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by
cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk

report).



Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)
PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
accounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on
the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect
of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the
hedged item, not only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the
risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value
of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign cutrency basis spread
to be excluded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and
accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge

accounting.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January {, 2015.
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of
PFRS 9 was adopted by the Philippine FRSC. Such adoption, however, is still for approval by

the BOA.

PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC. The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.

The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)

In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the
financia! instruments project and replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9
is permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015.

The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The following new standards and amendments by the IASB has not yet been adopted by the
Philippine FRSC and SEC:

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracis with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer, The principles in [FRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
{ERS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
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beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date once adopted locally.

» [FRS 16, Leases
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and
lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions.
This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases
have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the entity. [FRS 16 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is
permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

e Amendments to Intemational Accounting Standards (IAS) 12, Jncome Taxes - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
In January 2016, the IASB issued the amendments to 1AS 12 which clarify how to account for
deferred fax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The amendments also
address the diversity in practice regarding the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized
losses. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2017, with early application permitted.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Eaquivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks eam interest at the respective bank
deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates
of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Fair valye measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset o transfer the
liability takes place either:

s In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is-measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statenents
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Fipancial Instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at FVPL, loans
and receivables, HTM investments, or AFS financial assets, as appropriate. The Group determines

the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financia) assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at FVPL,
directly attributable transaction costs. :

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way purchases) are recognized on the
trade date, i.¢., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.

This category includes held for trading, designated at FVPL and derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by PAS 39.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at FVPL are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives when their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not carried at fair value. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of
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comprehensive income. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Financial assets designated as FVPL are designated by management on initial recognition when
any of the following criteria are met:

»  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy; or :

e The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group designated its investments in Unit
Investment Trust Fund (UITF) and Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC) Senior Notes
as financial assets at FVPL.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as

through the amortization process.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group has designated as loans and receivables its
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, amounts owed by related parties, security
deposit, loans to employees and refundable deposits (reported as part of ‘Other current assets’ and
‘Other noncurrent assets’ in the consolidated balance sheet).

HTM investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as HTM when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold it to maturity.
After initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. This method uses an effective interest rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group has HTM investments in Philippine
government securities.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not
classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial measurement, AFS financial assets
are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses recognized directly in equity until the
investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss recorded in equity is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, or determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative loss recorded in equity is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group’s AFS financial asset pertains to unquoted
equity shares of CloudMondo, Ltd.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL, other
financial liabilities, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every financial
reporting date.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at
FVPL, directiy attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, short-term loan, jong-term debt
and amounts owed to related parties.

Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these are not held for trading or not designated
at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by PAS 39.

Gains and losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2015, the Group's derivative liability is classified as a financial liability at
FVPL. The Group does not have a financial liability at FYPL as of June 30, 2016.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses
are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognized, as well as through the amortization process.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group’s other financial liabilities includes trade
and other payables, short-term loans, amount owed to related parties and long term debts.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognized amounts and
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there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event
of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1 difference) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset, In cases
where use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price
and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when
the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1° difference armount.

Amortized cost of financial instruments

Amortized cost is computed using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment and principal repayment or reduction. The calculation takes into account any
premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part

of the effective interest rate.

Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity

A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

s exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Group; or

» satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.
The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence thata

financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financia!l reorganization and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defauits.
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Financial assets carried at amortized cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financia) assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment. :

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
loss shall be recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If, ina
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss Is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset
does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Financial assels carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment Joss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return

for a similar financial asset.

AFS financial assets

For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income; increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognized directly in equity. '

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘interest
income’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If, in subsequent year, the fair
value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is derecognized where:

s the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
*pass-through’ arrangement; and

s either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
pass through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
» Group's continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a
cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to
the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred in

bringing each inventory to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials, spare parts, - purchase coston a first-in, first-out basis (FIFO);
supplies and others

Finished goods and work-in- - cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of
process inventories manufacturing overhead costs based on the normal
operating capacity.



-17-

NRV of finished goods and work-in-process inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. NRV of raw materials, supplies, spare parts and others is the current
replacement costs.

Property. Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, is stated at cost and costs of day-to-day servicing, less

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of such property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred and if the
recognition criteria are met. Repairs and maintenance are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Land is carried at cost less any impairment in
value.

Depreciation commences when an asset is in its location and condition and capable of being
operated in the manner intended by management. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as follows:

Category Number of Years
Machinery and equipment 10-15
Buildings and improvements 5.25
Facility and production tools 5-8
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5
Transportation equipment 57

The property, plant and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Construction in progress represents property under construction and is stated at cost. This
includes costs of construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use. When assets
are retired or otherwise disposed of, both the cost and related accumulated depreciation and any
allowance for impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
credited or charged to current operations.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognized.

Noncurrent Asset Held for Sale
Property, plant and equipment are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be

recovered principally through a sale transaction expected to be completed within one year from the
date of classification, rather than through continuing use. Property, plant and equipment held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale or distribution is
highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the sale will be made or that the sale will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of the classification.

Borrgwing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Foreign currency exchange differences are
included in the determination of borrowing costs to be capitalized, but only to the extent that they
are an adjustment to the interest cost on the borrowing.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is charged against income in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over seven (7) years, useful economic life, and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economnic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit (CGU) level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
assessment can be supported. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair
value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as of the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of PAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized either in either profit or loss or as a change to OCL If the contingent consideration is
not within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate [FRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held,
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it
has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate
consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “excess of the fair value of net assets over the aggregate consideration
transferred”,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those

units,

Where goodwill has been allocated to 2 CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion
of the CGU retained.

Research and Development Costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred, Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale

its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

how the asset will generate future economic benefits

the availability of resources to complete the asset

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the
period of expected future benefit, which is estimated to be seven (7) years. Amortization is
recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment
annually.
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Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset

may be impaired. The Group has designated as non-financial assets its prepaid expenses and other
current assets, property and equipment and other noncurrent assets. If any such indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for a non-financial asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the non-financial asset’s recoverable amount. A non-financial asset’s estimated
recoverable amount is the higher of a non-financial asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sel
and its value in use (VIU) and is determined for an individual asset, unless the non-financial asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other non-financial
assets or groups of non-financial assets. Where the carrying amount of a non-financial asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the non-financial asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its estimated recoverable amount. In assessing VIU, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the non-financial asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

For non-financial assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable
amount, A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used 1o determine the non-financial asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount of the non-financial asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the non-financial asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Capital Stock

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Subscriptions receivable are
accounted for as a deduction from equity. Proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received in
excess of par value, if any, are recognized as additional paid-in capital (APIC).

Retained Farnings
The amount included in retained earnings includes profit or loss attributable to the Group’s equity

holders and reduced by dividends on capital stock. Retained earnings may also include effect of
changes in accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions,

The Group may pay dividends in cash or by the issuance of shares of stock. Cash and property
dividends are subject to the approval of the BOD, while stock dividends are subject to approval by
the BOD, at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of the shareholders at a shareholders’
meeting called for such purpose, and by the Philippine SEC. Cash and property dividends on
preferred and common stocks are recognized as liability and deducted from equity when declared.
Stock dividends are treated as transfers from retained eamings to paid-in capital.

Eguity Reserve
Equity reserve represents the effect of the application of the pooling-of-interests method.
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Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding discounts, returms, rebates and other
sales taxes or duties. The Group assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order
to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a
principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership

of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest rate method. (i.e., the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Deferred Revenues
Deferred revenues pertain to the unearned income arising from the sale of goods wherein no actual

shipment or transfer of risks and rewards to customers has occurred yet. No amortization is done
to recognize the earned revenue since the Group will make subsequent reversals upon shipment of
the goods to customers.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is recognized when goods are delivered to and accepted by the customers.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses are recognized in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income in the

period in which they are incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangements is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease only if one of the
following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised and extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (¢) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).
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Group as a lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement Benefits Costs and Liability

The Group is covered by a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan. The net defined
benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of pian assets, adjusted for any effect of
limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. ‘

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

s Service cost

s Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
s Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive
income. Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. These are retained in other
comprehensive income until full settlement of the obligation.

Foreign Currency Denominated Transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Group. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency spot rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Nonmonetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as of the dates of the initial transactions. :
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Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the financial reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the
financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is nota business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

» in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating
loss carryover (NOLCO) to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits
from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset 10 be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized directly in equity
and not in profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Earnings Per Sharg (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year, with retroactive adjustments for any stock
dividends and stock spiit.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net income and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares.

Segment Reporting

For management purposes, the Group has determined that it is operating as one operating segment.
Sales are reported internally per division, however, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are reported
on an entity-wide basis. These information are measured using the same accounting policies and
estimates as the Group’s consolidated financial statements (see Note 25).

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be tequired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
statement of comprehensive income, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows ata
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial

statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Events After the Balancg Sheet Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the balance

sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when material,

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those invelving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Classifying noncurrent assets held for sale
When CEIC acquired CATS and RBWRP, the manufacturing activities of CATS had been
transferred to CEC facility for operational efficiency measures. As a result, the land and building
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improvements owned by CATS and RBWRP became idle; thus, on December 9, 2014, the BOD
approved the plan to sell and dispose the said aforementioned assets to interested buyers. PFRS 5,
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, requires entities to classify a
noncurrent asset held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered mainly through seiling
rather than through usage. The Group has made a judgment that the noncurrent assets are held for
sale since the management is committed to selling the assets and are active in looking for
interested buyers. Furthermore, the assets are available for immediate sale in their present
condition. As of December 31, 2015 the Parent Company’s management expects that sale will be
completed in 2016.

Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its component, on initial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, govemns its
classification in the statement of financial position. The classification of the Company’s financial
instruments is disclosed in Note 26.

Deferred tax liability on a subsidiary's undistributed profits

CEIC has an undistributed profit as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 that becomes taxable
when distributed to the Parent Company. PAS 12, Income Taxes, requires the recognition of
deferred tax liability on taxable temporary difference associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, unless the Group has the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. The Group has made a judgment that it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future based on management’s plan that the Group
will not be declaring dividends from CEIC in the foresecable future. The Parent Company did not
recognize deferred tax liability on CEIC’s undistributed earnings amounting to $1,105,568 and nil
as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group has entered into leases of its office and commercia! spaces. The Group has determined
that it does not acquire all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which
are leased as operating leases (see Note 9).

Determining functional currency

The functional currencies of the entities under the Group are the currencies of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. It is the currency that mainly influences the
sales prices of goods and cost of goods sold. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances, the functional currency of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries is the US dollar.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of identifiable net assets of an acquiree in a business combination

In accounting for business combinations, the purchase consideration is atlocated to the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities (identifiable net assets) on the basis of fair value at the
date of acquisition. The determination of fair values requires estimates of economic conditions
and other factors. The fair values of identifiable net assets are in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements,
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Estimation of fair value less cost to sell of noncurrent assets held for sale

The determination of the fair value less cost to sell of noncurrent assets held for sale is made with
reference to the selling price of the asset in the market and other factors such as the local market
conditions and the asking price of the potential buyers. As of June 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, the Group carries its noncurrent assets held for sale at lower of carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell amounting to $11,408,611 (see Note 11).

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financia! instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined using
valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, fair values are
validated and periodically reviewed by qualified independent personnel. All models are reviewed
before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and
comparative market prices. To the extent practicable, models use only observable data; however,
areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported
fair value of financial instruments. The fair values of the financial instruments of the Group are
disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimating useful lives of property, plani and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment based on the neriod over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The Group reviews annually the estimated
useful lives of property and equipment based on factors that include asset utilization, internal
technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets
tempered by related industry benchmark information, It is possible that future results of operation
could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase
depreciation expense and decrease noncurrent assets.

In 2015, the Group’s review indicated that the estimated useful lives of machinery and equipment
should be extended from 6 to 12 years to 10 to 15 years and facility and production tools from 3 to
§ years to 5 to 8 years from January 1, 2015 based on the Group’s reassessment of the expected
period over which the Group will benefit from the use of these assets.

Estimated impact on future annual depreciation expense is as follows:

Years Ended December 31 Increase (Decrease)
2015 ($1,338,607)
2016 to 2020 (2,233,408)
2021 to 2025 3,572,015

Depreciation charged in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to
$1,220,525 and $1,676,475 in June 30, 2016 and June, 2015, respectively. As of

June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group’s property, plant and equipment have a net book
value of $26,877,249 and $23,841,532, respectively.
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Assessing impairment of non-financial assels

The Group assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

+ Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

o Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

» Significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows.

Assets that are subject to impairment testing when impairment indicators are present (such as
obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes fo the manner in which the asset is used,
worse than expected economic performance, a drop in revenues or other external indicators) are as

follows:

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2013

Advances to suppliers, prepaid expense

and others under other current assets $1,825,305 $1,056,897
Property, plant and equipment 26,877,249 23,841,532
Product development costs and

advances to suppliers included under

other noncurrent assets 970,947 625,586

No impairment loss was recognized in June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

Estimating allowance for inventory obsolescence

The Group recognizes allowance for inventory obsolescence when the inventory items are no
longer marketable and diminishes in value. Obsolescence is based on the physical and internal
condition of inventory items. The Group reviews on a monthly basis the condition of its stocks.
The assessment of the condition of the inventory goods either increase or decrease the expenses or
total inventory.

The estimated allowance for inventory obsolescence amounted $602,604 and $96,884 as of June
30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. The carrying amounts of inventories, net of allowance for
inventory obsolescence, amounted to $5,931,298 and $5,737,068 as of June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively.

Estimating impairment of loans and receivables

The Group maintains allowance for impairment at a tevel considered adequate to provide for
potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this impairment allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors
include, but are ot limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with debtors, their payment
behavior and known market factors. The Group reviews the age and status of receivable, and
identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance on a continuous basis either individuaily
or collectively. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the
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Group made different judgment or utilized different estimates. An increase in the Group’s
allowance for impairment would increase the Group’s recorded expenses and decrease current
assets.

The Group determines allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis. Among
the items that the Group considers in assessing the impairment is the inability to collect from the
counterparty based on the contractual terms of the receivables.

For collective assessment, aliowances are assessed for receivables that are not individually
significant and for individually significant receivables where there is not yet objective evidence of
individual impairment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the age of
the receivables, past collection experience and other factors that may affect collectability.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group has not provided any impairment
allowance since receivables were assessed to be fully collectible. The carrying amount of loans
and receivables, which include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, amounts
owed by related parties, security deposit, loans to employees and rental deposits amounted to
$57,798,639 and $55,610,685 as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

Estimating retirement benefit cost and liability

The determination of the obligation for retirement benefits is dependent on the selection by
management of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those
assumptions are described in Note 21 and include among others, discount rate and salary increase
rate. Actual results that differ from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over
future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in
such future periods. While management believes that the Group’s assumptions are reasonable and
appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may
materially affect the Group’s retirement obligation.

The Group's retirement benefits costs amounted to $83,239 and $79,153 in June 30, 2016 and
June 30, 2015, respectively. As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Group's retirement
benefit obligation amounted to $1,404,774 and $1,357,811, respectively.

Estimating useful life of software costs and capitalized product development cos!

The estimated useful lives of amortizing software costs and capitalized product development cost
were determined on the basis of management’s assessment of the period within which the benefits
of these costs are expected to be realized by the Group.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2013, software with a total cost of $39,278 has been fully
amortized, The carrying amount of capitalized development cost amounted to $643,149 and
$569,942 as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The amortization of
capitalized development cost amounted to $55,704 and $48,178 in June 30,2016 and June 30,
2015, respectively.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date and
reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient income will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group has recognized
deferred tax assets amounting to $135,317 and $135,555 as of June 30,2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively.
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Determining provision for warranty

The Group estimates the total warranty reserve to be recognized on the total internal and external
sales for the period using a predetermined percentage rate. Assumptions made by the Group such
as percentage used is based on their cumulative and industry experience on approximate inventory
returns made by the customers,

Legal contingencies

The estimate of probable costs for the resolution of possible ¢claims has been developed in
consultation with outside counsels handling the Group’s defense in these matters and is based
upon analysis of potential claims.

Management, in consultation with these counsels, believes that the likely outcome of these legal
praceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position and operating
results. However, it is possible that the future results of operations could be materially affected on
changes in estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these litigations and claims.
No provision for probable losses arising from legal contingencies was recognized as of June 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015,

. Business Combination

As discussed in Note 1, the Company acquired the ordinary shares of RBWHI's manufacturing
division, CATS (formerly known as RBWI) on July 23, 2014. The authorized capital stock of
CATS consists of 50,000 shares with a par value of US$1.00 per share, of which 5,000 shares are
issued and outstanding. The CEIC bought all of the 5,000 ordinary shares issued representing

100% ownership in the acquired entity.

The acquisition of CATS allows the Group to expand its manufacturing capacity and capability
into the high-growth wireless segment via a proven player with a strong customer base.

The amount of consideration transferred for the acquisition was $7,465,105.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CATS as of the date of acquisition were;

Final fair value

Provisional recognized an
Balance Sheet fair value acquisition date
Assets '
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalent $291,179 $291,179
Trade and other receivables 4,883,504 4,883,504
Inventories - net 6,648,952 6,648,952
HTM investment 114,341 119,751
Prepayments and other current assets 177,390 177,390
{Forward)
Noncurrent Assels
Property, plant and equipment $13,695,428 $13,695,428
HTM investment 1,073,789 1,036,971
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Final fair value

Provisional recognized on

Balance Sheet fair valiue acquisition date
Deferred tax assets - 113,593
Other noncurrent assets 311,951 311,951
Total Assets 27,196,534 27,278,719
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 5,251,815 5,251,815
Current portion of long-term debt 4,512,142 4,512,142
Income tax payable 110,930 110,930
Deferred revenues 404,741 404,741
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion 6,500,000 6,421,072
Retirement benefit obligation (asset) (2,036) 691,855
Provision for warranty 380,000 380,000
Total Liabilities 17,157,592 17,772,555
Fair value of identifiable net assets 10,038,942 9,506,164
Cash consideration transferred 7,465,105 7,465,105
Excess of the fair value of net assets acquired

over the aggregate consideration transferred $2,573,837 $2,041,059

As of July 30, 2015, the Group valuation was completed and the
HTM investments, long-term debt, retirement benefit obligation
amounted to $1,156,722, $10,933,214, $691,855, and $113,593,

acquisition date fair value of the
and the related deferred tax assets
respectively, a net decrease of

$532,778 over the provisional fair value of net assets. The 2014 comparative information was
restated to reflect the adjustment to the provisional amounts of assets and liabilities.
Cotrespondingly, the amortization of HTM investment and long-term debt from August to

in the retained earnings amounting to $697,608 as of December 31,2014,

December 2014 have been adjusted by $164,994. As a result, there was a corresponding reduction

From the date of acquisition, CATS contributed $1 1,729,914 of revenue and $1,349,426 to profit
before tax from continuing operations of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014, [fthe
combination had taken place at the beginning of 2014, the Group’s revenue from continuing

operations would have been $67,890,213 and the profit before tax from continuing operations

would have been $9,715,181.

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration transferred $7,465,105
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (291,179)
Net cash flow on acquisition $7,173,926

Transaction costs of $30,253 were expensed and are included in administrative expenses.
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5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
June 30,2016  December 31, 2015

Cash on hand and in banks $15,665,550 $14,792,686
Cash equivalents 14,984,180 14,984,180
$30,649,730 $29,776,866

Cash in banks earns interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods of between one (1) day and three (3) months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted to $53,914 and §15,472
in June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

6. Trade and Other Receivables
June 30,2016  December 31,2015

Trade $14,045,198 $13,615,734
Others 195,052 134,049
' $14,240,250 $13,749,783

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 days’ terms.

Others include accrued interest receivable from short-term deposits and nontrade receivable from
suppliers which are expected to be collected within one year.

7. Inventories

June 30,2016  December 31, 201 5

At cost:
Raw materials $4,752,131 $4,197,113
Work in process 485,233 519,595
Finished goods 37853 105,852
Spare parts and others 232,935 556,485
' 5,508,152 5,379,045
AtNRV: _
Supplies and others 423,146 358,023
Total inventories at lower of cost and
NRV $5.931,298 $5,737,068

Certain inventories have been provided with allowance to reflect valuation for non-movement and
obsolescence,

The movements in the allowance for inventory obsolescence are as follows:

June 30,2016  December 31, 2015

Balances at beginning of year $96,884 $96,884
Addition 505,720

EndiggBalance $602,604 7 $96,884
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The cost of inventories recognized as cost of sales amounted to $17,916,040 and $14,011,324 in
June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

. Financial Asset at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of financial assets at FVPL as of June 30,2016 and
December 31, 2015 as follows:

June 30,2016  December 31, 2015

Beginning balance $19,447,248 $701,747
Acquisition - 18,494,471
Fair value gains (Note 22) - 293,349
Foreign currency translation - (42,319)
Deduction (1,289,655) -
Ending balance $18,157,593 $19,447,248

UITF

On November 23, 2015, the Group acquired additional $9,094,471 investment in UITF from
Security Bank Corporation (SBC). As of December 31, 2015, the Group recognized fair value
gains and unrealized foreign exchange loss amounting to $- and $42,319, respectively, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The balance of the investment in UITF
amounted to $18,157,593 and $19,447,248 as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015,

respectively.

The fair values for the investment UITF are determined through the Net Asset Valuation of each
investee as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

Investment in RCBC Senior Note

On January 21, 2015, the Parent Company acquired $8.5 million of the USD Senior Unsecured
Fixed Rate Notes offered by the RCBC via a drawdown off its 31 billion Medium Term Note
Programme maturing on January 22, 2020. The senior note earns 4.25 % fixed rate per annum,
payable semi-annually commencing July 21, 2015. The senior note is listed and actively traded in
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The senior note is designated as financial asset
at FVPL as of June 30, 2016.

As of June 30, 2016, the Group recognized fair value gains amounting to $- in the consolidated .
statement of comprehensive income. The balance of the investment in RCBC Senior Notes
amounts to $8,767,580 as of June 30, 2016,

The fair values for the investment in RCBC Senior Notes have been determined directly by
reference to published prices quoted in an active market. The RCBC Senior Notes are traded in
the Singapore Exchange (SGX).
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9,

Other Current Assets

June 30,2016  December 31, 2015

Rental deposit $1,132,066 $1,131,399
Advances to suppliers 1,607,512 773,277
Security deposit 180,387 180,387
Loans to employees 132,008 165,498
Prepaid expenses 133,718 - 102,079
Others 84,078 181,541

$3,269,766 $2,534,18!

Advances to suppliers pertain mainly to down payments for production materials that are still to be
delivered.

. HTM Investments

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31,2015, the details of HTM investments are as follows :

June, 2016 _ December 31, 2015
Current portion $371,520 $521,215

Noncurrent portion - 368,574
$371,520 $889,789

In compliance with the Corporation Code of the Philippines which requires foreign corporations
doing business in the Philippines to deposit with the Philippine SEC, securities worth of at least
$2,300 (B0.1 million) and additional securities with market values equivalent to a certain
percentage of the amount by which the CATS’ gross income exceeds $0.1 million (5.0 million).

in May 2015, one of the HTM bonds with a face value of $111,632 (B5.0 million) matured and as
aresult, CATS received cash amounting to $115,478.

The Group’s HTM investments pertain to government bonds which were purchased by the
Philippine Branch of CATS in compliance with above regulation. The bonds have maturity dates
which range from 2015-2017 and bear an average effective interest rate of 1.97% to 4.63% per
annum.

The Philippine SEC shall also require a deposit of additional securities if the actual market values
of the securities in deposit decreases by at least 10% of their actual market values at the time they

were deposited,
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment

As of June 30, 2016
Machinery Facility and Furniture,
and  Buildings and Production  Fixturesand  Trenspormation  Construetion
Equlpment _improvemests Tools Equipment Equipment in progress Tatal
Cost:
Beginning belances $41,492,558 53,001,561 56,727,316 51,107,269 $I1TA77 §3,830,911 561,420,692
Additions 2,095,061 91,851 233,660 78944 - 1,756,686 4,256,242
Ending belances 43,587,619 8,183,452 5,960,076 1,186,213 171,177 8,887,497 58,676,234
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balances 27,840,187 4,399,011 4,341,616 923,784 74,541 - 37,579,160
Dgreciaﬂon T67,426 153,518 215,298 60,242 14,047 - 1,120,525
Ending balences 18,607,613 4,552,536 4,566,921 984,026 88,589 = 38,799,685
Net book values 514,980,006 $3,830,816 $2,194,055 310,187 582,588 55,587,407 526,877,249
As of December 31, 2015
Machinery Facility and Fumiture,
eand  Bulidings and Production Fixturesand  Trznsportation Construction in
Equipment _ lmprovements Toals Equipment Equipment progress Total
Cost: '
Beginning balances $38,385,288 £7,071,084 £5,994,069 51,058,977 5104,365 §-  §52,613,783
Additiens 3,254,022 1,049,7% 733,247 63,192 85,300 3,830.811 9,016,368
Disposal and other
adjustments {146,752) (29,319 - (14,900 _(18,488) - (209.4359)
Ending balances 41,492 558 8,091,561 §,727,316 1,107,269 171,177 3,830,811 61,420,692
Accumulated deprecintion:
Beginning balances 26,587,628 4,154,904 3,958,418 818,862 78,803 - 35,598,615
Depreciation 1,404,291 267,753 383,208 120678 14,074 - 2,190,004
Disposz and other
adjustrments (151,732 (23,636} - {15,756) (18,335) - (209,438)
Ending balances 27,840,187 4399021 4,341,626 923,784 74,542 - 37,579,460
Net book values $13.652,37] $3,692 540 szgss,m $183,485 $96.635 $3,830.81) §23.841,532

The land and building owned by RBWRP with & net book value of $9.7 million as of

December 31, 2012 was used as the collateral for the secured interest-bearing loan (see Note 16).
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the net book value of the land and building owned by
RBWRP amounted to $8,918,097. As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, there had been no
changes in the loan agreement between CATS and the creditor bank from its inception.

On December 9, 2014, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the plan to sell and dispose certain
assets such as land, building and other improvements, and building plant and machinery of CATS
and RBWRP to any interested buyers as these are excess assets from the acquisition and are no
fonger needed in the Group’s operations. The related property and equipment were measured at
fair value at the date of acquisition (see Note 4). An independent valuation was obtained to
determine the fair values of property and equipment which were based on recent transactions for
similar assets within the same industry. Property and equipment with book value of $11,408,611
was classified as noncurrent assets held for sale in the consolidated balance sheets. As of June 30,
2016, the Parent Company’s management expects that sale will be completed in 2016.
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As of June 30, 2016, Constructions in Progress amounted to $5,587,497 representing construction
costs incurred for the new production facility relating to a new product venture for CATS. The
construction is expected to be completed in 2016.

12. AFS Financial Asset

The Group’s AFS financial asset pertains to the unquoted investment in CloudMondo, Ltd. which
is acquired at a cost of $1,667,000 in 2015.

13. Other Noncurrent Assets

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2013

Product development costs $643,149 $569,942
Miscellaneous deposits 138319 136,168
Note receivable §7,988 87,987
Advances to suppliers 327,798 55,644
Others 44,111 44,112
$1,241,365 $893.853

Product development costs pertain to the capitalized cost of developing certain packages or
products for specific customers. The development costs met the requirements of PAS 38,
Intangible Assets, for capitalization. The product development costs that were capitalized in 2016
and 2015 amounted to $0 and $105,365, respectively. Amortization of product development cost
charged to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to $55,704 and
$48,178 in June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively, as these are available for use.

Miscellaneous deposits pertain to refundable deposits with MERALCO for the installation of
CEC's electrical meters and bill deposit equivalent to one month energy consumption.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, CEC has software with a total cost of $39,278 which
are fully amortized but are still in active use.

14. Trade and Other Payables

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015
Trade $12,394,412 $8,569,122
Accruals:
Utilities 464,306 453,145
Payroll 824,397 259,583
Interest 119,169 155,235
Qthers: 72,774 285,966
Advances from customers 1,972,199 2,884,311
Provision for warranty - 130,300
Others 1,252,671 484,253
$17,099,928 $13,221,915
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Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60-90 days terms.

Accfuals comprise mainly of accruals for electricity, water, communication, security, shuttle
services and professional services.

Advances from customers pertain mainly to down payments for sales orders.

Other payables pertain to statutory liabilities and are generally payable within 12 months from
balance sheet date.

15. Short-term Loans

The Group has the following loan facilities:

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2_0i5

‘Banks:
Security Bank Corporation (SBC) (a) 3 $900,000
Bank of the Philippine isiand (BPI) {(b) 5,435,088 5,435,088
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
(RCBC) (9] 6,648,000 4,500,000

$12,083,088 $10,835,088

a. Revolving loan facilities with the SBC which have payment terms ranging from 90 10 180
days. The facility is unsecured and charged interest of 1.95% to 2.10% per annum in2016
and 2015.

b. Revolving loan facilities with the BPI which have payment terms of 180 days. The facility is
unsecured and charged interest of 1.80% per annum in 2016 and 2015,

¢. Revolving loan facilities with the RCBC which have payment terms ranging from 60 to 167
days. The facility is unsecured and charged interest of 2.25% per annum in 2016 and 2015.

Interest expense incurred from these short-term loan facilities amounted to §51,111 and $43,205 in
June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

16. Long-term Debts
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the details of long-term debts are as fotlow:

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015

Principai $21,442,627 $23,371,201
Less deferred financing costs 127,717 154,780
' 21,314,910 23,216,421

Less:

Current portion - net of deferred
financing costs and subsequent
adjustments in PPA  amounting to
$71,699 and $35,024 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively 4,330,704 5,290,995
Subsequent adjustments in PPA - 12,647
' 4,330,704 5,303,642
$16,984,206 $17,912,779
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Movement in deferred financing costs follow:

June 30,2016 December 31, 2015

Beginning of year $154,780 $130,122

Transaction costs recognized during

the year : - 146,127

Less amortization 27,063 121,469

End of year $127,717 $154,780
CHPC

On July 25, 2012, the Parent Company entered into & $10.0 million Notes Facility Agreement
(NFA) with Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (Initial Noteholder), Metropolitan Bank & Trust
~ Company - Trust Banking Group (Facility and Paying Agent) and First Metro Investment
Corporation (Arranger). The NFA provided for the issuance of 5-year fixed rate corporate note
which bears interest of 3.6% per annum payable quarterly. On July 27, 2012 (Issue Date), the
Parent Company drew $10.0 million from the facility. The net proceeds from the issuance of the
Notes shali be used to finance the Group’s strategic acquisitions and for general corporate
purposes,

Under the NFA, the Parent Company shall pay 30% of the loan outstanding on Issue Date in

12 equal consecutive quarterly installments in the amount equivalent to 2.5% of loan outstanding
on issue date commencing on the end of the 5th quarter until end of the 16th quarter from the Issue
Date. The remaining 70% of the loan outstanding on issue date is payable in four (4) equal
consecutive quarterly installments in the amount equivalent to 17.5% of the loan outstanding on
issue date commencing on the 17th quarter from the issue date until the maturity date, provided
that each such date shall coincide with an interest payment date, and that the last installment shail
be in an amount sufficient to fully pay the loan. ‘

Prior to the maturity date, the Parent Company may redeem in whole but not in part, the relevant
outstanding notes beginning on and after the third anniversary of the issue date, by paying the
amount that is equivalent to 102% of the unpaid principal amount together with any and all
accrued interest up to the date of prepayment. ‘

in accordance with the NFA, the following ratios based on consolidated financial statements of the
Group are required to be maintained:

debt to equity ratio shall not at any time exceed 2:1

e debt service coverage ratio shall not exceed 1:5
current ratio shall not at any time be less than 1:1, provided however, this ratio shal not apply
afier the fourth anniversary of the issue date.

On December 18, 2014, the Parent Company entered into another $10.0 million Notes Facility
Agreement with Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (Initial Notehoider), Metropolitan Bank &
Trust Company - Trust Banking Group (Facility and Paying Agent) and First Metro Investment
Corporation (Arranger). The Notes Facility bears interest of 3.14% per annum payable quarterly.
The net proceeds of the issuance of the Notes shall be used to finance the Group’s strategic
acquisitions and for general corporate purposes.

Under the NFA, the Parent Company shall pay 30% of the loan outstanding on issue date in 12
equal consecutive quarterly installments in the amount equivalent to 2.5% of loan outstanding on
issue date commencing on the end of the Sth quarter until end of the 16th quarter from the Issue
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date. The remaining 70% of the loan outstanding on issue date in 4 equal consecutive quarterly
installments in the amount equivalent to 17.5% of the loan outstanding on issue date commencing
on the 17th quarter from the issue date until the maturity date, provided that each such date shall
coincide with an interest payment date, and that the last installment shall be in an amount
sufficient to fully pay the loan.

Prior to the maturity date, the Parent Company may redeem in whole but not in part, the relevant
outstanding notes beginning on the third anniversary of the issue date, by paying the amount that
is equivalent to 102% of the unpaid principal amount together with any and all accrued interest up
to the date of redemption at the applicable rate.

Under this agreement, the Group has to maintain the following financial ratios:

o debt to equity ratio shall not at any time exceed 2:1

e debt service coverage ratio shall not exceed 1.5

e current ratio shall not at any time be less than I:1, provided however, this ratio shall not apply
after the fourth anniversary of the issue date.

The Parent Company is in compliance with the debt covenants as of June 30, 2016 and December
31,2015,

Total interest expense charged to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted
to $315,786 and $385,137 in June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

CATS

Prior to acquisition, the CATS obtained a secured interest bearing loan from local commercial
bank amounting te $13.0 million. The principal is payable in 28 quarterly payments of $464,286
until 2018 and bears annual interest rate of 3.0% plus three month London inter-bank offer rate
(LIBOR). This bank loan was specifically borrowed to refinance the parcel of land with
improvements located along the Innovation Drive, Carmelray Industrial Park 1, Brgy. Canlubang,
Calamba City, Laguna and registered in the name of RBWRP. The land and building owned by
RBWRP were used as collateral for the secured interest-bearing loan obtained in 2012. After the
acquisition, the BOD approved the plan to sell the said assets to interested buyers on December 9,
2014, resulting to the rectassification of the land and building to noncurrent assets held for sale
(see Note 11). As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the outstanding balance of interest-
bearing loan amounted to $4.7 million and $5.6, respectively. There had been no changes in the
loan agreement between CATS and the creditor bank from its inception.

17,

Related Party Disclosures

Related party relationship exists when the party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among
entities which are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management
personnel, directors or stockholders. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationships.
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In the normal course of business, the Group has entered into transactions with affiliates. The
significant transactions consist of the following:

a. Advances for operating requirements of Cirtek Holdings, Inc. (CHI), former parent of CEC
and CEIC.

b. Rental of land and lease deposit with Cirtek Land Corporation (CLC), an affiliate, where the
manufacturing building 1 and administrative building is situated.

¢. Payments and /or reimbursements of expenses made or in behalf of the affiliates.

d. Rental of land with Cayon Holdings, Inc. (Cayon), an affiliate, where the building 2 of the
Group is situated.

The consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of comprehensive income include the
following significant account balances resulting from the above transactions with related parties:

a. Amounts owed to related parties

Transactions Balances as of

December December .
Jupe 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 31, 2016 31,2015 Terms Conditions

Other related puriies
CLC Rental $6,489 56,965 §440,683 £434,194 Ducon Unsecured
demand,
non-
interest
bearing
Cayon Rental 5885 5073 67,377 61492 Dueon Unsecured
demand;
non-
interest
bearing

512,374 $13038  §508,060 5495686

b. Amounts owed by related parties

Transactions Balances as of
June 30, June 30, December December
2016 2013 31,2016 31,2015 Terms Conditions
Other related purties
CH! Advances for 5~ §-  S1,809,256 51,809,236 Dueon Unsecured;
working cepital demand; ne
non- impairment
interest
bearing
Cayon Reitnbursement - - 206,284 206,284 Ducon Unsecured,
of expenses demand; noe
non- impairment
imerest
bearing
Cametton Reimbursement - - 33,181 33,161 Dueon Unsecured;
of expenses demand; no
fnon- impairment
interest
bearing
Jerty Liu Reimbursement 857,446 710,866 9,415,497 8,558,051 Dueon Unseeured;
of expensas dernand; no
non- impairment
interest
bearing

$857,446 §710,866 §11,464,198 $10,606,752
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¢. Rental deposit

Transactions Balances & of
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2016 2015 pii L] 2015 Terms Conditions
Other refated parties
CLC §- B §1,131,399 $1,131,399  Due on demand,
non-interest lUnsegured; o
impaimment

bearing

The above related parties are under common ultimate ownership with the Group.
In 2011, the Group entered into the following assignments and set-off agreements with the related
parties as part of its corporate restructuring:

Transactions with CHI, Charmview Enterprises Lid (CEL) and officer

The amount owed by an officer amounting to $7.7 million as of December 31, 2010 was
transferred in 2011 to CEL, the former ultimate parent of CEC and CEIC. CEL now owns 40%
interest in Camerton, the parent of CHPC.

The amounts owed by and to CHI as of December 31, 2010 represent advances for working capital
fines in the normal course of business when CEC and CEIC were then still subsidiaries of CHI.

For purposes of settling outstanding balances with the Group and as part of corporate restructuring
in preparation for the planned Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the Parent Company, on

March 17, 2011, CHI, CEL and the officer, with the consent of the Group, entered into assignment
agreements whereby CHI absorbed the amounts owed by CEL and by the officer as of

March 17, 2011 amounting to $7.7 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

The Group, with the consent of the related parties, entered into assignment agreements whereby
the Parent Company absorbed the amount owed by CEIC to CHI totaling $3.6 million representing
unpaid advances of $2.3 million and dividends of $1.3 million as of March 17, 2011 (see Note 28).

Thereafter, on March 18, 2011, the Parent Company and CH, in view of being creditors and
debtors to each other as a result of the assignment agreements above, entered into a set-off
agreement for the value of the Group’s liability aggregating $6.8 million. The amount represents
the above mentioned total liability of $3.6 million and the balance outstanding from the Parent
Company’s purchase of CEC and CEIC amounting to $3.2 million, as revalued from the effect of
foreign exchange rate.

The amount owed by CHI as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 pertains to the remaining
batance of receivable as a result of the assignments and set-off agreements as discussed above.

Transactions with Camerion

Camerton is the majority shareholder of the Parent Company. Amounts owed by Camerton as of
June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 pertain mainy to advances for incorporation expenses of
Camerton.

Transactions with CLC and Cayon

CLC is an entity under common ownership with the ultimate parent. CEC had a lease agreement
on the land where its manufacturing plant (Building I} is located with CLC for a period of 50
years starting January 1, 1999. The lease was renewable for another 25 years at the option of
CEC. The lease agreement provided for an annual rental of $151,682, subject to periodic
adjustments upon mutual agreement of both parties.

On January 1, 2005, CEC terminated the lease agreement with CLC but has continued to occupy
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the said land for no consideration with CLC’s consent. With the termination of the lease
agreement, the Group has classified the rental deposit amounting to $1.1 million as current asset as
the deposit has become due and demandable anytime from CLC (see Note 9).

On January 1, 2011, CEC entered into an agreement with CLC to lease the land where CEC’s
Building 1 is located. The agreement calls for a P640,704 rent per annum for a period of 10 years
and renewable thereafter by mutual agreement of the parties subject to such new terms and
conditions as they may then be mutually agreed-upon. Total rent expense charged to operations
amounted to $6,830 and $7,191 in June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

CEC also entered into an agreement with Cayon starting January 1,2011 to lease the land where
CEC’s Building 2 is located. The agreement calls for an annual rental of 582,144 for a period of
10 years and renewable thereafter. Total rent expense charged to operations amounted to $6,207
and $6,534 in June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group are as follows:

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Salaries and wages $884,720 $622,161
Employee benefits 169,512 133,020
1,054,232 $755,181
18. Cost of Sales
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Raw materials, spare parts, supplies and
other inventories used $17,916,040 $14,011,324
Salaries, wages and employees’ henefits 4,734,779 4,432,932
Utilities 1,746,596 1,893,670
Depreciation and amortization 1,180,486 1,638,760
Inward freight and duties 534,558 449,835
Change in finished goods and work in
process inventories - 254845
Others 367,460 349,220
$26,479,919 $23,030,586
19. Operating Expenses
June 39, 2016 June 30, 2015
Salaries, wages and employees’ benefits 1,340,674 $1,043,832
Utilities 190,668 216,134
Transportation and travel 166,079 187,378
Professional fees 45,276 33,598
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 08,216 101,288
Commissions 65,974 27,994
Depreciation 42,150 37,715
Taxes and licenses 59,521 66,706
Office supplies 27,251 11,620
Insurance premiums 14,998 8,711
QOthers 70,257 91,133
52,121,064 $1,826,109
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20. Salaries and Wages and Employees® Benefits

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Salaries and wages $5,347,677 $4,776,945
Other employees’ benefits 644,537 575,749
Retirement costs 83,239 124,070
$6,075,453 $5,476,764

21. Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Group has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan based on the normal
retirement benefits equivalent to the minimum retirement benefit as provided by Republic Act
(R.A.) No. 7641, otherwise known as the Retirement Pay Law, covering ali of its regular
employees. Retirement benefits costs are determined in accordance with an actuarial study and
are based on the employees’ years of service and monthly basic salary.

Under the existing regulatory framework, R.A. No. 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay to
qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided,
however, that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require

minimum funding of the plan.

22. Other Income (Charges) - Net
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Mark-to-market gain $- $344,710
Sale of scrap 68,366 77,276
Foreign exchange losses - net (13,170) 47,293
Qthers - net 12,407 (33,433)
$67,603 $435,846

23, Income Taxes

CEC
On March 24, 1998, the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA) approved CEC’s
registration as an ecozone export enterprise at the Laguna Technopark for the manufacture of

standard integrated circuits, discrete, hybrid and potential new packages.

Beginning October 30, 2002, the manufacture and export of integrated circuits, discrete and hybrid
transferred to PEZA from Board of Investments (where originally registered) and became subject
to the 5% gross income tax incentive, as defined under R.A. No. 7916, the law creating the PEZA.
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CATS - Philippine Branch

CATS was registered with PEZA as an Ecozone Export Enterprise to engage in the manufacture,
fabrication and design of millimeterwave components and subsystems in a special economic zone
to be known as the Carmelray Industrial Park I - Special Economic Zone (CIP I-SEZ) and Laguna
Technopark in accordance with the project study, representations, commitments and proposals set
fort_h in its application forming integral parts, subject to the terms and conditions provided in its
registration,

As a PEZA-registered activity, CATS is entitled to tax incentives equivalent to 5% of the gross
income earned on its registered activities after the income tax holiday (ITH) of four years.

Details of provision for (benefit from) income tax are as follows:

For the six months ended June 30

2016 2015

Current $125,453 $178,491
Deferred - 95305
$125,453 $273,796

The provision for current income tax in June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 pertains to the special
rate of 5% on taxable gross income of CEC, CATS - Philippine Branch and RBWRP.

24. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following table presents information necessary to calculate EPS on net income.

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Net income $3,528,554 $3,256,248
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding 419,063,353 339,063,353
Basic and diluted EPS $0.008 $0.010

As of June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, the Parent Company has no potential dilutive common
shares.

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in the calculation of EPS is
based on the outstanding shares of the Parent Company. The additional shares from stock
dividends during the period, including the unissued stock dividends and stock dividends declared
after the reporting period but before the approval of the financial statements, were reflected in the
calculation of the EPS as if these shares have been issued in all earlier periods presented.

25. Operating Segment

The Group has determined that it is operating as one operating segment. Based on management’s
assessment, no part or component of the business of the Group meets the qualifications of an
operating segment as defined by PFRS 8. More specifically:

e There is no significant or obvious distinction among the products assembled by the Group.
All products are semiconductor packages that go into electronic products and applications.



-44 -

The assembly process is likewise similar;

The Group’s production facility and head office is located in the Philippines;
Although production of goods is divided into twelve divisions, the commercial, technical,

operating, marketing and selling matters are made at the executive committee level and not at
the division levels. The role of the respective division managers is to ensure that production is
on track in meeting its volume forecasts, and that quality standards are consistently met.

Sales are reported internally per division, but profit
entity-wide basis. These information are measured

or loss, assets and liabilities are reported on an
using the same accounting policies and

estimates as the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Sales from external customers per division as reported internally are as follows (amounts in

thousands):

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2013

Discrete $6,283 $5,331
Multichip 4,464 5,190
Integrated Circuits (IC) 3,970 3,781
New Products 2,754 2,730
Quad-Flat No-Leads (QFN) 2,351 2,240
Hermetics 760 896
Qutdoor Unit 4,301 4,337
Bridgewave 943 897
Indoor Radio Frequency Unit 980 1,10
Cougar 179 154
Quintel 4,57 -
Remec Manufacturing Services 926 846
$32,481 $28,312

Below are customers contributing to at least 10% of the Group’s total sales of each year. Sales to
these customets are as follows (amounts in thousands):

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Major Customer A $4,949 $4,598
Major Customer B 4,504 2,021
Major Customer C 6,969 7,011

The Group's customers are located in various
customers located in Europe and the USA. Fo
by revenue contribution (amounts in thousands}:

countries, with the bulk of revenues contributed by
llowing shows the revenue distribution of customers

__June 30, 2016 June 30,2015

Asia $7,104 $7,584
Europe 7,225 7,733
LJSA 18,152 12,995
$32,481 $28,312

There are no sales made 1o entities under common control with the Group.
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26, Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, short term
joans and long-term debt. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to support the
Group’s operation, The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade and other
receivables, amounts owed by related parties, rental deposits and loans to employees (presented as
part of other current assets), miscellaneous deposits (presented under other noncurrent assets),
trade and other payables, amounts owed to related parties and derivative liability which generally
arise directly from its operations.

Risk Management Structure
The BOD is mainly responsible for the overall risk management approach and for the approval of

risk strategies and principles of the Group.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Group are credit risk, liquidity risk
and foreign currency risk. The Group’s management reviews and approves policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties failed

to discharge their contractual obligations.

The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group's financial assets. The
maximum exposure is shown net of impairment losses, if any:

June 30,2016 December 31, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents* $30,649,730 $29,776,426
Trade and other receivables 14,240,250 13,749,783
Financial assets at FVPL 18,157,593 19,447,248
Amounts owed by related parties 11,464,198 10,606,082 -
Other current assets

Rental deposit 1,132,066 1,132,066

Security deposit 150,387 180,387

Loans to employees 132,008 165,459
HTM investments 371,520 889,739
AFS financial asset 1,667,000 1,667,000
Other noncurrent assets

Miscellaneous deposits 138,319 136,168
Total credit risk exposure $78,133,071 $77,750,448

* Excluding cash on hand
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The aging analyses per class of financial assets that are past due but not yet impaired are as

follows:
Netther June 30, 2016
Past Due Impaired
nor Past Due but not Impsired Flnancial
30<60 60-90
Impaired < 30 days days days > 90 days Assels Total
Cash and cash
equivalents® $30,649,730 s - s 5 $-  $30,649,730
Trade and other
recefvables 11,054,754 2,324,615 304,545 160,122 396,214 - 14,240,250
Financial assets 8¢
FYPL 18,157,593 - - - - - 18,187,593
Amounts owed by
related parties 11,464,198 - - - - - 11,464,198
Other current gssets
Rental deposit 1,132,066 - - - - - 1,132,066
Security deposit - - - - 180,387 ' 180,387
Loans to employees 132,008 - - - - - 131,008
AFS financial asset 1,667,000 - - - - - 1,667,000
HTM investments 371,820 - - - - - 371,520
Other roncurrent
assets
Miscellaneous
deposits 138,319 - - — - = 138,319
$74,767,188 52,324,615 _S=3M,545 $160,122 §576,601 5 8'7_8,:533,071
* Excluding cash on hand ’
Neither December 31, 2015 :
Past Due Impaired
no ______ PeyiDuebutnollmpaid _____  Financil
Impaired <30 days 30<60 days _60-90 days > 90 days Assets Total
Cash and cash )
equivalents* $29,776 426 - $-- - $- $- $20,776,426
Trade and other
receivabies 9,318,862 1,838,198 190,185 08,815 2,344,735 - 13,790,795
Financial nssets at FVPL 19,447,248 - - - - - |9447248
Amounts owed by
retated parties 10,606,082 - - - - -~ 10,606,682
ther current assets
Rentel deposit 1,131,399 - - - - - 1,131,399
Security deposit - - - - 180,387 180,387
Loans to employees 165,499 - - - - - 165,499
AFS financiel asset 1,667,000 - - - - - 1,667,000
HTM investments 889,739 - - - - - 289,789
Qther noncurrent assets
Miscellaneous
deposits 136,168 - - - -~ - 136,168
$73,138473  $1,838,198 $190,185 $98.813 325525.1 22 $— $77,790,793

* Excluding cash on hand
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The tables below summarize the credit quality per class of the Group’s financial assets that are
neither past due nor impaired:

June 30,2016
Neither Pasi Due nor Impaired
High Grade _ Medium Grade Low Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents™ $30,649,730 5~ 5 $30,649,730
Trade and other receivables 10,498,418 556,336 - 11,054,754
Financial assets at FVPL 18,157,593 - - 18,157,593
Amounts owed by related parties 11,464,198 - - 11,464,198
Other current assets
Rental deposit 1,132,066 - - 1,132,066
Loans to employees 132,608 - - 132,008
H'TM investmenis 371,520 - - 371,520
AFS financial asset 1,667,000 - - 1,667,000
Other noncurrent assets
Miscelianeous deposits 138,319 — - 138,319
$74,210,852 §556,336 $- §74,767,188
* Excluding cash on hand.
December 31, 2015
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Grade  Medium Grade Low Grade Tolai
Cash and cash equivalents* $29,776,426 - £ $29,776,426
Trade and other receivables 9,194,991 123,871 - 9,318,862
Financial assets st FYPL 19,447,248 - - 19,447,248
Amounts owed by related parties 10,606,082 - - 10,606,082
Other current assels
Rental deposit 1,131,399 - - 1,131,399
Loans to employees 165,499 - - 165,499
HTM investments 889,789 - - 889,789
AFS financial asset 1,667,000 - - 1,667,000
Other noncumrent assets
Miscellaneous deposits 136,168 - - 136,168
$73,014,602 $121,871 $- $73,138,473

* Excluding cash on hand
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High grade - These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the counterparty
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the receivables are readily
enforceable).

Medium grade - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay and that have history of sliding beyond the credit terms
but pay within 60 days.

Low grade - These are receivables where the counterparty’s capability of honoring its financial
obligation is doubtful,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet
commitments from financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from a counterparty’s failure
on repayment of a contractual obligation or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Group maintains sufficient cash to finance its operations and major capital expenditures and
satisfy its maturing obligations. It may also from time to time seek other sources of funding,
which may include debt or equity financings, including dollar and peso-denominated loans from
Philippine banks, depending on its financing needs and market conditions.

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of the Group’s financial assets used for
liquidity management and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

June 30, 2016
Less than >2t03
On demand 1year 1to2years years Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $30,649,730 s $- $- 530,649,730
Trade and other receivables - 14,240,250 - - 14,240,250
Amounts owed by related
parties 11,464,198 - - - 11,464,198
$42,113,928 514,240,250 50 §— 556354178
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trade payables 512,394,412 §- 5~ 5 s12394,412
Accrued expenses® - 1,480,646 - = 1,480,646
Short-term loans - 12,083,088 - - 12,083,088
Amounts owed to related - - -
parties £08,082 508,082
Long-term debts —~ 8,607,146 __4:607,146 8,428,372 21,642,864
511.902!494 §22,170,880 54.601;__1__46 58,428,572 $48,109,092

*Excluding stanatory Habifities
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December 31, 2015

Less than
On demand 1 year Lto2 years >21to 5 years Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $20,776,866 3~ $- $- $24,776,866
Trade and other receivables 4,430,521 488101 6,930 - 9,318,862
Amounts owed by related parties 10,625,082 - - - 10,625,082
844 832,869 $4,881,011 §6,930 $-— $49,720,810
Financial Liabilities
Trade and othier payables
Trade payables $8,569,122 5~ 5 - $8,569,122
Accrued expenses® - 1,153,929 - - 5,153,929
Short-term loans - 10,835,088 - - 10,835,088
Amounts owed to related parties 495,686 - - - 495,686
Long-term debts - 5,140,853 11,398,857 8,111,233 24,650,943

$9,064,808 $17,129,870 $11,398,857 $8,114,233 $45,704,768

*Excluding statuiory Habilities

27.

Fair Value Measurement

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the carrying values of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective fair values, except for the following financial

instruments:

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015
Carrying Carrying
Amount  Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets
HTM investments $371,520 $371,520 $889,789 $9635,286
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Long-term debt $21,314,910  §21,642,864  $23 21642 $24,516,928

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s fength transaction, other
than in a forced liquidation or sale.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans to employees, trade and other
payables, short-term loans, amounts owed by and owed lo related parties and rental deposits
The carrying amounts approximate fair value since these are mostly short-term in nature or a due

and demandabie.

Financial assets at FVPL - Unit Investment Trust Fund
The investments in Unit Investment Trust Fund classified as financial asset at FVPL are stated at

their fair value based on lowest level input (Level 2).

Financial assets at FVPL - RCBC Senior Notes
The investment in RCBC Senior Notes classified as financial asset at FVPL is stated at its fair
values based on the quoted prices in an active market (Level 1).

HTM Investments
The fair value of HTM investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
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determined by reference to quoted market bid prices, at the close of business on the reporting date
or last trading day as applicable (Level 1).

Miscellaneous deposits

The miscellaneous deposits are carried at cost since the timing and related amounts of future cash
flows cannot be reasonably and reliably estimated for purposes of establishing its fair value using
an alternative valuation technique.

Long-term debts

The fair value of long-term debt is based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the
applicable rates for similar types of loans. Discounts rates used range from 3.63% to 3.70% in
2012

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy in determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

instruments by valuation technique:

o+ Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

28. Equity
a. Common Shares

The roliforward of the capital stock of the Parent Company follows:

June 31,2016 December 31,2015

Number of shares

Authorized - common shares (1.00 par value) 520,000,600 520,000,060
Issued

Beginning of year 419,063,353 308,239,419
Stock dividend - issued and distributed - 30,823,934
Issuance of stock - 80,000,000
End of year 419,063,353 419,063,353
Amount

Issued - 419,063,353 shares in 2015 and

308,239,419 $9,594,321 $9,594,321

$9,594,321 $9,594,321

On November 18, 2011, the Parent Company listed with the PSE its common stock, wherein it
offered 42,163,000 shares to the public at issue price of P7 per share. The total proceeds with
issuance of new shares amounted to 2295.1 miltion (86.8 million). The Parent Company
incurred transaction costs incidental to the IPO amounting to P47.3 million (31.1 million),
which is charged against “Additional paid-in capital” in the 201 | consolidated balance sheet.

On March 24, 2015, the Parent Company’s BOD, by majority vote, and shareholders
representing two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock thereof approved the amendment of
the articles of incorporation to increase the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock by
B160,000,000 or from #400,000,000 divided into 400,000,000 common shares with a par
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value of B1.00 per share, to 560,000,000 divided into 520,000,000 common shares with a par
value of R1.00 per share and 400,000,000 preferred shares with a par value of 80.10 per share.

The BOD also authorized the Parent Company to offer 120,000,000 shares for sale or
subscription through a follow-on offering (FOO).

On July 22, 2015, the Philippine SEC approved the Company’s application to increase its
authorized capital stock.

On November 4, 2015, the Parent Company’s FOO was completed, The Parent Company
issued 80,000,000 new shares at issue price of P20 per share for a total amount of

$34.2 million. The Parent Company incurred transactions costs incidental to FOO amounting
to $1.2 million which is charged against “Additional paid-in capital” in the 2015 consolidated
balance sheet. As of December 31, 2015, unpaid stock issue costs amounted to $17,728
recorded under “Accrued expenses” account.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Parent Company has a total number of 19
and 18 stockholders, respectively.

. Preferred Shares

June 30,2016  December 31, 2015

Number of shares
Authorized (0.10 par value) 400,000,000 400,000,000
Subscribed 400,000,000 400,000,000
Amount

Subscribed - 400,000,000
shares (net of subscriptions
receivable amounting to $663,717) $221,239 $221,239

In 2015, the 400,000,000 preferred shares at par value of £0.10 were subscribed by Camerton,
a principal shareholder of the Parent Company. As of December 31, 2015, unpaid
subscriptions amounted to $663,717.

The features of the preferred shares are (i) full voting rights, one vote for each share;

(i) preferred non-cumulative cash dividends at the rate of 1% of their par value per year, with
no participation in further cash dividends which may be declared and paid to the common
shares or any other class or series of shares; and (iii) the same stock dividends which may be
declared and paid to the common shares or any other class or series of shares.

. Retained Eamings

On January 29, 2014, the Parent Company’s BOD declared cash dividends of $1,200,000 or
$0.00428 per share to stockholders of record as of February 13, 2014. Also, on May 30, 2014,
the Parent Company’s BOD declared cash dividends amounting to $600,000 or $0.00214 per
share to stockholders of record as of June 16, 2014.

In addition to the cash dividends, the BOD also declared a 10% stock dividend. During the
special stockholders meeting dated July 11,2014, the shareholders approved and ratified the
declaration of 10% stock dividend payable to stockholders of record as of July 25, 2014 and
payment date of August 20, 2014
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On February 23, 2015, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends
of $1,200,000 million or $0,003893 per share, payable on March 27, 2015 to stockholders of
record as of March 10, 2015. The cash dividend shall be paid in Philippine Peso at Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) exchange rate one day before payment date.

On August 10, 2015, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends
of $891,200 or $0.002628 per share for each of 339,063,353 fully paid and issued common
shares and $8,800 or $0,000022 per share for each of the 400,000,000 outstanding preferred
shares, amounting to an aggregate sum of $900,000, for payment and distribution on

August 28, 2015 to shareholders of record of August 25, 2015. The cash dividend shall be
paid in Philippine Peso at the BSP exchange rate one day prior to payment date.



-53-

29, Commitments

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Group:

tsourcing Manufacturin eement (O
On July 30,2014, CATS entered into an OMA (herein referred to as the “Agreement”) with
RBWHI in conjunction with the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered into between CEIC and
RBWHI. CATS will perform manufacturing services to REWHI in accordance with the
production files and specifications as provided in the Agreement. The contract term is for ten (10)
years with automatic renewal of additional one (1) year period. All payments to CATS shall be
made in US Dollars and shall be paid sixty (60) days after the receipt of the invoice,

Master Service Agreement (MSA)
CATS entered into an MSA with RBWHI on July 30, 2014 where CATS will provide to RBWHI

the services of selected employees and consultants (or “Business Services™) of CATS. CATS
shall be responsible for and shall timely pay any and all compensation and benefits payable to the
employees of and consultants of CATS who perform Business Services. MSA has a ten (10) year
term with automatic renewa! of additional one year period.

Manufacturing Services Agreement (MSA)

On October 20, 2015, CATS, “the Seller”, entered into a manufacturing service agreement with a
customer, whereas the customer desires to purchase the products defined in the agreement
specifically for its latest range of mm-Wave converter products. The term of the agreement is 3
years from the effective date subject to automatic renewal for one year every year thereafter.

On November 4, 2015, CATS, “the Supplier”, entered into a master supply agreement with a

customer and its affiliate, whereas CATS will manufacture products based on the purchase order
issued by the customer. The liability of the customer and its affiliate is several and not joint. The
agreement is effective for 3 years subject 10 the termination clause and shall be renewable every

year thereafter.

30,

Note to Statement of Cash Flows

The Group has noncash investing activity representing the transfer of ownership over the assets
and liabilities assumed related to the acquisition of CATS entities in 2014, as discussed in Note 4
1o the consolidated financial statements. This transaction has resulted to an increase in certain
assets and liabilities as enumerated in Note 4.

3L

Other Matters

CEC is a defendant in certain legal cases which are currently pending before the courts and other
government bodies, In the opinion of management and CEC’s legal counsel, any adverse decision
on these cases would not materially affect the consolidated financial position as of June 30, 2016
and December 31, 2015 and resuits of operations for the years ended June 30, 2016 and December
31,2015.

Seasonality of operations
The Group does not have any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial
conditions or results of operations.
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F Indebtedness to Related Parties

G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

H Capital Stock



CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULF OF EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
JUNE 30, 2016

2 i, Fck =

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements v

Conceptual Framewoerk Phase A: Objectives and gualitative

characteristics

PERSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v

Phitippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 Fiest-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting v

{Revised) Standards
Amendments to PFRS [ and PAS 27: Cost ol an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jeintly Controlked Entity or v
Associale
Amendments o PFRS 1; Addidonal Exemptions for -
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 11 Limited Exemption from v
Comparalive PFRS 7 Disclesures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 11 Sevese Hyperinflation and v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-lime Adopters
Amendments 10 PFRS 1: Government Loans v
Amendments o PERS 1 Meaning of “Eflective PFRSs™ v

PFRS 2 Share-based Fayment v
Amendments Lo PFRS 20 Viesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 20 Group Cash-settled Share- v
hased Payment Transactions
Amendments w PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting Cendition v

PFRS 3 Business Combinations v

{Revised) ) T
Amendments 1o PFRS 31 Accounting for Contingenl -
Consicleration in a Business Combination
Amendments to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Jeint v
Arrangements

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial ‘/
Guarantee Contracls 1




PFRS S

oy
Nen-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Qperations

Amendments o PERS 3: Changes in Methods of
Disposal

See fooinote,

*

PFRS 6

Explaration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Finapcial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Asscts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Elfective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7; Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transiers of
Financtal Assels

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments (o PERS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS O und Transition Disclosures

Amendmenis o PFRS 7: Disclosures - Servicing
Contracts

See foothole, *

Amendments o PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments 1o PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Finaneial
Statements

See footnote.

*

PFRS 8

Qperating Segments

Amendments 1o PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segmenls® Assets to the ntity’s Assels

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments

See foolnole,

&

Amendments o PFRS 91 Mandatory Effective Dule of
PIRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

See foonote,

PFRS 10

Ceonsolidated Financinl Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27
tnvestment Lintities

Amendment o PFRS 10: Sale or Conribution of Asyets
hetween an Investor and (s Assaciate or Joint Venture

See foolnoie.

™

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

|

Amendment 1o PFRS 11 Accounting for Acguisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

Yee fodtnote.

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments o PERS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27:
Investment Entities




PFRS 13 Fair Value Mcasuremnt
Amendments o PFRS 13: Short-term receivable and
payables
Amendments o PFRS 13: Portiplio Exceplion
PFRS 14 Reguhuory Deferral Accounts See footnote, #

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sec foolnote, *

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS | Presentation of Financial Stalements

(Revised) e 1 .
Amendment to PAS 12 Capita) Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 32 aad PAS §; Puttable Financial
fnstruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendmients o PAS | Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Ineome

PAS 2 Inveatorics

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

PAY 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

PAS 10 livents after the Balance Sheet Date

PAS 11 Construction Contracts

(PAS 12

Ineome Taxes

Amendment e PAS 12 - Delerred Tax; Recovery of
Linderlyving Assets

regarding Discount Rate

PAS 16 Property. Plant and Fquipment
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarilication of Gee fipinotc, *
Accepiable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization '
Amendments to PAS 16 Bearer Plants See footnote. *
PAS 17 l.cases
PAS 18 Revenue
PAS 19 Employee Benefits
Amendments o PAS 19 Actuaria] Gains and Losses, )
. i, See foolnele.
Grroup Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 Employee Benelis
Amendett . N T~
( ) Amendments Lo PAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans -
Employee Contributions
Amendments 1o PAS 19 Regional Market Tssue .

See footnote.




PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of

Government Asgistance

PAS 21

The Bffects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

amendment; Net Investmeni in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 Borrawing Costs
(Revised}
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
{Revised) - K

Amendmienls to PAS 24; Key Management Personne]
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporling by Retirement Benefit Mans
PAS 27 Sepurate Financlal Stetements

(Amended)

Amendments o PFRS L0, PFRS 12 and PAS 27;
[nvestment Fntites

Amendment Lo PAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

See foolnote. *

PAR 28
(Amended}

Javesiments in Associates and Joint Ventures

|

Amendment ta PAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets

betwveen an Investor and its Associate or Joing Venture

Sec footpote, ¥

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Eeonomies

PAS 31

interests in Joint Ventures

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Discloswre and Presentation

Amendments 1o PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to PAS 32: Presemation - Tax effect of
distribution to holders of equily mstrument

Amendments o PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Asseis and
Financial Liabilities

PAS 33

Farnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments o PAS 34: Iaterim linancial reporting and
segment information for total pssels and Habitities

See footnote. *

Amendments to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘elsewiiere in the interim financial report’

See footnote. *

PAS 36

Impairment of Assels

Amendments o PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Nop-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

PASR 38

[niangible Assels




Amendments o PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization

Amendments (0 PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreeiation and Amaortization

See [ootnote. *

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments o PAS 39: Transition and Laitial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabiliues

Amendments 1o PAS 392 Cash Flow lHedge Accaunting
ol Forceast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments 10 PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments 1o PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financisl
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Reclassification of
Financial Assels

Amendments ta PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Rectassification of
Fipancial Assets - Effective Dale and Transition

Amendments Lo Phitippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivalives

Amendment (o PAS 39: Bligible Hedged items

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40

tnvestment Property

Amendment 1o PAS 40: Interrelationship between
PFRS 3 and PAS 40

S RN B N S

PAS 41

Agriculiure

<

Amcndment o PAS 41: Bearer Plants

See foomote. *

Philtppine Interpretations

1ERIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2

Members' Shire in Co-operative Pntities and Simifar
Instruments

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains u Lease

IFRIC 5

Rights to Interests avising from Decommissioning,
Restoration ahd Envirenmental Rehabitilation Funds

IERIC 6

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Markel - Waste Biectrical and Etectronic Eguipment

IFRIC 7

Applving the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
tinanciel Reporting i Myperinflationary FEeonomies

IFRIC 8

Scope of PFRS 2




IFRIC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and v
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 |interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v

IFRIC 11 PERS 2- Group and Treusury Share Transactions v

IFRIC 12 | Service Coneession Arrangements '

IFRIC 13 Cuslomer Loyally Programmes v

IFRIC 14 | The Limit on a Defined Benefi Assel, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 15 | Agreements for the Construction of Real Bstate See footnote, *

IFRIC 16 | Hedges of o Net Invesiment in a Foreign Operation e

IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets Lo Owners

IFRIC 18 | Transfers of Assets [rom Customers

IFRIC 19 | Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Bquity v
[nstraments

IFRIC 26 | Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of'a Surface v
Mine

IFRIC 21 {luvies

S1¢-7 frtroduction ol the Huro v

S1C-10 Government Assisianee - No Specifie Relution o v
Operaling Activilies

S1C-15 Operasing Leases - Incentives v

SEC-21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable v
Assets

S1C-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Staus of an Eatity or v
its Sharcholders

SI1C-17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the v
Legal Form of a fease

S1C-29 Service Coneession Arrangements: Disclosures v

SIC-3t Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising v
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

“Hhese standurds, inerpretallons
December 31, 20130 The Growp did

i amencinents fo existing standards will becone gffective subsequent o
npt early gdopt these standards. inlerprefations and aoendmenty




CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION
JUNE 30,2016

Unappropriated Retained Eamnings, beginning $405,556
Adjustments in previous year’s reconciliation:
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax -

Unappropriated  Retained  Eamings, as
adjusted, beginning 405,556
Net Income based on the face of AFS 3,277,827
Add: Non-actual losses -
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax -
Net Income Actual/Realized 3,277,827
Transfer from Appropriated to Unappropriated
Retained Earnings
Unappropriated ~ Retained ~ Eamings, as
adjusted, ending
Less: Dividends declared in 2016

Cash dividends declared (3,620,000) (3,620,000
Retained earnings available for dividend
declaration

3,683,383

$63,383




CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

JUNE 39, 2016
June 30, December 31,
Ratios Formula 2016 2015
Current Assets/Current

(i) Current Ratio Liabilities 2.66 3.11
(ii) Debt/Equity Ratio Bank Debts/ Total Equity 047 048
(iii) Net Debt/Equity Bank Debts-Cash &

Ratio Equivalents/Total Equity 0.04 0.06
(iif) Asset to Equity

Ratio Total Assets/Total Equity 1.76 1.69
(iv) Interest Cover

Ratio EBITDA/Interest Expense 9,86 6.61
(v) Profitability

Ratios _

GP Margin Gross Profit/Revenues 0.18 0.16

Net Profit Margin Net Income/Revenues 0.11 0.09

EBITDA Margin EBITDA/Revenues 0.16 0.15

Return on Assets Net Income/Total Assets 0.03 0.05

Return on Equity Net Income/Total Equity 0.05 0.10




SCHEDULE A

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Valued based
on market
Name of Issuing Amount quotations at
entity and . end of Income
association of each  shown in the reporting received or
issue balance sheet period accrued
Cash and cash equivalents N/A  $30,649,730 $30,649,730 $-
Trade and other
receivables N/A 14,240,250 14,240,250 -
Financial asset at fair
value through profit or
foss N/A 18,157,593 18,157,593 -
Amounts owed by related
parties N/A 11,464,198 11,464,198 -
Other current assets
Rental deposit N/A 1,132,066 1,132,066 -
Loan to employees N/A 132,008 132,008 -
HTM investments N/A 371,520 371,520 -

QOther noncurrent assets
Miscellaneous
deposits N/A 138,319 138,319 -

$76,285,684 $76,285,684 -




SCHEDULE B

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES, AND

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Amounts Receivable from Qificers, Employees and Related Parties under Frade and other receivables

Balance at
Name and Designation of Balance at beginning of Amounts the end of
debtor __period Additions __ collected Current___Not Cument ___the periad
Advances to officers and
employees $122,062 $30,306  (520.360) $132,008 §-  $132,008
Amounts owed by Related Parties
Balance at
Narse and Designation of Balance at beginning Amounts the end of
debior of period Additions collected Current  Not Current the period
Cirtek Holding, inc. $1,809.256 $- $- $1,809,256 §- 51,809,256
Carmerton, nc. 33,161 - - 33,161 - 33,16
Cayon Holdings, Inc. 206,284 - - 206,284 - 206,284
Jerry Liu 8,558,051 357,446 - 9,415,497 - 9415497
$10,606,752 $357,446 §-  $11.464,198 §- 511,464,198




SCHEDULE C

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM

RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED DURING THE

CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Receivables from related parties which are climinated during the consolidation
(under Trade and other receivables)

Batance
Balance at Amoynt atend of
beginning of Amount written
Namg and designation of debtor period  Additions collected off Cutrent  Moenrcurrent period
Cirtek Electronics Corporation §26,599,045 - (516,525,716} §$—  $10,073,329 $- 510073328
Cinek Elestronics Inferational
Corporation 19,897,202 - (1,244,151) - 18,653,051 - 18,653,051
Cirtek Holdings Philippines
Cumo_r_a;tlion _ 40,622.476 146,179 {14,377.400) - 26,391,855 — 26,39] 855
$87,118,723  $146,779 (32,147,267} §-  $55.118,235 $- §55,118,235
Amounts owed by related parties which are eliminated during the consolidst_lnn
Balance at Amtount
beginning of Amount written Not Balance at
Name and designation of debtor period __ Additions collected off Current curent___end of period
Cinek Electronics Corporation £48,727,525 $101,842 (815,124,325} §-  $33,705,041 8- $33,705,041
Cirtek Electronics Internationsl
Corporation 5,000,000 - - 9,000,000 - 9,006,000
Ciriek Advanced Technologies and
Solutions Inc. 3,505,947 6,471,382 - 10,073,329 - 10,073,329
Cirtek Holdings Philippines
Corporation 25,795,251 (23,455,386) ~ 2,339,865 - 2339 865
$87.118,723 86,579,224 _ (38,579,712 §- 555118235 S $55.118,235




SCHEDULE D

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER

ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
Other
Chargedto  Charged to changes
Beginning  Additions cost and other additions Ending
Description Balance at cost exXpenses accounts  (deductions) Balance

Product development costs  $569,942 $-  ($27,852) - $-  $542,090




SCHEDULE E

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30,2016
Long-term Debt
Amount shown
under caption Amount shown
“current portion of  under caption “long-
Amount authorized long-term” in related  term debt” in related
Title of issue and type of obligation by indenture balance sheet balance sheet
Notes payable $16,622,283 $2,460,912 $14,161,371
Interest-bearing loan 4,692,627 1,869,792 2,822,835

$21,314,910 $4,330,704 $16,984,206




SCHEDULEF

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED

PARTIES (LONG-TERM LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES)
AS OF JUNE 30,2016

Indebtedness to related parties (Long-term loans from related companies)

‘Name of related party Balance at beginning of period Balance at end of peried

Not Applicable




SCHEDULE G

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF

OTHER ISSUERS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
Name of is3uing entity of Title of issue of
securities guaranteed by the cach class of Total amount  Amount owned by
company for which this securities guaranteedand  person for which
statement is filed guaranteed outstanding _ statement is file Nature of guarantec

Not Appiicable




SCHEDULE H

CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL STOCK

AS OF JUNE 30,2016
Capital Stock
Number of Number of

shares issued and  shares reserved Number of

outstanding as for options  Numberof shares held

Number of shown under warrants,  shares held by directors,

shares  related balance conversion and by refated  officers and
Title of 1ssue authorized sheet caption other rights partics _employees  Others
Common Stock 520,000,000 419,063,353 ~ 208,888,558 7 -

Preferred Stock 400,000,000




CIRTEK HOLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

MAP SHOWING THE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND AMONG THE
COMPANIES IN THE GROUP, ITS ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CO-

SUBSIDIARIES
JUNE 30, 2016

Carmetheus Holdings, Inc.

60.0%

Camertox Inc.

0% 50%

CHPC  Public

100% 100% 20%

CEC CE[C E CloudMondo

100% l
CATS

CATS- Phil, Branch

160%

-

RBWRP
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(A)

(B}

()

(D)

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM - ACGR

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

Use of Form ACGR

This SEC Form shall be used to meet the requirements of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance.

Preparation of Report

These general instructions are not to be filed with the report. The instructions to the various captions of the form
shall not be omitted from the report as filed. The report shall contain the numbers and captions of all items. if
any item is inapplicable or the answer thereto is in the negative, an appropriate statement to that effect shall be
made. Provide an explanation on why the item does not apply to the company or on how the company’s practice
differs from the Code,

Signature and Filing of the Report

A, Three (3} complete sets of the report shall be filed with the Main Office of the Commission.

B. At least one complete copy of the report filed with the Commission shall be manually signed.

€. All reports shall comply with the full disclosure requirements of the Securities Reguiation Code.

D. This report is required to be filed annually together with the company's annual report.

Filing an Amendment

Any material change in the facts set forth in the report occurring within the year shall be reported through SEC
Form 17-C. The cover page for the SEC Form 17-C shail indicate "Amendment to the ACGR".
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A. BOARD MIATTERS

1) Board of Directors

{a) Composition of the Board

Complete the tabie with information on the Board of Directors:

Jerry Liu ED Camerton 2-17-11 5-25-12 Annual 1
Nicanor Lizares ED Camerton 2-17-11 5-25-12 Annual 1
Anthony Buyawe ED Camerton 2-17-11 5-25-12 Annual 1
Jorge Agullar ED Camerton 2-17-11 5-25-12 Annual 1
Nelia Liu ED Camerton 5-31-13 5-25-12 Annual 1
Martin Lorenzo ' D Camerton 2-17-11 5-25-12 Annual 1
Ernest Fritz Servar ID Camerton 2-17-11 5-25-12 Annuat 1

(b} Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted. Please
emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of minority
shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

Treatment of all shareholders

Each share is entitled to one vote that may be exercised in person or by proxy. The shareholders have the right to elect,
remove and replace directors and vote on certain corporate acts in accordance with the Corporation Code.

It is the duty of the directors to promote shareholders rights, remove impediments to the exercise of shareholders
rights and provide effective redress for viclation of their rights. They sholl encourage the exercise of shareholders'
voting rights and the solution of collective action problems through appropriate mechanisms.

Respect for the rights of minority shareholders and of other stakeholders

The Board of Directors recognizes ond safeguards the rights of every shareholder. It promotes shareholders’ rights,
particularly the rights to information and te participate in the governance process. It supplements and complements the
Articles of incarporation and By-Laws of the Company, which principally contain the basic structure of governance. The
shareholders are given the privilege to vote on alf motters that requires consent; inspect corporate books and records;
rights to information; rights to dividends; and appraisal right.

Disclosure duties

The Board shall commit at oll times to adequately and timely disclose all materiol information that could potentially
affect the Company’s share price and such other information that are required to be disclosed pursuant to the SRC
and its !mplementing Rules and Regulations us well as other relevant {ows. This information include but are not
limited to earnings results, acquisition or disposal of significant assets, off balance sheet transactions, changes in
Board membership as well as changes in shareholdings of directors and officers, and remuneration of directors and
officers and related party transactions.

! Reckoned from the election immediately following January 2, 2012,



Board responsibilities

The Board shail exert its best effort to ensure a high standard of best practice for the Company, its shareholders and
stakeholders. To do so, it shall perform all the functions which it is required to perform in the Company's By-Laws with
honesty and integrity. Its duties and responsibilities as defined include: 1. Conduct fair business transactions with the
company and ensure that personal interest does not bias Bourd decisions. 2. Devote time and attention necessary to
properly discharge his duties and responsibilities. 3. Act judiciously. 4. Exercise independent judgment. 5. Have a
working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory requirements. 6. Observe confidentiality. 7. Ensure the continuing
soundness, effectiveness and adequacy of the Company’s controf environment. 8. Prior to assuming office, attend a
seminar on corporate governance.

{¢) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission? Every two years

{d} Directorship in Other Companies

(i) Directorship in the Company’s Groupz

\dentify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of
director in other companies within its Group:

jerryLiv Cirtek Electronics Corporation Chairman

Jerry Liu Cirtek Electronics International Director
Corp.

Anthony Buyawe Cirtek Electronics International Director
Corp.

(ii) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who are also directors of
publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Nicanor Lizares Pancake House, Inc Executive Director
Martin Lorenzo Pancake House, inc/Pancake House Holdings, inc_{ Chairman
Ernest Fritz Server RFM Corporation Chairman

(i1} Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicabie, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors, which
finks them to significant shareholders in the company and/er in its group:

Sh:reholézfer o

? The Group is composad of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the company.



(iv} Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies {publicly listed, ordinary
and companies with secondary ticense} that an individua! director or CEQ may hold simultaneousiy? In
particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and observed? If yes,
briefly describe cther guidelines:

A director shall exercise due discretion in accepting and holding of directorships outside of the
Company. A director may hold any number of directorships outside of the Company provided that these other
positions do not detract from the director's capacity to diligently perform his duties as a director of the
Company.

{e) Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who directly and indirectly
own shares in the company: '

Jerry Liu 1 168,479,985 70.6
Anthony Buyawe 1 0 0
Jorge Aguilar 1 0 0
Nicanor Lizares 1 0 G
Rafaei Estrada 1 500,000 0
Martin Lorenzo 1 Y 0
Ernest Fritz Server 1 0 0
TOTAL 7 168,979,985 70.6

2) Chairman and CEQ

{a) Do different persons assume the roie of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEQ? if no, describe the
checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

{b) Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and defiverables of the Chairman and CEO.

Ensure effective operation of the Board Develop strategy proposals for

znd its committees in confermity with recommendation to the Board and
the highest standards of corporate ensure that agreed strategies are
gavernance. reflacted in the business.
Ensure effective communication with Develop annual plans, consistent
shareholders, regulators and other with agreed strategies, for
stakeholders and that the views of these | presentation to the Board for

Role groups are understood by the Board. support.
Set the agenda, style and tone of Board Plan human resourcing te ensure
discussions to promote constructive that the Company has the
debate and effective decision-making. capalilities and resources required

to achieve its plans.
Ensure that all Board committees are
properly established, composed and Develop an organisational structure
operated. and estabiish processes and systems
1o ensure the efficient organisation




Ensure comprehensive induction
programmes for new directers and
updates for all directers as and when
necessary.

Support the Chief Executive in the
development of strategy and, more
broadly, to sugport and advise the Chief
Executive.

Maintain access to senior management
as is necessary and useful, but not
intrude on the Chief Executive's
responsibilities.

Promote effective relationships and
communications between non-executive
directors and members of the Group
Executive Commitiee.

Ensure that the performance of the
Board, its main committees and
individuat directors is formally evaluated
on an annua basis,

Establish a harmonious and open
relationship with the Chief Executive.

of resources.

Be responsible to the Board for the
performance of the business
consistent with agreed plans,
strategies and pelicies.

Lead the executive team, including
the development of performance
contracts and appraisals.

Ensure that financial result, business
strategies and, where appropriate,
targets and milestones are
communicated to the investment
community.

Develap and promote effective
communication with sharehotders
and other relevant constituencies.

Ensure that business performance is
consistent with the Business
Principles.

Ensure that robust management
succession and management
development plans are in place and
presented to the Board from time to
time.

Develop processes and structures to
ensure that capital investment
proposals are reviewed thoroughly,
that associated risks are identified
and appropriate steps taken to
manage the risks.

Develop and maintain an effective
framework of internai controls over
risk in relation to all business
activities including the Groug's
trading activities.

Ensure that the flow of information
to the Board Is accurate, timely and
ciear.

Establish a close relationship of trust
with the Chairman, reporting key
developments to him in a timely
manner and seeking advice and
support as appropriate.

Accountabilities

Responsible for leadership of the Board

Responsible for leadership of the
business and managing it within
the authorities delegated by the
Board.

Deliverabies




3)

4)

Explain how the board of directors plans for the succession of the CEO/Managing Cirector/President and the top
key management positions?

Then Company recognizes the importance of succession planning in building a leadership pipeline/talent pool to
ensure {eadership continuity.

Succassion planning in the Company invaolves the following steps: (1} analyzing company strategy and identifying
care competencies and technical competencies required to maintain and build a strong, sustainable organization,
{2) identifying internal talent with criticat competencies, and assessing needs for external talent (3} implementing
retention programs and recruitment strategies, {4) monitoring performance of talent peol.

Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board?
Please explain.

Directors sitting in the Board sholl be possessed of the necessary skills, adequate competence and understanding
of the fundamentals of doing business or sufficient experience and competence in manoging a business. He must
possess integrity, probity and shail be diligent and assiduous in the performing his functions.

Does it ensure that at least one non-exacutive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company
beiongs to? Please explain.

Yes. The presence of a non-executive director with experience in the same sector gugments in-house knowledge
and at the same time provides an objective perspective on important matters such as industry trends, competition,
and company copabilities.

Define and clarify the roles, accountabiiities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent

Directors:

Role

He shali supervise and
manage the business
affairs of the Corporaticn
upen the direction of the
Board of Directors and
implement the
administrative policies of
the corporation under his
supervision and control

A director’s office is one
of trust and confidence.

He shouid act in the best
interest of the Company
in a manner
characterized by
transparency,
accountability and
fairness.

He should exercise
ieadership, prudence
and integrity in
directing the Company
towards sustained
progress cver the long
term.

A director’s office is one
of trust and confidence.

He should act in the best
interest of the Company
in a manner
characterized by
transparency,
accountability and
fairness.

He should exercise
leadership, prudence
and integrity in
directing the Company
towards sustained
progress over the long
term.

Accountabiiities

e He represents the
corporation at all
functions and
proceedings

+ To executa on behalf of
the corporation al}

He shall observe the following:

s Conduct fair business transactions with the
Company and ensure that personal interest
does not bias Board decisions.

« Devote time and attention necessary to properly
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contracts, agreements
and other instruments
affecting the interests
of the corporation in
which will require the
approval of the Board
of Directors.

s To oversee the
preparation of the
budgets and statements
of accounts of the
corporation.

¢ To make reports to the
Beard of Directors.

To perform such duties
as are incident to his
office or are entrusted
to him by the Board of
Directors

discharge his duties and responsibilities

s Actjudiciously

¢ Exercise independent judgment.

& Have a working knowledge of the statutory and
regulatory requirements

* Observe confidentiality.

& Ensure the continuing soundness,
effectiveness and adequacy of the Company's
control environment

+ Prior to assuming office, attend a seminar on
corporate governance

Deliverables

He is to initiate and
develop corporate
objectives and policies
and formulate long range
projects, plans and
programs for the approval
of the Board of Directors,
including those for
executive training,
development and
compensation

To ensure good governance of the Company, the
Board should estaklish the vision and mission and
strategic objectives and key policies and
procedures for the management of the
Company, as well as the mechanism for
monitaring and evaluating Management's
performance

Provide the company’s definition of "independence” and describe the company's compliance to the definition.

An independent Director shall mean a person who, apart from his fees and shareholdings, is independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship which could or could reasonably be perceived to,
materially interfere with kis exercise of independent judgement in carrying out his responsibilities as a director of the

corporation.

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? if after two years, the
company wishas to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no
more than four additional years? Please explain.

No term limit.

5] Changes in the Board of Directers {Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)

{2} Resignation/Death/Remaoval

indicate any changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened during the peried:

None

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

11



Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disquaiification, removal, reinstatement
and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors.

{b) Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

{including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

(i) Executive Directors

The Board thru its
Nomination Committee pre-
screens the qualification of all
nominaas to the Board of
Directors.

Nominations shall be made in
writing.

Voting shall be by secret
ballot.

Cumulative voting shall be
allowed and each shareholder
shall have the right to vote in
person or by proxy the
number of shares standing in
his name at record date. He
may also vote such number of
shares for as many persons as
thera are directors or he may
cumulate said shares and give
one candidate as many votes
as the number of directors to
be elected multiplied by the
number of his shares shall
zqual, or he may distribute
them on the sama principles
among as many candidates as
he shali fit provided that the
total number of votes cast by
him shali not exceed the
number of shares owned by
him multiplied by the whole
number of directors te be
elected. Candidates receiving
the highest number of votes
shall be declared elected.

Qualifications of Directors:
« Any stockholder having at
least one {1} share of the
capital stock of the Coempany
registerad in his name.

At least 21 years of age

* Directors sitting in the Board

shall possess necessary skills,

adequate competence and

experience in managing a

business.

He must possess all the

qualifications and none of

the disgualifications of
regular directors under

Corporate Governance as

provided.

» Possesses integrity, probity
and shall be diligent and
assiduous in the
performance of his functions.

s Other relevant qualifications,
such as membership in good
standing in business,
professional organization or
relevant industry.

Provide details of the processes adopted

{ii} Non-Executive Directors

Same as stated above

Same as stated above

(iii} Independent Directors

Same as stated above

Apart from above

qualifications, additional

criteria for independent

Directors as follow:

» acandidgate for independent
director must be
independent of the
management and free from
any business or other
relationship which could, or
couid reasonably be
perceived to, materially

12



(i Executive Directors

Same as stated above

interfere with his exercise of
independent judgment in
carrying out his
responsibilities as a director
of the Corporation.

# He must have been engaged
in or exposed to the business
of corporation for at least
five (5) year

Same as stated above

(ii) Non-Executive Directors

Same as stated above

Same as stated above

(iii} Independent Directors

{i) Executive Directors

Same as stated above

Nomination Committee shall
review and evaluate the
qualifications of a!l persons
nominated to the Board of
Directors.

Same as stated above

Disqualifications:
» Persons who have been
convicted by a competent
judicial or administrative
body of the following:
> Any crime involving
purchase or sale of
securities as defined in
Securities Regulation Code.
> Any crime arising out of
the person’s conduct as an
underwriter, broker,
dealer, futures commission
merchant, commodity
trading advisor or floor
broker,
> Any crime arising out of his
fiduclary relationship with
bank, quasi-bank, trust
company, investment
house or as an affiliated
person of any of them.
» Any person wha, by reason of
any misconduct, after
hearing or trial, is
permanently or tempotarily
enjoined by order, judgment
or decree of the Securities
and Exchange Commission
{"SEC") or any court or other
administrative body of
competent jurisdiction
Any person finally convicted
judicially or administratively
of an offense involving moral
turpitude or fraudulent acts
or transgressions such as, but
not limited to,
embezzlement, theft,
estafa, counterfeiting,
misappropriation, forgery,
bribery, faise affirmation or
gerjury.

13



» Any persan finally found by

the SEC or a court or other
administrative body 1o have
willfully violated, or wilifully
aided, abetted, counseled,
induced or procured the
viclation of any provision of
the Securities Regulation
Code, the Corporation Cede
of the Philippines, or any
other law administered by
the SEC, or any rule,
regulation or order of the SEC
or the BSP,

Any perscn earlier elected as
independent director who
becomes an officer,
employee or consuitant of
the Company.

Any perscn judicially dectared
10 be insclvent.

Any person finally found
guilty by a foreign court or
eguivalent financial
regulatory authority of acts,
violations or misconduct listed
in the foregoing paragraphs.
Any person convicted by
final and executory
judgment of an offense
punishable by
imprisonmant for a period
exceeding six {6) years, or
a violation of the Corporation
Code, committed within five
(5} years prior to the date of
his election or appointment.
No person shall gualify or be
eligible for nominaticn or
election to the Board of
Directors if he is engaged in
any business which
competes with oris
antagonistic to that of the
Company.

{i} Non-Executive Directors

Same as stated above

Same as stated above

{iii) independent Directors

Same as stated above

Disqualification of Independent
Director:

He bacomes an officer or
employee of the corporation
whare he s such member of
the Board of Directors or
becomes any of the person
enumerated under Section 2
of these By-Laws.

His beneficial security
ownership exceeds ten
percent {10%) of the

14



outstanding capital stock of
the Corporation where he is
such a director,
Fails, without any justifiable
cause, to attend at least fifty
percent (50%) of the total
number of Board meetings
during his incumbency unless
such absences are due to
grave illness or death of an
immediate family.
¢ Such other disqualifications
which the Corporation’s
Manuat on Corporate
Governance provides.

L

Nomination Committee shali Any of the following shall be a
review and evaluate the ground for temporary
qualifications of all persons disqualifications of a director:
nominated to the Board of s Refusal to fully disclose the
Directors, it shall pre-screen the extent of his business
qualifications of all nominees to interest as well as refusal to
the Beard of Uirectors comply with all other

disclosure requirements
under the SRC and its
implementing Rules and
Regulations. This
disgualification shall be in
effect as fong as his refusal
persists.

+ Absence or non-participation
in more than Fifty Percent
{50%) of ait meetings, both
regular and special, of the
Board during his
incumbency, or any twelve
{12) month period during
said incumbency unless
such absence was due to
illness, death in the
immediate family or serious
accident. This
disqualificaticn applies for
purposes of the succeeding
election.

* Dismissal/ termination from
directorship in ancther listed
Company for cause. This
disqualification shali be in
effect until he has cleared
himself of any invelvement in
the alleged irregularity.

+ Being under preventive
suspension by the Company
for any reason.

e Conviction that has not yet
become final referred to in
the grounds for

(i) Executive Directors

15



disqualification of directors

(ii} Non-Exacutive Directors

Same as stated above

Same as stated above

(Hi} Independent Directors

(i} Executive Directors

Same as stated above

A director may be removed from
office by a vote of the
stockholders holding or
representing at least two-thirds
(2/3} of the outstanding capital
stock of the corporation, at a
regular or meeting or special
meeting called for the purpose,
and in either case, after previous
notice to stockholders of such
proposal to remove such
director.

Same as stated above

He possesses any of the criteria
enumerated for permanent
disqualifications, as stated
above

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

Same as stated above

He possesses any of the criteria
enumerated for permanent
disqualifications, as stated
above

{1ii) independent Directars

{i} Executive Directors

Nomination Committee shall
review and evaluate the
gualifications of all persons
nominated to the Board of
Directors.

The termination and cessaticn of
an Independent director shali be
governed by the provisions of
SEC Memorandum Circuiar 2,
otherwise known as the Code of
Corporate Governance, the
Securities Regulation Code and
#s Impiementing Rules and
Regulations.

He possesses any of the criteria
enumerated for permanent
disqualifications, as stated
above

(i) Non-Executive Directors

{iil) Independent Directors

{i) Executive Directors

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

{iii) independent Directors

Voting Result of the last Annuai General Meeting

Jerry Liu Majority
Nelia Liu Majority
Jorge Aguilar Majority
Nicanor Lizares Majority
Anthany Buyawe Majority
Ernast Fritz Server Majority
Martin Lorenzo Majority
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6) Orientation and Education Program

{a) Disclose details of the company's orientation program for new directors, if any.
{b) State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior Managementa for the past
three (3) years:

{c} Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and raundtakles atterded during the
year.

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

1} Discuss briefly the company's pelicies an the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senior
management and empioyees:

The persona! interest
of girectors and
officers should never
prevail over the
interests of the
company. Directors are
reguired to be loyal to
the organization that
they may not directly
or indirectly derive any
{a) Conflict of Interest | personal profit or
advantage by reason of
their positien in the
Company. They must
promote the commen
interests of all
shareholders and the
Company without
regard to their own
personal and selfish

The company shall not tolerate any form/ act of senior
management and employees that will compromise the
interast of the employer for their personal gains

interest.
A director shali not Standards of fair business, advertising and competition
use his position to make § are to be upheld. Appropriate means to safeguard
profit or to acquire customer information must be availabie, The foliowing
{b) Conduct of benefit or advantage for | must be observed:
Business and Fair himself and/or his * not make false statements against competitors,
Dealings related interests. He their preducts and/or services;
shoutd avoid s  Exercise reasonable and prudent professional
situations that may judgment when dealing with clients.
compromise his o deal fairly with the Company’s customers,

¥ Senior Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the company.
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impartiality. service providers, suppliers, competitors and

employees

(c)

Receipt of gifts from
third parties

The Directors, Senior Management and Employees are encouraged to avoid the
receipt from and giving of gifts of unusually high value to persons or entities with
whom the company relates [custemer, suppliers, service providers)

{d)

Compliance with
Laws & Reguiations

Diractors, officers and employees shalt uphold right canduct and follow restrictions

imposed by applicable laws, rules and regulations. They shall not accept demands
brought an by prevailing business conditions or perceived pressures as excusestc
violate any law, rule or regulation.

(e)

Respect for Trade
Secrets/Use of Non-
public Information

Directars, Management and Employees shall observe confidentiality of
informations of the company, customers, business parties with whom the company
relates.

Use of Cocmpany
Funds, Assets and
information

Directors, Officers and Employees shall use company property and resources
including company time, supplies and software, efficiently, responsibly and only for
legitimate business purposes only. They shall safeguard company assets from loss,
damage, misuse or theft and shall respect intellectual property rights.

{g)

Empicyment &
Labor taws &
Policies

Directors, Officers and Employees shall comply with applicable employment &
labor laws and policies

Disciplinary action

Any officer or employee who commits a violation of the Code of Ethics shall be
subject to disciplinary action {including suspension and termination}, without
prejudice to any civil or criminal proceedings that the Company or regutators may
file for viclation of existing law. There shall be no exception from or waivers of any
provision of this Code of Ethics, except as expressly approved by the Board of
Directors.

)

Whistle Biower

The Company is committed to fostering a workplace conducive to open
communication regarding the Company's business practices and to protecting
employees from unlawful retaliation and discrimination for their having properly
disclosed or reported illegal or unethical conduct. In an effart to further this
commitment, the Company has established the following: (i} guidance for the
receipt, retention, and treatment of verbal or written reports received by the
Company regarding acccunting, internal conirols, auditing matters, disclosure,
fraud and unethical business practices, whether submitted by Company employees
or third parties; (i) guidance for providing Company employees a means to make
Reports in a confidential and ancnymous manner; and (iii) the Company's intention
to discipline, up to and including termination of employment, any person
determined to have engaged in retaliatery behavior.

{

Conflict Resolution

2) Has the code of ethics of conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and emgployees?

Every director, management and employees have been given copies to ensure that company’s code of conduct and
policies are properly implemented and understood.

3) Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.
All employees must complete Cade of Conduct awareness training. In order to reinforce the company's standards
and help employees understand the policies and regulations, Cirtek continues ta offer compliance training for
employees across a variety of topics.
The Company conducts periodic compliance gssessments.

4) Related Party Transactions

(a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company’s policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and
recording of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures,
18



subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses,
children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director reiationships of members of the
Board.

{1} Parent Company

{2} Joint Ventures

{3} Subsidiaries ___| The Company shall avoid related party transactions. in

{4} Entities Under_Common Control instances where related party transactions cannot be

{5} Substantial Stockholders avoided, the Company shall disclose all relevant

{6) Officers including information on the same, including information on the
spouse/children/siblings/parents | affiliated parties and the affiliation of directors and principal

{7} Directors including officers,

spouse/children/siblings/parents
{8} Interlocking director relationship
of Board of Directors

(B) Conflict of Interest

(il Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of the common shares of the corporation
under g voting trust or similar agreement as there has been no voting trust agreement which has been
filed with the corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission

identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders
may be involved.

The Company is not oware of any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or
more shareholders may be involved.

Name of Director/s N/A
Name of Officer/s N/A
Name of Significant Shareholders N/A

{ii) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest
between the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and significant shareholders,

Carrying out audits by reviewing and validating business
Company processes and procedures, systems, financial and
operational controis, and business practices.
Group Same
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%) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

{a) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family,’ commercial, contractual or business nature that exists
between the holders of significant equity (5% or more}, to the extent that they are known to the company:

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

(b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity {5% or mare) and the company:

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

{¢} indicate any sharehclder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of
the company:

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

€) Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three {3) years in amicably
settling conflicts or differences between the cerporation and its stockhoiders, and the corporation and third

parties, including regulatory authorities,

The company has nat been subject to any material dispute for the past three years.

Corporation & Stockholders N/A
Corporation & Third Parties N/A
Corporation & Regulatory Authorities N/A

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

1} Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?

The Board of Director’s maeting is scheduled at the beginning of the year,

* Eamily refaticnship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.
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2) Attendance of Directors

Chairman Jerry Liu 2-11-12 6 6 1
Member Nicanor Lizares 2-11-12 & 5 .83
Member Anthony Buyawe 2-11-12 6 6 1

Member Jorge Aguilar 2-11-12 6 4 .67
Member Nelia Liu 2-11-12 6 3 5
Indepandent | Martin Lorenzo 2-11-12 6 4 .67
Independent | Fritz Server 2-11-12 6 4 .67

3) Do non-exacutive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? if
yes, how many times? No

4) 1s the minimum guarum reguirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain.

A majarity of the number of directors as fixed in the Articles of incorporation shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of corporate husiness; Provided, that ot least one (1) Independent Director is present in such meeting.
Every decision of at least @ majority of the directors present at ¢ meeting at which there is a quorum shall be valid
as o corporate act, except for the election of officers which shall require the vote of a majority of all the members
of the Board.

5}  Access to Information
{a) How many days in advance are board }oaperss for board of directors meetings provided to the board?

Notice of the meeting, agenda und reference materials, presentotions and other related reports are reguired
to be sent to the members of the Board of Directors at least one week prior to the date 0 f the meeting

(o) Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary? Yes
{¢) State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in

preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directars updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc?

The Secretary must be o resident and citizen of the Philippines. He is responsible to record the minutes and
transactions of all meetings of the directors and stockholders ond sufekeep and preserve the integrity of Board
Minutes of Meetings. To keep the corporate seal ond affix it to all papers and documents requiring a seal, and
to gttest by his signature all corporate documents requiring the same.

{d} Is the company secretary trained in iegal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
shouid the answer be in the negative. Yes

(e} Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get information necessary
to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different commitiees:

ves vo [

® Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting.
Information includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets,

forecasts and internal financial documents.
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6}

7)

Executive

Augit

Nomination

Remuneration

Others (specify)

All requests are coursed through the CFO

External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
details:

The Beard may, through Audit Committee, shall
recommend to the stockholders a duly accredited
external auditor who shall undertake an
independent audit and shall provide an objective
assurance on the way in which the financial
statements have been prepared and presented.

Externat auditor is approved during the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting,

Other external professional services such as tax &
legal, shall from time o time be commissioned by
the company with the approval of the senior

management.

Engagement proposals are submitted by at least
2 professional services firms, The CEO and CFO
select the advisor based on comprehensiveness
of proposai, methodology, qualification of
professionals, and price

Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, ¥ applicable, any change/s Introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term) on

existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:

No changes in existing policies

REMUNERATION MATTERS

Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four (4} most highly compensated

management officers:

{1} Fixed remuneration Board Approval CEQ Approval
(2) variable remuneration Board Approval CEO Approval
{3) Per diem allowance CEO Approval
(4) Bonus Board Approval Board Approval
{5) Stock Opticns and

other financial Board Approvat Béard Approval
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2)

3)

instruments

(8) Others {specify)

Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how the
compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

By resolution of the Board, each director shall receive a reusonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each
meeting of the Board. As compensation, the Board shall receive and allecate an amount of not more than ten
percent (10%) of the net income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year.

Executive Directors
See statement above

Non-Executive Directors I |

Do stockholders have the oppartunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances, benefits-
in-kind and other emoluments) of board of directors? Provide details for the last three (3) years.

As of December 31, 2012, the Board, apart from minimum per diem, has not received any olfowance, benefits-in-
kind or cther emoluments.

See statement above

Aggregate Remuneration

Comptlete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year:

{(a} Fixed Remuneration PhP12,000,000 - -

(b} Variable Remuneration PhP2,000,000 - -

{c) Perdiem Allowance PhP48,000 PhP16,000 PhP32,000

(d} Bonuses - - -

{e) Stock Options and/or
other financial - - -
instruments

{f} Others {Specify) - - -

PhP62,000 PhP16,000 PhP32,000
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4)

1} Advances

.N/A

PhP1,115,000

N/A N/A
2} Credit granted PhP&15,000 N/A N/A
3} Pension Plan/s ) N/A N/A
Contributions
(d) Pension Plans, i N/A N/A
Obligations incurred
{e) Life insurance Premium - N/A N/A
{f) Hospitalization Plan PhP200,000 N/A N/A
{g) CarPlan - N/A N/A
{h} Others (Specify) - N/A N/A
R A A

Stock Rights, Options and Warrants

{a} Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are entitled

to stock rights, options or warrants over the company's shares:

N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A NJA N/A NJA N/A

(b) Amendments of Incentive Programs

indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria
used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annuatl
Stockhoiders” Meeting:

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
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5}

i)

Remuneration of Management

Identify the five {5) members of management who are not at the same time executive directors and indicate the
total remuneration received during the financial year:

Senior Management as a group (VP for Engineer,
Senior Director for Sales & Marketing, QC/CA
Director, Human Resource Manager, Facilities &
Material Management Director}

PhP 5,862,056

BOARD COMMITTEES

Numbger of Members, Functions and Responsihilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the

pawer/authority delegated to It by the Board:

Audit

Audit
Committee

To assist the
Board in
fuifilling its
oversight
responsibilities
on

(1) financial
repotting
process,

(2} system of
internal
control,

(3) audit
process,

(4) Company’s
process for
monitoring
compliance
with
applicable
laws and
regulations.

Its key
responsibilities
focuses on
areas
pertaining to:
(1} Financial
Statements -
generally
Reviews
significant
accounting and
financial
reporting issues
and
understands its
impact.

{2) Internai
Control -
considers
effectiveness of
the company’s
intarnal control
system,
including LT,
security and
control;

(3) Internal
Audit - review
The
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effectiveness of
the internal
augt function;
and

(4) External
Audit — review
and confirm
independence
of the external
auditors,

Nominaticn

Nomination
Committee

Reviews and
evaluates the
qualifications
of all persons
nominated to
the Board as
well as those
nominated to
other position
requiring
appointment

Pre-scraens
quaifications of
all nominees to
the Board of
Directors;
supervise and
coordinate the
conduct of
elections or
replacement of
the Board of

The Caommittee
shall have the
exclusive power
to enforce and
administer the
Nemination and
Election Rules of
the Company.

Remuneration

by the Board Directors;
and provide
assessmeant on
the Board's
effectiveness
in directing
the process of
renawing and
replacing
Board
members,
Compensation Establish a Make
Commititee formal and Racommendatio
transparent ns to the Board
orocedure for on matters
developing a pertaining to
policy on remuneration
. remuneration and
Provides

oversight over
remuneration
of senior
management
and other key
personnel.

of directors and
officers to
ensure that
their
compensation
is consistent
with the
corporation’s
culture,
strategy and
the business
environment in
which it
operates.

compensation
packages of
corporate
officers

and directors,
after conducting
review and
evaluation.
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2}  Committee Members

(a} Audit Committee

Chairman Ernest Fritz Server 5.25-12 6 4 .67 1
Member {£D) Anthony Buyawe 5-25-12 6 6 1 1
Member [ED) Jerry Liu 5-25-12 6 & 1 1

Disclose the profile or gualificaticns of the Audit Committee members.

Ernest Fritz Server — Mr. Server serves as the President of Multimedia Telepheny Inc., Vice Chairman of RFM
Corperation and a director of Phiippine Township, Inc. Previously, Mr. Server served as Vice Chairman of the
Commercial Bank of Manila, Consumer Bank and Cosmos Bottling Company and President of Philippine Home
€able Heldings, inc. and Philam Fund. Mr. Server graduated from Ateneo de Manila in 1963 with degree in
Bachelor of Arts degree ir Economics and holds MBA Major in Banking and Finance from University of
Pennsylvania, Wharton Graduate School.

Anthony Buyawe ~ He is concurrently the CFO of CEC, CEIC and the Figaro Coffee Company. Prior joining the
Company, Mr. Buyawe was CFO of {TP Technologies {2003-2005) and SMEDC (2008-2009) and Senior Director
of Ernst & Young (2005-2008). Mr. Buyawe obtained his BA degree from University of the Philippines and his
MBA from the Asian Institute of Management.

serry Liu — He is concurrently the President/CEO of CEC, Director of Cirtek Land and Cayon Holdings, inc. and
Chairman of Silicon Link, Inc. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from Chung Yuan
University of Taiwan and an MBA from the University of the East.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor.

The Audit Committee shail have the following responsibilities:

1. Assist the Board in the performance of its oversight responsibility for the financial reporting process,

system of internal control, audit process, and monitoring of compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations;

2. Provide oversight over Monogement's activities in managing credit, market, liguidity, operational, legal
and other risks of the Company, including but not limited to regulor receipt from Management of
information on risk exposures and risk monagement activities;

3. Perform oversight functions over the Company’s internal and external auditors. it should ensure that the
internal and external guditors act independent from each other, and that both auditors are given
unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to enable them to perform their respective
qudit functions;

4 Review the annugl Internal gudit plan to ensure its conformity with the objectives of the Company. The
plan shall include the gudit scope, resources and budget necessary to implement it;

S Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss with the external auditor the nature, scope and expenses
of the audit, and ensure proper coordination if more than one audit firm is involved in the activity to

secure proper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts;

6. Organize an internal audit department, and consider the appointment of an independent internal auditor
and the terms and conditions of its engagement and removal;
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7. Monitor and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, including
financial reporting control and information technology security,

8 Review the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors;

9. Review the guarterly, semestral ond annudl financial statements before their submission to the Bouord,
with particular focus on the following matters;

i Any change In accounting policies and practices;

ii. Major judgment areas;

i, Significant adjustments resulting from the audit,

fv. Going concern assumptions;

v. Compliance with accounting standards; and

vi. Compliance with tax, legal and regulatory requirements.

10. Coordingte, monitor and facilitate compliance with laws, rules and reguiations;

11. Evoluate and determine the non-audit work, if any, of the external auditor, and review periodically the
non-audit fees paid to the external quditor in relation to their significance to the total annual income of
the external quditor and to the Company’s overall consultancy expenses. The committee shall disallow
any non-gudit work that will conflict with his duties s an external auditor ar may pose a threat to his
independence. The non-gudit work, if allowed, should be disclosed in the Company’s annual regort.

12. Establish and identify the reporting line of the internal auditor to enable him to properly fulfill his dutfes
and responsibilities. He shall functionally report directiy to the Audit Committee.

13. The Audit Committee shalf ensure that, in the performance of the work of the internal auditor, he shall be
free from interference by outside parties; and

14. To comply with ail the duties and responsibilities prescribed by the SEC under applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

{b) Nomination Committee

Chairman Martin Lorenzo 5-25-12 & 4 67 1
Member (ED) Jerry Liu 5-25-12 6 6 1
Member {ED) Nicanor Lizares 5-25-12 6 5 .83

(c) Remungration Committee

Martin Lorenzo

Chairman _
Member (ED} Jerry Liu 5-25-12 6 & 1 1
Member (ED) Anthony Buyawe 5-25-12 6 6 1 1
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3)

4)

5)

Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:

Executive

Audit

Nomination

NO CHANGES

Remuneration

Others {specify)

Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the wark done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.

qualifications of ail persons
nominated to the Board as well as
those naminated o other positions
requiring the appointment by the
Board.

Executive
Audit Assisted the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities for
financial reporting process, system
of internal cojntro!, audit process and No material issues addressed
the company’s process for
monitoring compliance with [aws
and regulations and the code of
conduct.
Nomination Reviewed and evaluated the

No material issues addressed

Remuneration

Provided a formal and transparent
procedure for developing a policy on
executive remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration of corporate
officers and directors

No material issues addressed

Others {specify}

Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake tc address relevant issues in the improvement
or enforcement of effective governance for the caming year.

Executive N/A N/A
Audit N/A N/A
Nomination N/A N/A
Remuneration N/A N/A
Others (specify) N/A N/A
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F.

1)

2)

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Disclose the following:

{d)

{e)

Overall risk management philcsophy of the company;
A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and
commenting on the adeguacy thereof;
Period covered by the review;

How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its effectiveness;

and

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Risk manogement refers to comprehensive corporate actions or procedures taken to effectively manage risk and
allow the company to achieve its goals of sustainable growth and volue creation.

Risk Policy

a}

Company

Give a general description of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system (ranked according to pricrity), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind
of risk:

Financial / Commercial
Risk (foreign exchange,
interest rate, credit)

Foreign exchange risk is managed
by forward contracts negotiated
with banks. The positions subject
to exchange risk peso expenses of
the company, mainly direct labor
and utility charges.

Forward contracts are not
designated as hedging
instruments as defined by 1AS 39
although they are in place for the
purpose of managing risks.

Company policy is to maintain a
correct balance between fixed-
rate debt and floating-rate debt.

The Company has established a
credit risk management system
to ensure prompt and efficient
collection of trade and receivable
acecounts.

Change in exchange rates wili not

generate any significant effect on
the income statement.

Achieve [ow blended interest rate.

Ensure prompt and efficient
collection of trade and receivable
accounts,

Strategic Risk | The Company monitors
(technolog.y inflaction, tech_nolggy trends and emerging Ensure  that the Company’s
change in  customer | applications. The Company also . :
. . ) products and services are aligned
demand, competition, | carries out continucus R&D on R
. . . . with market and customer
industry volatility) new materials and packaging . )
L requirements, and provide &
applications. The Company | . . o
. distinct  value propesition  to
collaborates with key customers
. customers
on new generation of
semiconductor devices
Operationzl Risk { The Company carries out quality | Achieve high quality standards
(quality, productivity, | assurance audits in all major and efficiency at the preduction
value chain} stages of the manufacturing | line. Ensure there s no
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3)

process. The Company monitors
compliance with various control
plans and documented
procedures. The Company
maintains at least three suppliers
for its major raw material
requirements. The Company
monitors financial performance
on a weekly basis.

proguction downtime due to
material stock-out. Ensure
financial viability across the
revenue centers.

Compliance Risk (legal,

The Company monitors strict

Compliance with employment and

re ry, code of | compliance with employment an
gulatory pliance ploy _d labor faws, statutory reporting
conduct} labor ifaws, statutory reporting -
" and filings, and adherence to code
and filings, and adherence to code
of conduct.

of conduct.

(b} Group

Give a general description of the Group’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered

by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Same as above

{c) Minority Sharehclders

Indicate the principai risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ vating power,

Control System Set Up

(a) Company

8riefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

Please see discussion

on risk management
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G.

1)

2)

{b) Group

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

Please see discussion
on risk management

{c) Committee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and supervising
these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

Please see discussion
on risk management

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

internal Contral System

Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:

{a) Explain how the Intarnal control system is defined for the company;
(b} A staternent that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal contro! system and whether

they consicer tham effective and adeguate;

{c} Period covered by the review;
(d) How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the

internal control system; and
(e} Where nc review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Internal control system is defined as a process, effected by the Company’s board of directors, management and
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in the
following categorfes:

1. Effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
2. Reliability of financial reporting.
3. Compliance with applicabie laws and regulations.

The first category pertain to the Company's fundamental objectives, including performance and prefitabiiity goals
and safequarding of assets. The second relates to the prepargtion of comprehensive, accurate financial
statements, including selected financiol data derived from such statements, such as earnings releases, reported
publicly. The third deals with complying with laws and regulations.

Internal Audit

{a) Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit

functicn.
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(b}

fc)

rrdalibe

Performed in- Various parties | Findings are
house, by involved raised to QA
customer, end- Department;
customer and forwarded to
accrediting agency division involved;
findings and
7516949 Quality propose

Systems Standards Systems Audit solutions
presented to
serdor
management for
recommeandation
and approval

Process Audit

Product Audit

Performed in- | N/A Findings
15014001 Process Audit house and by forwarded ~ to
government Quality Systems
agencies Department
Compliance  with | Performed in- Findings
Company  policies | house and by forwarded to
and procedures, | professional CFO and CEO;
and whether such | services firm presented to the
i id Board
Internal audit compliance provide o
. reasonable
{(accounting)
assurance of
financial data
integrity, and

compliance with
PFRS and PAS

Do the appointment and/ar removal of the Internal Auditor or the accounting /auditing firm or corporation to
which tha internal audit function is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee? Yes

Discuss the internal auditor's reporting relationship with the audit committee, Does the internal auditor have
direct and unfettered access to the board of directors and the audit committee and to all records, properties
and perscnnel? Yes

Resignation, Re-assignrment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff {including those employed by the third-
party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them. No resignation or re-assignments

N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

Progress against Plans, !ssues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit's progress against plans, significant issues, significant findings and examination
trends.
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Internal audits are performed according to
schedule

No issues

No findings -

No trends

[The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review
cycle which invoives the following step-by-step activities:

1) Preparation of an audit ptan inclusive of a timeline and milestones;

2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;

3) Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;

4) Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;

5) Determination of the pervasive issues and findings ["examination trends”} based on single year

result and/or year-to-year results;
6] Conduct of the faregoing procedures on a regular basis.]

{fi Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internal audit controls, palicies and procedures that have been established by the company and
the result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and proceduras have been
impiemented under the colurmn “Implementation.”

Company accounting system is a set of records
and the procedures and eguipment used to
perform accounting functions. Manual systems
consist of journals and ledgers on paper.
Computerized accounting systems consist of
accounting softwarg, computer files, and related
perigheral equipment such as  computer
hardware, printers, modems, etc.

Regardless of the system, the function of
accountants include:

(L recording, classifying, and summarizing
measuring economic events;

(2) recording, classifying, and summarizing | Fully implemented
measuremants;
(3} reporting economic events and

interpreting financial statements.

Both internal and external users tell accountants
of their information needs. The accounting
system enables & company’s accounting staff to
supply relevant accounting information to meet
those needs. As internal and external users make
decisions that become sconomic events, the
cycle of information, decisions, and economic
evants begin again.

& “|ssues” are compliance mattars that arise from adopting different interpretations.
7 “rindings” are those with concrete basis under the company's policies and rules.
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Policy on cash receipts
Policy on cash dishursements

Policy on cash advances

Palicy on supplies and materials purchasing
Policy on fixed assets

Policy on accounts recelvable

Policy on accounts payakle

Policy on payroll

Recording of transactions

Journal voucher preparation

Financial Reporting

Reconciliation of bank accounts

Fully implemented
Fully implemented
Fully implemented
Fully implemented '
Fully implemented
Fully implemented
Fully implemented
Fuily implemented
Fuily implemented
Fully implemented
Fully implemented
Fully impiemented

{g) Mechanisms and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies (example, restrictions on trading in the company’s shares and
imposition of internal approvai procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an
external auditor may provide to the company):

Observe independence of parties and carry out transaction at arms-length basis

{h) State the officers {preferably the Chairman and the c£0) who will have to attest to the company’s full
compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state that all directors, officers
and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as mandated by
the Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance.

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company’s policy and activities relative to the following:

poliey

Daily quality and process reviews;
daily reports 10 customers

Provide highest standard of quality
to all customers

The Company observes a “supplier
qualification screening” process in
order to: {1} reduce the likelihood of
supptier non-performance,

Customers' welfare

Supplier/contractor selection
practice

such as late delivery, non-delivery, or
delivery of non-conforming (faulty)
goods, and (2] ensure that the
supplier will be a respensible and
responsive partner In the

day-to-day business relationship
with the buyer.

Reference check, financial status
check, guality check, ability to
meet specifications

Environmentally friendly value-
chain

Control operations in order to
minimize environmental pollution to
ensure the safety and health of
every employee

Controi of hazardous waste
disposal; water conservation,
electricity conservation, efficient
raw materials utilization, 3 Rs
{reduce, re-use, recycie), proper
waste segregation, proper

35



training of people, environmental
updates to all employees

Community interaction

Proemote good relations with
communities through participation
in community upliftment programs
and humanitarian activities

Participation in community
upliftment programs and
humanitarian activities

Anti-corruption programmes and | awareness, detect potential
procedures? misconduct and monitor compliance

We conduct periodic anti-bribery
audits of our business to raise overall

Periodic audits, monitoring

with anti-carruption laws and
Company policy

£ L p
safeguarding creditors' rights and performance reliability updatel on the Qompény 5
operating and financial
Maintain fairness, truthfulness, performance (with the banks)

Foster lang-term relationship with
suppliers to achieve guality,
competitiveness, process efficiency Timely settlement of payables,

integrity and transparency in
business dealings with creditors

2)

3)

4)

Does the company have a separate corporate respensibility {CR) report/section or sustainabitity report/section?
Yas

Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.

{a) What are the company’s palicy for its amployees’ safety, heaith, and welfare?
The Company maintains and updates comprehensive Occupational Safety and Health Procedures.
(b) Show data relating to health, safety and weifare of its employees.
In 2012 the Company had one minor work-refated accident,
(c} State the company’s training and development programmes for its employeas, Show the data.

The Company conducts regular training for all production and support departments. The Company also sends key
personnel to external training pragrams on a regular basis.

{d) State the company's reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company beyand
short-term financial measures

What are the company's procedures for handling complaints by employees concerning illegal (including
corruption} and unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.

Company employee can file their report through (a} the Company's Compliance and Fraud Hotline, () the Human
Resource Director (c) the CFO, or {d) Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directers. Any report
received through the Hotiine will be forwarded to the appropriate party, which would be either the Human
Rescurce Director, the CFO or the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Any report received by a Company officer,
director, or employee from a non-Company source should be immediately forwarded to The Hotline.

Retaliation against any employee that files a report or complaint under this policy is strictly prohibited. Employees
determined to have engaged in retaiiatory behavior or who fail to maintain an employee's anonymity if requested
may be subject to discipline, which could include termination of employment. Any employee who feels that he or
she has been subjected to any behavior that violates this pelicy should immediately report such behavior to his or
her supervisor, Human Resources Director, the CFO, or the Director Chairman of the Audit Commitiee, Please
note however, that employees who knowingly file misieading or false reports, or without a reasona ble belief as to
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1)

2)

3)

truth or accuracy, will not be protected by this policy and may be subject to discipline, incluging termination of

employment.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
Cwnership Structure

(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more

The corporation is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of the common shares of the
corporation under a voting trust or similor ogreement as there has been no voting trust agreement
which has been filed with the corporation ond the Securities and Exchange Commission

N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL
Does the Annual Report disclose the following:

Key risks YES
Corporate objectives YES
Financial performance indicators YES
Non-financial performance indicators YES
Dividend policy YES
Details of whistie-biowing policy NG
Biographical details (at least age, gualifications, date of first appointment, relevant experience, and any other vES
directorships of listed companies) of directors/commissioners
Training and/or continuing education programme attended by each director/commissioner YES
Number of board of directars/cemmissioners meetings held during the year YES
Attendance details of each director/commissioner in respect of meetings held YES
Detalls of remuneration of the CEQ and each member of the board of directors/commissioners YES

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please indicate the reason for the non-

disclosure. Not part of information required in SEC Form 17-A

External Auditor's fee
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Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co., Php 550,00.00

4)  Medium of Communication
List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.

Shareholders are provided through public records, communication media, and the Company’s website, the
disclosures, announcements and reports filed with the SEC, PSE and other requlating agencies.

5) Date of release of audited financial report: April 2, 2013
6) Company Website

Does the company have a website disciosing up-to-date information about the following?

Business operations Yes
Financial statements/reports (current and prior years) Yes
Materials provided in briefings to analysts and media ) Yes
Shareholding structure Yes
Group corporate structure Yes
Downloadable annual report . Yes
Notice of AGM and/or EGM Yes
Comgpany's constitution {company's by-laws, memorandum and articles of association} Yes

Corporate website is being upgraded to further enhance contents.

7) Disclosure of RPT

None Nong None None

None None None None
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When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other siakeholders?

The Company has no knowledge of any reloted-party transactions in 2012.

). RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

1} Right to participate effectively in and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meetings

(a) Quorum

Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders” Meeting as set forth in its
By-laws.

e : : | Majority of the number of diractors
Quorum Required as fixed in the Articles of
Incorporation

(b} System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corperate acts.

System Used | viva voce voting

R 2] During Stockhclders’ meetings, a stockholder may vote in person or by
Description proxy. During Board Meetings, members of the Board may approve
: corporate acts through viva voce voting.

(c) Stockhclders’ Rights

List any Stockholders” Rights concerning Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting that differ from those laid
down in the Corperation Code.

Stockholders’ Rights not in
The Corporation Code

Stockholders’ Rights under
The Corporation Code

NA NA
NA NA
NA NA

Dividends

Déc':'i'arationﬂDate * Record Date

Payment Date

13 March 2012 25 March 2012 25 April 2012
13 March 2012 & June 2012 29 June 2012
14 September 2012 21 December 2012 10 January 2013

(d) Stockholders’ Participation

1. State, iIf any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special
Stockholders’ Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees. Include
in the discussion the steps the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the stockholders as
well as procedures for putting forward proposals at stockhoiders’ maetings.
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{f)

Annual

© Measures Adbbf'ed

Communication Procedure

NA

NA

NA

NA

2. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:

a. Amendments to the company's constitution — participation in stockholders’ meetings
b. Authorization of additional shares — participation in stockholders” meetings
¢. Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale of the company -

participation in stockholders’ meetings

3, Dees the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where
itams to be resolved by shareholders are taken up? YES

a. Date of sending out notices: 3 April 2012

b. Date of the Annual/Spacial Stockholders’ Meeting: 25 May 2012

5. Result of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting's Resolutions

State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting.

Resohﬁiouh” Approving

Dis

senting “Abstaining

Approval of Declaration

o
of Stock Dividends 92.56%

Amendment to By-
Laws to Change Date of
Annual Stockholders’
Meeting

92.56%

NA

NA

Ratification of All Acts
of the Board and
Management

92.56%

NA

NA

6. Date of publishing of the result of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:

25 May 2012

Modifications

State, if any, the modifications made in the Annual/Special Steckholders’ Meeting regulations during the most

recent year and the reasen for such modification:

" Modifications

_ Reasénvfér Md&ificatidh'

NA NA
NA NA
NA NA

Stockhotders’ Attendance

{i)

Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockhoiders’ Meeting Held:

Names of Board
Date of

Meeting

present

Jerry Liu

Nicanor Lizares
Anthony Buyawe
lorge Aguilar

25 May 2012

poll, show of
hands, etc.)

Viva voce

Voting

Total % of
SH
ttendance

18.56% 92.56%
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Martin Lorenzo
Tadeo Hilado
Brian Gregory Liu
Michael Liu

Jerry Liu

Michael Liu 7
Special | Brian Gregory Liu | Decernber Viva voce 0.05% 99.95% 72.19%
Anthony Buyawe | 2013
lorge Aguilar

(i) Does the company appeint an independent party {inspectors} to caunt and/or validate the votes at the
ASM/SSMs? No

(i} Do the company’s common shares carry one vote for one share? if not, disclose and give reasons for any
divergence to this standard. Where the company has more than one class of shares, describe the voting

rights attached to each class of shares. Yes

{g} Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy voting in the Annuai/Special Stockholders’
Meeting.

Company'’s Policies

Proxies shall be made in writing, signed and in accordance
Execution and acceptance of proxies with the existing laws, rules and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Notary Unless required, proxy form may not be notarized.

Duly accomptished proxies must be submitted to the office of
Submission of Proxy the Corporate Secretary not later than seven (7} days prior to
the date of stockholders’ meeting for proxy validatian.

Several Proxies Same procedure as ahove.
Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, it shafl be valid only
Validity of Proxy for the meeting at which it has been presented to the
Secretary.

Proxies executed abroad shall be duly authenticated by the
Philippine Embassy or Consular Office.

Proxies which are not properly executed shall be considered
void and shal! not be considered in the counting of votes.
Validation of proxies shall be held at the date, time and place
as may be stated in the Notice of the stockholders” meeting
which in no case shall be less than five (5) calendar days prior
to the date of stockhoiders meeting.

Proxies executed abroad

invalidated Proxy

Validation of Proxy

Violation of Proxy Shall render such proxy void.

{h} Sending of Notices

State the company's policies and procedure on the sending of notices of Annuai/Special Stockholders’
Meeting.

Notices for regular or special meetings of

stockholders may be sent by the Secretary by
persanal delivery, by ordinary or registered mail,
by facsimile, by electronic mall or by publication

The notice shall state the place, date and hour of
the mesting, and the purpose or purposes for
which the meeting is called.
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2)

{i)

in newspapers of general circulation published in
Metro Manila, at {east 2 weeks prior to the date
of the meeting to each stockholder of record at
his last known address.

Definitive Information Statements and Management Report

 Number of Stockholders entitied to receive
. Definitive information Statements and
Managzment Report and Other Materials

185

Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive

-and Other Materials held by market
: participants/cartain beneficial owners

: Information Statement and Management Report

3 April 2012

‘Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive
information Statement and Management Report
. and Other Materials held by stackholders

1 3 April 2012

. State whether CD format or hard copies were
- distributed

HARD COPIES

 if yes, indicate whether requesting stockholders
" ware provided hard copies

Stockholders’ were provided hard copias

{j} Does the Notice of Annual/Specia! Stockholders” Meeting include the following:

Each resolution to be taken up deals with only one item., YES
Profiles of directors {at jeast age, qualification, date of first appointment,

experience, and directorships in other listed companies) norninated for YES
election/re-election,

The auditors to be appointed or re-appointed. YES
An explanation of the dividend policy, if any dividend is to be declared. YES
The amount payable for final dividends. YES
Documents reguired for proxy vote. YES

Sheuid any of the foregoing information be not disciosed, piease indicate the reason thereto.

Treatment of Minority Stockholders

{a} State the company’s policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockhelders,

. ~ Palicies
NA NA
NA NA
NA NA
NA NA

(b) Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors? Yes
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K. INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

1) Discuss the company's external and internal communications policies and how freguently they are reviewed.
Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. identify the committee with this
respansibility, if it has been assigned to a committee.

There is an Investor Relations Officar within the Company, which shall be tasked with -
1. Creation and implementation of an investor relations program that reaches out to all shareholders and
fully informs them of corporate activities;
2. Formulation of a clear policy on communicating or relating relevant information to Company
stakehoiders and to the broader investor community accurately, effectively and sufficiently;
3. Preparation of disclosure documents to the SEC and the Philippine Stock Exchange, and

The Investor Relations Officer reports to the Chief Financial Officer who shall oversee all reperting and
disclosures to the SEC and PSE.

2) Describe the company’s investor relations program including ts communications strategy to promote effective
communication with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public in general. Disciose the contact details
{e.g. telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible for investor relations.

(1) Objectives Accurately and effectively communicate major corporate news
{eg financial performance, new customers, expansion)

(2) Principies Timeliness, truthfuiness and transparency

{3} Modes of Cemmunications Press releases, intarviews

{4) Investors Relations Officer Anthony Buyawe / Sheerly Salazar

3} What are the company’s rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate cantrol in the capital
markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

(1) Thorough assessment and due diligence, (2) Board approval of transaction value and structure, (3} obtain
regulatory approvols, {4} disclosure of transaction

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the
transaction price.

The Company uses several financial advisors depending on the nature and requirements of the transaction.

L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

Tree planting Community
River ¢leaning Community
Aid to typhoon victims Typhoon victims

M. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEQ APPRAISAL

Disclose the process foliowed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the board and its
committees, individual director, and the CEQ/President.
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Board of Directors

Self Evatuation, By shareholders
at annual and special meeting
of stockholders

Financial Performance, Good
Corporate Governance

Board Committees

Self Evaluation

Performance of responsibilities

Individual Directors

Self Evaluation

Performance of responsibilities

CEQ/President

Board evaluation

Accomplishment of previously
set goals, strategies and targets

INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance manual
involving directors, officers, management and employees

First Violation

Subject person shall be reprimanded

Second viclation

Suspension from the office shall be imposed.

Third Violation

Remaoval from office shall be im_posed.
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